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Clynton E. Ridgell 
Senator - 35th Guam Legislature 
Committee on Economic Development, Agriculture, Maritime Transportation, 
Power and Energy Utilities, and Emergency Response 

July 9, 2019 @ 
A,,· 

Honorable Regine Biscoe Lee 
Chairperson, Committee on Rules 
I Mina'trentai Singko na Liheslaturan Guahan 
163 Chalan Santo Papa 
Hagatfia, Guam 96910 

Re: Committee Report on Oversight Hearing with the Guam Power Authority 

Hafa adai Chairperson Lee: 

Transmitted herewith is the Committee Report on the Oversight Hearing with the Guam Power 
Authority. 

Saina ma'ase' 

~Ridgell 
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Clynton E. Ridgell 
Senator - 35th Guam Legislature 
Committee on Economic Development, Agriculture, Maritime Transportation, 
Power and Energy Utilities, and Emergency Response 

COMMITTEE REPORT 

OVERSIGHT HEARING 
with the 

Guam Power Authority 

by Senator Clynton E. Ridgell 
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Selina Onedera-Salas <sonedera-salas@guamlegislature.org> 

FIRST NOTICE of Guam Power Authority Oversight Hearing: May 23, 2019 
1 message 

Selina Onedera-Salas <sonedera-salas@guamlegislature .org> Thu, May 16. 2019 at 4:12 PM 
Bee: PHrg Notice <phnotice@guamlegislature.org>. news@guampdn.com, reporters@postguam.com, Andrea Pellacani <andrea@spbguam.com>, Chris Barnett 
<chris@kuam.com>, Dontana Keraskes <dontanakeraskes@gmail.com>, Gaynor Dumatol <editor@postguam.com>, Guam Progress <guamprogress@yahoo.com>, 
Haidee Eugenio <heugenio@guampdn.com>. Jasmine Stole <jstole@guampdn.com>, Jolene Toves <jolene@spbguam.com>, Kevin Kerrigan 
<kevin@postguam.com>, Marvic <publlsher@pacificislandtimes.com>, Mindy Aguon <mindy@postguam.com>, Nestor Licanto <nestor@kuam.com>, Patti Arroyo 
<parroyo@spbguam.com>. Paul Charfauros <pcharfauros@spbguam.com>, Phil Leon Guerrero <phill@spbguam.com>, Ray Gibson <raygibsonradio@gmail.com>, 
Sabrina Salas Matanane <sabrina@kuam.com>, SMG <news@k57.com> , Steve Limtiaco <slimtiaco@guampdn.com> 

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 
May16, 2019 

MEMORANDUM 

To: All Senators, Stakeholders, Media 

From: Senator Clynton E. Ridgell 

Re: FIRST NOTICE of Guam Power AuthoritJ. Oversight Hearing: Thursday, May 23, 2019 

The Committee on Economic Development, Agriculture, Maritime Transportation, Power and Energy Utilities, and Emergency 
Response will conduct an Oversight Hearing with the Guam Power Authority on Thursday - May 23, 2019, from 9:00 am to 5:00 
pm to discuss the items listed in the agenda below. The Hearing w ill take place in i Liheslaturan Guahan' s Public Hearing Room at 
the Guam Congress Building in Hagatna, Guam. 

A copy of the Agenda is attached for reference. 

The Public Hearing will broadcast LNE on local television (GTA Channel 21, Docomo Channel 117/60.4) and stream onl ine via i 
Liheslatw-an Guahan' s live feed. Written testimonies may be hand-delivered to the Office of Senator Clynton E. Ridgell at 238 Archbishop 
Flores Street, Suite 906 - DNA Building, Hagab'la, Guam 96910; sent via email at sen .cridgell@teleguam.net; or sent via fax at (671) 475-
4768. 

All government activities, programs, and services are accessible for people with disabiUties in compliance with Title II of the Americans 
with Disabiliti es Act (ADA). Should you or interested parties require assistance or special accommodations to fully pa rticipate in this 
public hearing, please contact Angela Santos at (671) 475-4983 or via email at sen .cridgell@teleguam.net. 

Selina Onedera-Salas 
Chief of Stoff - Office of Senator Cl:mton E. Ridgell 
238 Archbishop Flores St 
Suite 906, DNA Building 
Hagatiia, Guam 96910 
(671) 475-4983 (Office) · (671) 475-4768 (Fax) 
sonedera-salas@guamlegislature.org 
Commi ttee on Economic Development, Agricu lture. M<tritime Trnnsp0rlillion, Power nnd Energy Utilities, nnd Emergency Response 
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Clynton E. Ridgell 
Senator - 35th Guam Legislature 
Committee on Economic Development, Agriculture, Maritime Transportation, 
Power and Energy Utilities, and Emergency Response 

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 
May 16, 2019 

MEMORANDUM 

To: All Senators, Stakeholders, Media 

From: Senator Clynton E. Ridgell 

Re: FIRST NOTICE of Guam Power Authority Oversight Hearing: Thursday, May 
23,2019 

The Committee on Economic Development, Agriculture, Maritime Transportation, 
Power and Energy Utilities, and Emergency Response will conduct an Oversight 
Hearing with the Guam Power Authority on Thursday - May 23, 2019, from 9:00 am to 
5:00 pm to discuss the items listed in the agenda below. The Hearing will take place in i 
Liheslaturan Guahan' s Public Hearing Room at the Guam Congress Building in Hagatfia, 
Guam. 

A copy of the Agenda is attached for reference. 

The Public Hearing will broadcast LIVE on local television (GTA Channel 21, Docomo 
Channel 117 /60.4) and stream online via i Liheslaturan Guahan's live feed . Written 
testimonies may be hand-delivered to the Office of Senator Clynton E. Ridgell at 238 
Archbishop Flores Street, Suite 906 - DNA Building, Hagatfia, Guam 96910; sent via email at 
sen.cridgell@teleguam.net; or sent via fax at (671) 475-4768. 

All government activities, programs, and services are accessible for people with disabilities 
in compliance with Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) . Should you or 
interested parties require assistance or special accommodations to fully participate in this 
public hearing, please contact Angela Santos at (671) 475-4983 or via email at 
sen.cridgell@teleguam.net. 

238 Archbishop Flores St · Suite 906 - DNA Building · Hagatfi.a GU 96910 
Phone: (671) 475-4983 · Fax: (671) 475-4768 

sen.cridgell@teleguam.net 



Selina Onedera-Salas <sonedera-salas@guamlegislature.org> 

SECOND NOTICE of Guam Power Authority Oversight Hearing: May 23, 2019 
1 message 

Selina Onedera-Salas <sonedera-salas@guamlegislature.org> Tue, May 21 , 2019 at 5:36 AM 
Bee: PHrg Notice <phnotice@guamlegislature.org>, news@guampdn.com, reporters@postguam.com, Andrea Pellacani 
<andrea@spbguam.com>, Chris Barnett <chris@kuam.com>, Dontana Keraskes <dontanakeraskes@gmail.com>, Gaynor 
Dumatol <editor@postguam.com>, Guam Progress <guamprogress@yahoo.com>, Haidee Eugenio 
<heugenio@guampdn.com>, Jasmine Stole <jstole@guampdn.com>, Jolene Toves <jolene@spbguam.com>, Kevin Kerrigan 
<kevin@postguam.com>, Marvic <publisher@pacificislandtimes.com>, Mindy Aguon <mindy@postguam.com>, Nestor 
Licanto <nestor@kuam.com>, Patti Arroyo <parroyo@spbguam.com>, Paul Charfauros <pcharfauros@spbguam.com>, Phil 
Leon Guerrero <phill@spbguam.com>, Ray Gibson <raygibsonradio@gmail.com>, Sabrina Salas Matanane 
<sabrina@kuam.com>, SMG <news@k57.com>, Steve Limtiaco <slimtiaco@guampdn.com> 

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 
May21,2019 

MEMORANDUM 
To: All Senators, Stakeholders, Media 

From: Senator Clynton E. Ridgell 

Re: SECOND NOTICE of Guam Power Authority Oversight Hearing: Thursday, May 23, 2019 

The Committee on Economic Development, Agriculture, Maritime Transportation, Power and Energy Utilities, and 
Emergency Response will conduct an Oversight Hearing with the Guam Power Authority on Thursday - May 23, 
2019, from 9:00 am to 5:00 pm to discuss the items listed in the agenda below. The Hearing will take place in 
Liheslaturan Guahan's Public Hearing Room at the Guam Congress Building in Hagatna, Guam. 

A copy of the Agenda is attached for reference. 

The Public Hearing will broadcast LIVE on local television (GTA Channel 21, Docomo Channel 117/60.4) and stream 
online via i Liheslaturan Guahan 's live feed . Written testimonies may be hand-delivered to the Office of Senator Clynton 
E. Ridgell at 238 Archbishop Flores Street, Suite 906 - DNA Building , Hagatna, Guam 96910; sent via email at 
sen.cridgell@teleguam.net; or sent via fax at (671) 475-4768. 

All government activities, programs, and services are accessible for people with disabilities in compliance with Title II of 
the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). Should you or interested parties require assistance or special accommodations 
to fully participate in this public hearing, please contact Angela Santos at (671) 475-4983 or via email at 
sen .cridgell@teleguam.net. 

Selina Onedera-Salas 
Chief of Staff - Office of Senator Clynton E. Ridgell 
238 Archbishop Flores St 
Suite 906, DNA Building 
Hagatiia, Guam 96910 
(671) 475-4983 (Office) · (671) 475-4768 (Fax) 
sonedera-salas@guamlegislature.org 
Committee on Economic Development, Agriculture, Maritime Transportation, Power and Energy Utilities, and 
Emergency Response 
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Clynton E. Ridgell 
Senator - 35th Guam Legislature 
Committee on Economic Development, Agriculture, Maritime Transportation, 
Power and Energy Utilities, and Emergency Response 

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 
May 21, 2019 

MEMORANDUM 

To: All Senators, Stakeholders, Media 

From: Senator Clynton E. Ridgell 

Re: SECOND NOTICE of Guam Power Authority Oversight Hearing: Thursday, 
May 23, 2019 

The Committee on Economic Development, Agriculture, Maritime Transportation, 
Power and Energy Utilities, and Emergency Response will conduct an Oversight 
Hearing with the Guam Power Authority on Thursday - May 23, 2019, from 9:00 am to 
5:00 pm to discuss the items listed in the agenda below. The Hearing will take place in i 
Liheslaturan Guahan' s Public Hearing Room at the Guam Congress Building in Hagatfia, 
Guam. 

A copy of the Agenda is attached for reference. 

The Public Hearing will broadcast LIVE on local television (GTA Channel 21, Docomo 
Channel 117 /60.4) and stream online via i Liheslaturan Guahan's live feed. Written 
testimonies may be hand-delivered to the Office of Senator Clynton E. Ridgell at 238 
Archbishop Flores Street, Suite 906 - DNA Building, Hagatfia, Guam 96910; sent via email at 
sen.cridgell@teleguam.net; or sent via fax at (671) 475-4768. 

All government activities, programs, and services are accessible for people with disabilities 
in compliance with Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). Should you or 
interested parties require assistance or special accommodations to fully participate in this 
public hearing, please contact Angela Santos at (671) 475-4983 or via email at 
sen.cridgell@teleguam.net. 

238 Archbishop Flores St · Suite 906 - DNA Building · Hagatfia GU 96910 
Phone: (671) 475-4983 · Fax: (671) 475-4768 

sen.cridgell@teleguam.net 



Clynton E. Ridgell 
Senator - 35th Guam Legislature 
Committee on Economic Development, Agriculture, Maritime Transportation, 
Power and Energy Utilities, and Emergency Response 

May 16, 2019 

Transmitted via Electronic Mail 

John M. Benavente, P.E. 
General Manager 
Consolidated Utility Services 
Gloria B. Nelson Public Service Building 
688Route15, Suite 100 
Mangilao, Guam 96913 

Re: Notice of Oversight Hearing 

Hafa adai Mr. Benavente: 

This is to notify you that the Committee on Economic Development, Agriculture, 
Maritime Transportation, Power and Energy Utilities, and Emergency Response has 
scheduled an Oversight Hearing for the Guam Power Authority on Thursday - May 23, 
2019, from 9:00 am to 5:00 pm. The Oversight Hearing will take place at the Public 
Hearing Room of the Guam Congress Building. 

Please be prepared to discuss the items listed in the attached agenda. We also encourage 
you to invite members of your management team or staff who you believe are necessary 
to assist with the discussion of the items on the agenda. 

If you have any questions or concerns, please contact Selina Onedera-Salas at 475-4983 or 
send email to sonedera-salas@guamlegislature.org. 

Si Yu'os ma'ase', 

Attachment: Oversight Hearing Agenda - May 23, 2019 

238 Archbishop Flores St · Suite 906 - DNA Building . Hagatfi.a GU 96910 
Phone: (671) 475-4983 · Fax: (671) 475-4768 

sen .cridgeU@teleguam.net 



Clynton E. Ridgell 
Senator - 35th Guam Legislature 
Committee on Economic Development, Agriculture, Maritime Transportation, 
Power nnd Energy Utilities, and Emergency Response 

May 16, 2019 

Transmitted via Electronic Mail 

All Members 
Consolidated Commission on Utilities 
688 Route 15, Suite 100 
Mangilao, Guam 96913 

Re: Notice of Oversight Hearing 

Hafa adai: 

This is to notify all members of the Consolidated Commission on Utilities that the 
Committee on Economic Development, Agriculture, Maritime Transportation, Power 
and Energy Utilities, and Emergency Response has scheduled an Oversight Hearing for 
the Guam Power Authority on Thursday - May 23, 2019, from 9:00 am to 5:00 pm. The 
Oversight Hearing will take place at the Public Hearing Room of the Guam Congress 
Building. 

Please be prepared to provide comment and to discuss the items listed in the attached 
agenda. 

If you have any questions or concerns, please contact Selina Onedera-Salas at 475-4983 or 
send email to sonedera-salas@guamlegislature.org. 

Si Yu'os ma'ase', 

~E.Ridgell 
Attachment: Oversight Hearing Agenda - May 23, 2019 

238 Archbishop Flores St· Suite 906 - DNA Building · Hagatfia GU 96910 
Phone: (671) 475-4983 ·Fax: (671) 475-4768 

sen.cridgell@teleguam.net 



• 
Clynton E. Ridgell 
Senator - 35t1i Guam Legislature 
Committee on Economic Development, Agriculture, Maritime Transportation, 
Power nnd Energy Utilities, and Emergency Response 

May 16, 2019 

Transmitted via Electronic Mail 

Guam Public Utilities Commission 
Suite 207, GCIC Building 
414 West Soledad Avenue 
Hagatfia, Guam 96910 

Re: Notice of Oversight Hearing 

Hafa adai: 

This is a courtesy notice to the Guam Public Utilities Commission that the Committee on 
Economic Development, Agriculture, Maritime Transportation, Power and Energy 
Utilities, and Emergency Response has scheduled an Oversight Hearing for the Guam 
Power Authority on Thursday - May 23, 2019, from 9:00 am to 5:00 pm. The Oversight 
Hearing will take place at the Public Hearing Room of the Guam Congress Building. 

Commissioners and Staff are welcome to attend the Oversight Hearing to provide input 
or discussion on the agenda as attached. 

If you have any questions or concerns, please contact Selina Onedera-Salas at 475-4983 or 
send email to sonedera-salas@guamlegislature.org. 

Si Yu'os ma'ase', 

~E.Ridgell 
Attachment: Oversight Hearing Agenda - May 23, 2019 

238 Archbishop Flores St· Suite 906 - DNA Building· Hagatfia GU 96910 
Phone: (671) 475-4983 · Fax: (671) 475-4768 

sen.cridgell@teleguam.net 



Clynton E. Ridgell 
Senator - 35th Guam Legislature 
Committee on Economic Development, Agriculhae, Maritime Transportation, 
Power and Energy Utilities, nnd Emergency Response 

Guam Power Authority Oversight Hearing 
Thursday, May 23, 2019 

9:00 am - 5:00 pm 
Public Hearing Room - Guam Congress Building 

Hagama, Guam 

AGENDA 

I. Salary Adjustments and Bonuses of Individual Guam Power Authority Employees 

II. Cabras Explosion Findings 

III. 120-180MW New Generation Capacity Power Plant (Harmon Cliffline Power Plant) 

IV. Disposal of GPA Waste Oil 

V. Levelized Energy Adjustment Clause (LEAC) Update and Overview 

VI. Net Energy Metering (NEM) Update 

VII. Renewables Portfolio Update 

VIII. Future Capital Improvement Project Plans/Bond-borrowing 

IX. Power Generation for Military Buildup 

238 Archbishop Flores St · Suite 906 - DNA Building . Hagatii.a GU 96910 
Phone: (671) 475-4983 ·Fax: (671) 475-4768 
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Clynton E. Ridgell 
Senator - 35th Guam Legislature 
Committee on Economic Development, Agriculture, Maritime Transportation, Power and Energi; Utilities, and 
Emergency Response 

GUAM POWER AUTHORITY OVERSIGHT HEARING SIGN-IN SHEET 
9:00 am to 5:00 pm 

Thursday - May 23, 2019 
Public Hearing Room · Guam Congress Building 

AGENCY/ 
NAME ORGANIZATION 

Joseph T. Duenas, Chairman Consolidated Conunission on Utilities 

John Benavente, General Manager Guam Power Authority 

Joy Sayama 

Jeffrey Voacolo, Vice President 

Guam Power Authority 

Micronesia Renewable Energy, Inc. 
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Clynton E. Ridgell 
Senator - 35th Guam Legislature 
Committee on Economic Development, Agriculture, Maritime Transportation, Power and Energy Utilities, and 
Emergency Response 
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Clynton E. Ridgell 
Senator - 35th Guam Legislature 
Committee on Economic Development, Agriculture, Maritime Transportation, 
Power and Energy Utilities, and Emergency Response 

COMMITTEE REPORT DIGEST 

I. OVERVIEW 
The Committee on Economic Development, Agriculture, Maritime Transportation, Power 
and Energy Utilities, and Emergency Response convened an oversight hearing with the 
Guam Power Authority on Thursday, May 23, 2019 at 9:00 am in i Liheslatura 's Public 
Hearing Room. 

Public Notice Requirements 
Public Hearing notices were disseminated via email to all senators and all main media 
broadcasting outlets on Thursday, May 16, 2019 (5-Day Notice) and again on Tuesday, 
May 21, 2019 (48-Hour Notice). 

Senators Present 
Senator Clynton E. Ridgell, Chairperson 
Speaker Tina Muna Barnes, Vice Chairperson 
Senator Regine Biscoe Lee, Committee Member 
Senator Jose "Pedo" T. Terlaje, Committee Member 
Senator Sabina F. Perez 

II. SUMMARY OF TESTIMONY & DISCUSSION 
The oversight hearing was Called to Order at 9:00 am. 

Chairman Senator Clynton E. Ridgell: Good morning and welcome everyone to the 
committee on power and energy utilities. Today we are conducting an oversight hearing on 
the Guam Power Authority and so I like to begin first by recognizing my colleagues who 
are here with us today, Senator Regine Biscoe Lee. Thank you for joining us as well as 
Senator Pedo Terlaje. This time I'd like to call up the representatives from both the CCU 
and the GP A to please join us at the table, thank you. Good Morning and just for the record 
if the three of you present at the table could introduce yourselves and your titles, for the 
record. 

Joseph T. Duenas, Chairman - Consolidated Commission on Utilities: Good morning 
Senator Ridgell and members of the committee. My name is Joey Duenas, I'm the 
Chairman for the Consolidated Commission on Utilities. 

John Benavente, General Manager - Guam Power Authority: Good morning, 
Chairman and Senators. My name is John Benavente, General Manager for Guam Power 
Authority. 

Joy Sayama: Good morning I'm Joy Sayama. I work for the executive office of Guam 
Power Authority. 

238 Archbishop Flores St · Suite 906 - DNA Building· Hagatfi.a GU 96910 
Phone: (671) 475-4983 · Fax: (671) 475-4768 

sen.cridgell@teleguam.net 



Guam Power Authority Oversight Hearing Transcript 
May 23, 2019 
Pa e 2 

Chairman Ridgell: Morning. Thank you for joining us today I'd like to begin, I know you 
guys do have a presentation you'd like to make but I'd like to hold that presentation until 
after the questions -- I want to begin first with some questions following the agenda that 
we set. The first item on the agenda has to do with the pay raises that were awarded to 
some GP A employees. My first question, I'm assuming that this would be more appropriate 
for the chairman of the CCU to answer. The first question of course, that a lot of members 
of the public have been concerned about that has been a topic of discussion and concern 
within the community is. Why the open-government law was not followed when discussing 
the pay raises for GP A employees? 

Mr. Duenas: Mr. Chairman and members of the committee. I have to tell you that I was 
never informed by any attorney that there was a provision that required that salaries and 
discussion on salaries be conducted only in open session. I just was never informed. 

Chairman Ridgell: This was just something you weren't aware of that in the law? Is that 
correct? 

Mr. Duenas: I was not aware of and nobody informed me until just this last incident, 
nobody ever wrote to us. The Attorney General never wrote to us. Nobody ever said 
anything to us. At least to me, let me back up for a minute. I can't speak for each individual 
member of the commission. I can tell you nobody informed me. If somebody had informed 
me, I would've considered it my obligation to inform the other members of the commission 
as the chairman of the commission. Nobody informed me and I never informed any other 
commission member either. 

Chairman Ridgell: Is this the first time you've discussed, the CCU has discussed a pay 
raises in executive session or has this been a practice or something that has happened in 
the past? 
Mr. Duenas: This is something that has happened in the past and again I'm saying no 
attorney, nobody has ever said anything to me. I don't, I can't say what has been said to 
anybody else, but I can say that nobody said anything to me. As the Chairman, since I 
became chairman in January of 2015, I never said anything to the other commissioners 
because I didn't know. 

Chairman Ridgell: Before we continue, I'd like to welcome Speaker Tina Mufia Barnes, 
thank you for joining us. So, this is something that has happened in the past? You're saying 
that there have been pay raises that have been discussed in executive session, prior to this 
most recent one that's been the subject of debate? 

Mr. Duenas: There have been people who have been hired and their pay was discussed in 
executive session when they were being hired. I think this goes all the way back to the 
creation of the CCU. I'm only basing that on what I believe to be known -- what I believe 
I know about the record. 



Guam Power Authority Oversight Hearing Transcript 
May 23, 2019 
Pa e 3 

Chairman Ridgell: So as far as you know this has been a practice of the CCU, since its 
inception? 

Mr. Duenas: I believe so, Senator I wasn't there at the inception. My term started in 
January of2009. In January of2009, that's what I know and that seemed to be the common 
practice and no attorney ever stepped forward either outside, inside. Anywhere. By the way 
Senator, also no legislative oversight hearing ever, or committee ever questioned us about 
it either. 

Chairman Ridgell: It's your understanding that this has been a practice at least since you 
been a member of the CCU, and no one's ever mentioned anything about this being 
contrary to Guam law? 

Mr. Duenas: That's correct. Nobody's ever pointed out the law to me or to anybody else. 

Chairman Ridgell: Now, however, the CCU is well aware of this law, correct? 

Mr. Duenas: That's correct Senator. And I might add that the commission at its meeting 
just this past Tuesday, at the special meeting, authorized -- passed a resolution authorizing 
-- passed a motion authorizing the commission to go to court to ask the judge for 
declaratory, I don't know the exact term for it, but in other words to kind of lay out the 
rules of the game. To clarify for us the, we -- when we're going to hire somebody for 
example. According to my reading of the law, but I'd like the law interpreted by the court 
because that's their job, rather than just saying well this lawyer says this this lawyer says 
that I think it would be prudent to ask the court to really interpret the law. For example, if 
we were to hire somebody, we would say go through the interview process and interview 
all candidates in executive session. That I believe is proper, and we would then arrive at a 
candidate that we the Commission believed was the candidate we wanted to hire in which 
case now that I know the law a little bit more, but I'd like the court to tell us we would then 
not be able to talk money with that candidate we would have to come out of executive 
session and as a group decide what we want to offer that candidate. Having decided on a 
number then I, as the chairman, would take that number back to the candidate and say this 
is the offer to you. At that point the candidate would have the option of saying I accept the 
offer, I reject the offer, or I have a counteroffer. Now if there's a counter offer I would then 
have to take that back again to the Commission in an open meeting and say the candidate 
'A' (not identifying anybody because there are private -- privacy rights for employees or 
potential employees) then I would have to take that counter offer back to the Commission 
and say, "The candidate 'A' has rejected our offer and has countered with this offer. Then 
we would discuss that. If in my view of things if we discussed that and the candidate said 
I mean the Commission said, "No we reject that counteroffer." then I would say, "What do 
you want to do?". We want to move on to another candidate then we would stop there go 
back into the executive session to determine who what the next who the next candidate 
would be. Come out of the executive session and go back to the open session and determine 
"Okay. What do we want to offer this candidate?" and we would not publicly announce the 
candidate or the person until after there was an acceptance of the offer for the pay part. 
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That's when we would announce the candidate and the new the new hire. So that goes in 
line with what we believe now is the personal matters are confidential. The appointment, 
employment, and termination are all confidential matters. We do evaluations in executive 
session because sometimes the evaluations are not just to raise pay, but they are for 
disciplinary for what you call progressive discipline. Those things, employees have a right 
to privacy, and we would not make those things known. The portion we violated was the 
portion on the discussion during the executive session of the pay. 

Chairman Ridgell: Correct. What you're saying is you're looking for clarity with regards 
to hiring practices and negotiating salary? And evaluations? 

Mr. Duenas: And also, evaluations - and evaluations. Because I think one of the ways I 
look at it. I'm I would like the court to validate my thought, but this is just my thought, is 
that in an evaluation we would evaluate the people and evaluate them as to below average 
and above average. Then we would come out of the executive session and we would say a 
name, the general manager of GP A, okay we've reviewed him "What is the wish of the 
Commission?". Then somebody would say I want to do this I want to -- that discussion 
would occur in the open session. Once we agreed, on the open session, that would be the 
change in pay. The pay adjustment that would occur. 

Chairman Ridgell: All right so speaking of that along those lines, I know there were some 
FOIA requests made for the copy of the minutes and I believe in your last meeting you 
guys agreed to release those minutes. Is that correct? 

Mr. Duenas: The Commission adopted a motion to release the record of the main meeting. 
They're, we're sorting through that right now. 

Chairman Ridgell: What's being sorted through? Any good actions being made? 

Mr. Duenas: No, no, no. I think the motion was to release the entire record of the meeting. 
But if you read the law Senator and believe me, I've never read the law so much as I have 
in the past few weeks. The law is quite specific and even for the legislature for example. A 
meeting must be recorded and the recording the record of that is that recording of the 
meeting. There's no transcription. If you are meeting in executive session for either 
litigation or potential litigation, then there's a requirement that at that meeting there be a 
court reporter. The court reporter must promptly after that meeting transcribed the minutes 
of that meeting. So, there is now a transcribed record of the meeting and that's only for 
litigation or pending litigation or proposed litigation. Therefore, what happens is at that 
meeting there would be a transcript because and at some point, that transcript would be 
admissible to court. In all other meetings, all that's done is a recording of the meeting and 
that tape is in the open section of the meeting. It's just given out to whoever request the 
copy of it and in this case in the executive session under the law I believe my interpretation, 
is that it is not disclosable with regards to the value the appointment, employment, and 
termination, other than that everything else is releasable. But when it comes to employment 
and termination, because they are dealing with personnel and personnel people have rights 
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to their privacy, according to the law, you do not release that. Even that, it's only recorded 
by a tape again. There's nowhere in the law, the only section of the law that deals and I 
didn't bring the law with me because I have it now, is only for litigation and pending 
litigation. Therefore, I'm waiting for to kind of figure out when you're going to release the 
record of the meeting, just release the tape. If somebody says I want a transcript, I don't 
know how that's done. Because the people speaking in that meeting, have to be identified. 
Who's going to identify that? If you then try to prepare a record and then ask each individual 
Commissioner to say, "Is this you talking?" What happens if a Commissioner forgets 
something or says something? That's why, my thought, and this is something that we have 
to figure out. How do you transcribe? You could maybe produce a synopsis of the meeting 
in written form. But I don't know if you can produce a transcript. Because a transcript can 
only be produced, again following the law, for litigation or pending litigation matters. 
Because the record -- there's a requirement for an authorized court reporter to be in that 
meeting and to actually take the meeting and then transcribe the meeting after, promptly 
after that meeting, to produce a transcription of that meeting. There is not that requirement 
in any other meeting. Some people have asked and the reason why I'm saying this Mr. 
Chairman and members, is because some people are asking for a transcription and I don't 
know how you do that. Anyway. 

Speaker Tina Rose Mufi.a Barnes: Mr. Duenas, just to follow through on your statement. 
In executive session, as it relates to employees and job performance evaluations and that, 
those meetings are recorded but not transcripted? 

Mr. Duenas: Right. That's correct. 

Speaker Mufi.a Barnes: If there is authorization to be released, based on the FOIA, a tape 
can be given. 

Mr. Duenas: That's my interpretation of it right now, Madam Speaker, and that's why I 
said we want to go to court for the court to really clarify all those things. Because according 
to my reading of the law and my you know my interpretation. 

Speaker Mufi.a Barnes: Interpretation. 

Mr. Duenas: I'm not a lawyer. Is the fact that in all the laws there is only, in litigation, 
only in this one section. 

Speaker Mufi.a Barnes: That's right. 

Mr. Duenas: Where it says there must be an authorized court reporter, and promptly after 
the meeting, there must be a transcribed transcription of the report of the meeting. Only in 
that and I didn't bring the law with me. I don't remember its section eight one one one I 
think "c." I have to go look for it. 

Speaker Mufi.a Barnes: Yes. I understand. I just wanted to make that clarification clear. 
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Mr. Duenas: Yeah. Even all meetings I would ask, that's my reading of the law. 

Chairman Ridgell: Ok now with regards to the raises that were approved in that, excuse 
me, that were discussed in that executive session. Why did the CCU believe those managers 
deserved those raises? 

Mr. Duenas: Senator we believe those managers deserve the pay that they get and the 
raises that they got and all the adjustments that they got, because of the performance of the 
people, also because of the job that they're doing. I'm telling, I'm speaking for myself right 
now, but Guam Power Authority and Guam Water Works Authority and I mean no 
disrespect to any other part of the government of Guam. In my opinion, are really essential 
to this island. They are before everything else. No disrespect meant to the first responders 
or anybody else, but the statement is if you don't have power and you don't have water, you 
don't have a community. You won't have tourism. Nobody gets anything. You know that 
the minute there's no power, people are affected. If we don't provide safe drinking water 
and we don't have clean water in our oceans, people get affected. In fact, Guam Waterworks 
is even more sensitive because with that you can get sick. With GPA, if something happens 
you can get killed. If a line drops down, if something happens people can die. It is very, 
very, dangerous work and so therefore, the whole emphasis is that the fact that we have to 
pay these people. In fact, the legislature, recognized this and we were the first, GP A and 
GWA were the first to be authorized to do what they call "CTP" Certified Technical 
Professional. The legislature said you may raise their pay, and we in resolution adopted 
that. So, we have been raising pay for the employees of Guam Waterworks and Guam 
Power, from the bottom all the way to the top. I believe, John you can correct me if I'm 
wrong, but I believe GP A is currently atthe twentieth percentile. 

Mr. Benavente: That's correct. 

Mr. Duenas: I know it's in your presentation --

Mr. Benavente: Yeah, it's in my --

Mr. Duenas: Okay. Let me just. I just wanted you -- is correct. 

Speaker Mufia Barnes: So, the last CTP for the employees was done on what date, Mr. 
Duenas? 

Mr. Duenas: Every year, we're raismg them, Madam Speaker. Every year we're 
progressing, we're moving from -- I think GPA was at a certain percentile and we're 
moving to the fiftieth percentile. Fiftieth percentile means, in the whole electric company 
in the country then we're trying to get to fiftieth percentile of the pay. 

Speaker Mufia Barnes: So, the actual CTP for the employee's survey, or evaluation, that 
was done by the private vendor. When, what year was that done? 
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Mr. Benavente: It was done in 2017 and I believe recently it was updated again. 

Speaker Muna Barnes: So, it's updated annually, is what you're saying? 

Mr. Benavente: Right. 

Speaker Muna Barnes: For the employees, for all the CTP positions. 

Mr. Benavente: Yeah. It's all employees - there's two parts of it. One is surveying the 
market, as to what similar jobs are and that's what the Chairman was talking about. The 
goal is to get to the fifteenth, fiftieth percentile, which will be the competitive marketplace. 
The other part is every year they have a pay for performance evaluation. Based on their 
performance they can get anywhere from two to four percent of their salary, pay 
adjustment, and that's done every year for the employees. The ones that have this are Guam 
Power Authority, Guam Water Works and then also the Airport followed suit, and then 
they also the Commercial Port follow suit. We had this -- we got this authority back in 
about 2004, 2006 with the public law twenty-nine dash one one three and twenty-nine dash 
one five nine. 

Speaker Muna Barnes: Mr. Chair, ifl may continue, ifthe evaluations were John and the 
employees are getting increments. I just heard Mr. Duenas say that you're trying to reach 
that fifty percent percentile. Where are we at with the employees? 

Mr. Benavente: In terms of? 

Speaker Muna Barnes: Because I do know the boats on the ground making it, working 
for the employ -- working for the community. 

Mr. Benavente: Last year we moved all the employees to fifteen, percentile. 

Speaker Muna Barnes: One five? 

Mr. Benavente: One five. Again, the reason for this is that it does cost a lot of money to 
migrate to this. We're slowly inching out without having to try and increase the rate. Now 
this year, we're working to implement the twentieth percentile. Again, it may take a few 
more years before we get to that condition. 

Speaker Muna Barnes: To get to the national level? 

Mr. Benavente: That's correct. 

Speaker Muna Barnes: To the fiftieth. 

Mr. Duenas: To get to the fiftieth percentile. 



Guam Power Authority Oversight Hearing Transcript 
May 23, 2019 
Pa e 8 

Mr. Benavente: So, in terms of the, I'm sorry based on the 2017 market survey, there are 
about a hundred and twenty-seven above the twenty percent and three hundred forty-three 
below. This year were working, looking at our budget, to implement going to the twenty 
percentile for all our employees. That means that this three forty-three that are below, we 
moved up to that twentieth percentile, and those that are above actually stay, those that are 
above actually stayed where they are. 

Mr. Duenas: Except for the pay -

Mr. Benavente: Until the next. Except for the annual pay for performance. Again, part of 
it is really has to -- in my presentation I show why are we doing this. There are some very 
key things that we need to keep in mind. Because the utility, including ifI may, I can just 
some I can just note that sixty about sixty percent of our employees are eligible for 
retirement within the next ten years. 

Speaker Muiia Barnes: Sixty. 

Mr. Benavente: Six zero. Yes. As you can see takes a while to really train, skill, retain. 
We trained employees, more recently a network administrator, for two years to really help 
us with the system. Last week, he's over at the federal government working. We're really 
a training ground and as we've mentioned, we really have to retain because I mean the 
power is not served. Unless we continue to address some of this, we're really back to 
(inaudible). Again, I have that in my presentation really just saying yeah sixty percent. We 
have to attract and retain employees otherwise our utility is going to go backwards. 

Speaker Muiia Barnes: So, maybe the next question, Mr. B. I know there's a follow-up 
by one of my colleagues. On the information maybe to the employees, has there have been 
an updated briefing on how the process of where their status is going to be? Have you taken 
the time to brief the employees as a section as a division or as a whole? So, that they can 
better clarify what's literally going on and that they're not forgotten maybe that's where we 
need to start. 

Mr. Benavente: Yes. Thank you, Madam Speaker. Yes. A matter of policy, twice a year, 
I go out to brief the employees. I brief them even on the migration of the compensation. I 
brief them about we know we're going to build a new power plant and there are going to 
be about sixty to seventy-five personnel that are going to be impacted. I brief them as to 
how and what how we're progressing towards making sure that everyone has a job or one 
way, be retrained, to stay within the utility. My next presentation actually is next week. 
Again, twice a year I go out and I brief all the employees as to this compensation structure 
and everything. 

Chairman Ridgell: Senator Lee has a follow-up question. 
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Mr. Duenas: Okay. Can -- I wanted to address your question though. Before you asked 
about the senior management and those pays which seem high to everybody out there. I 
think it was before I got on the Commission in 2009. We were looking, GP A was looking 
for a generation manager. They're hard to find. They actually found a candidate and the 
candidate wanted a hundred and ninety-two thousand dollars a year as his pay, very 
qualified. Everybody said this is the guy we need. At that time the general manager was 
making a hundred and forty-six thousand dollars. That's just one example of why we need 
to do this. I know people look and see a salary of two hundred twenty-five thousand dollars. 
That salary is merited, that salaries deserved, for the stuff that is for the for the 
responsibility of the General Manager of Guan Power Authority, keeping the power on 
twenty-four seven. Let me further illustrate. After that person was not hired between 2010 
and 2013, the island experienced five island-wide outages. In the matter of three years, 
there were five island wide outages. That was 2013. We do not we have not had any other 
outages, even with the catastrophic failure of three and four. We have not had island wide 
outages or prolonged outages. We've had short outages because we've had problems, 
different problems I'll let John explain. But really, I think it's important that we relate to 
you and the public. That the pay may seem high to everybody else, but the requirements of 
the job is such that you need that caliber of talent of people. The two hundred and twenty
five, two hundred and fifty, is not the outrageous number. It's a very real number. Given 
that experience where we asked somebody to come on board for Generation Manager, they 
wanted a hundred and ninety-two, GP A didn't do it because the manager was only making 
a hundred and forty-six, and then we experienced five island-wide outages in three years. 

Chairman Ridgell: Sure. That's an improvement, of course, over previous years. But the 
previous years are extremely low benchmark. While we do recognize the improvement, 
that's still a low benchmark to set it against. With regards to senior management. Senior 
management. Are they at the same percentile as the rest of the employees? When you say 
the fifteenth percentile, is that all employees up to senior management? 

Mr. Benavente: They are approximately around that range right now, fifteen to twenty 
percent. Yes. 

Chairman Ridgell: Inclusive of senior management? Senior management is at the same 
percentile-

Mr. Benavente: That's correct. 

Chairman Ridgell: As the other employees? 

Mr. Benavente: If you recall I said one twenty-seven are above and three hundred and 
forty-three are below. That's the process, through the years, sometimes they get paid for 
performance, different things and they're move up to. But this is the benchmark for that 
position. Again, we everyone below we (inaudible). 
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Chairman Ridgell: So, a hundred and twenty-seven employees are above the fifteenth 
percentile? 

Mr. Benavente: Above the twenty, percentile. 
Chairman Ridgell: Above the twenty, percentile. 

Mr. Benavente: Yeah. Three hundred and forty-three, below. 

Chairman Ridgell: Are those - does that include is that senior management that's above 
the twentieth, percentile? 

Mr. Benavente: I have to get the numbers. From what my understanding the senior 
management are around anywhere between the fifteen and the twenty, fifteen to twenty
five percent, right now. 

Chairman Ridgell: More than twenty-five percent? Is that what you're saying? 

Mr. Benavente: Fifteen to twenty-five percent, percentile. But no one is way above the 
bar--. 

Chairman Ridgell: So, some senior management are at twenty-five percent, percentile? 

Mr. Benavente: I cannot confirm that right with me, right now, but there may be. Meaning, 
I think with the with the changes, they may be up to about the twenty-five percent for some 
of them. But again, the goal is to fifty. 

Chairman Ridgell: Some senior management are at the twenty-fifth, percentile while the 

Mr. Benavente: But again. Yeah. 

Chairman Ridgell: Majority of employees are at the fifteenth percentile correct. 

Mr. Benavente: But again the, but again Senator. The migration is brought up this way 
and pay-for-performance is the other part of this equation see. So, unless we bring 
everybody all the way up to the fifty and then evaluate pay-for-performance. That's why 
you're going to get these outliers and it's not really indicative of whether we're not taking 
care of the lower grade versus the higher grade. As you can see, we're working to make 
those changes. But there are performances that are that should be rewarded. 

Chairman Ridgell: Sure. Sure. 

Mr. Benavente: And that's why we do some of these things. 

Chairman Ridgell: Sure. 
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Mr. Benavente: So, there is some (inaudible) that occurs, but that's about what I can say. 

Chairman Ridgell: I just wanted to clarify whether or not it's an accurate statement, that 
a majority of the employees would be at the fifteenth percentile. 
While some senior management, at least, are at the twenty-five percentile. 

Mr. Duenas: Yes Senator. I think that that would be an accurate statement, but I'd like to 
expand a little bit on what John just said. Because, there are the two components there's the 
percentile migration and then there's the pay for performance. So, therefore, that's how 
some of those people have been moving up. Because there's a recognition of pay for 
performance, in addition to the migration. I that's, you're correct though. 

Chairman Ridgell: What kind of message do you think it sends to a majority of the 
employees who are at the fifteenth percentile while certain senior level management are at 
the twenty-fifth percentile? 

Mr. Duenas: I think it tells them that we're all going to move to that twenty-five to the 
fiftieth percentile. We want to get there, and we want to get there without --

Chairman Ridgell: Just senior management's moving first. 

Mr. Duenas: No. It depends on the need to attract and retain talent, Senator. So, sometimes 
for the senior management positions, it's harder to attract those people. Let me give you an 
example. If you're looking for linemen, they may be easier to find linemen or to train them. 
But to find Assistant General Manager of operations, is a little harder to find, so to retain 
those people you have to pay them. To find managers of technical, like chief of managers 
of engineering, you have to retain those people. You can't say that everybody is the same. 
There are some positions that are critical more, because their skill sets are a little bit 
different. Another area for example, is what we call power system control center. Power 
system control center is a hard area to fill so you may be trying to get more people in spend 
a little bit more money to get people in. Back I think in 2012, there were two people from 
Guam, people who were part of Guam, who left to the states. They were trained by I don't 
know if it's PG&E, or Southern Edison, but they were trained in California. They indicated 
to GP A that they would like to come home, and GP A was overjoyed and said wow. Yes. 
We really need people like this. They would be a benefit to us, and their skill sets in 
training, they were senior in their positions, they would be able to now train others. Who 
we would be bringing in and moving up the line? We could not offer them enough to come. 
They did not come, and they wanted to and they're from Guam and they wanted to return 
to Guam. When we made an offer, they did not accept our offer. So, therefore, you're right. 
Some people are going to be higher, because if we're trying to attract special talent, then 
you're going to have to pay a little bit more. There is that difference. 

Chairman Ridgell: Senator Lee, do you have some questions? 
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Senator Regine Biscoe Lee: Thank You Mr. Chair, and thank you very much Chairman 
Duenas and Mr. Benavente for joining us this morning. I understand the experience and 
the educational requirements that you're talking about, in terms of filling these senior 
management positions, and I also understand the issues that you're describing with regard 
to recruitment and retention. Because we're not just seeing that at GP A, we're seeing that 
at our public hospital and across our educational system. Trying to attract and retain nurses 
and teachers. So, this is an issue that's across our government, so I can fully understand 
that. But I did want to ask a clarifying question with regard to the percentile that you were 
noting. Is it fifteen, one five, or fifty, five zero? Fiftieth percentile? 
Mr. Benavente: The goal is to get to five zero. 

Senator Lee: Okay. And--

Mr. Benavente: Right now, we are, we're at the fifteen and we're getting ready to migrate 
to twenty. 

Senator Lee: So, you're working on moving up. One of the questions that I had, in terms 
of the fiftieth percentile, when you're looking at the listing. What are the sizes of the 
populations that are served, by the power entities, in that fiftieth percentile? Are we looking 
at small rural communities that are similar in size and power generation to ours, or are we 
looking at large cities like Chicago, or Atlanta, Seattle? 

Mr. Benavente: We hired a consultant to take a look at similar positions and work, so he 
established that and then that survey is updated. I don't know specifically were what are 
the key components of it, but it does recognize different sizes and all of that. I'd like to -. 

Senator Lee: Mr. Benavente. 

Mr. Benavente: I'd like to. Yes. 

Senator Lee: If you could provide that to the committee. I think that it'll just give us a 
better understanding of this survey and we could take a look at it and just try to get a better 
understanding of what you're describing. 

Mr. Benavente: Right. 

Senator Lee: Because I just have so many questions with regards to - We want to make 
sure that we're comparing apples to apples here. 

Mr. Benavente: I agree, Senator and I appreciate that, and I will provide that. If I just may 
make one other additional observation though if you will. It's very natural to try to relate 
everything, everyone based on size. But let's talk about utility. In the states you have many 
utilities, not all of them generate power. Not all of them transmit or distribute, some of 
them just do distribution. So, that's one component that has to be looked at and when you're 
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looking and comparing all salaries, that's not always all noted at the same time, that's one 
part. 

Senator Lee: I understand Mr. Benavente. 

Mr. Benavente: But, the second part --

Senator Lee: You're the one that's bringing the comparison to us and so we just want to 
make --

Mr. Benavente: Yeah. 

Senator Lee: Sure, that we evaluate it. I understand Guam has unique challenges, 
especially with our weather issues that we have here, and the fact that we're so far removed 

Mr. Benavente: That's correct. 

Senator Lee: from everything. We have everything we need to bring everything in. I 
understand that. But you're bringing this to us and you're saying this is our reasoning and 
so we just need to be able to --

Mr. Benavente: Yeah. 

Senator Lee: Take a look at that reasoning and --

Mr. Benavente: Okay. 

Senator Lee: Evaluate it a little bit. 

Mr. Benavente: Okay. Thank you, Senator. Because the issue is here, you're correct, you 
mentioned it. We're thousand of miles away from anybody. There's no connection to any 
grid. Thank you. 

Chairman Ridgell: Thank you, Senator Lee. Chairman Duenas. You had mentioned about 
top to bottom was being everyone top to bottom was being considered for CTP? 

Mr. Duenas: Yes. All employees. 

Chairman Ridgell: Okay. So, all employees are being considered for CTP. 

Mr. Duenas: Yes, and we're trying to move everybody together. 

Chairman Ridgell: Okay just wanted to be clear. 
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Mr. Duenas: I might add, John we'll be giving you more information, but the consultant 
we hired to do the analysis. Basically, looked at similar places and established the panel 
and that's where that comes from. It's not just us saying this way. Okay. 

Chairman Ridgell: Can you give an example of what some general criteria required for 
management to receive a raise. Senior management. 

Mr. Duenas: Okay. So, it for us, it depends on the value of the job. In other words, every 
job has a value. The value for a general manager, in my opinion and this has not been 
adopted by the CCU, is for the general manager of GPA and GWA my values in the two 
hundred and twenty-five to two hundred and fifty range ,and then, you look at the 
performance of the person. So, the value of the job may be two hundred and twenty-five 
thousand dollars, if the incumbent is not producing that, then you may say we're not going 
to pay him two hundred twenty-five thousand dollars. But. If the incumbent is doing a 
really good job, then you're going to pay him more. And when I say really good job, I 
would say that you look at his performance in light of improving the utility and how we're 
going forward, in GPA and GWA both, are utilities that are heavy into planning and 
implementation of plans. So, we look back at, how does GP A function? GP A established 
for example, an integrated resource plan which talks about new generation, the advent of 
renewable energy, how does all of that work. So, senior management the general manager 
and his top senior managers, are charged with getting us there. The point is, as we go 
forward, we are actually ahead of most communities. I will compare us to Honolulu for 
example. We have a smart grid system, Honolulu does not have a smart grid system, they 
don't have smart meters. They don't know really, what they're doing. They are following 
our lead. They always say to us -- boy I wish we had done that. So, that is a sign. Identifying 
crucial pieces and then planning it out. GP A continues to plan to build new power 
generation. Why?! Because they need to do that. So, all when you look at that as you look 
at that and you say wow, we're really doing a really good job. You have to acknowledge 
the work of the senior managers. 

Chairman Ridgell: Is the CCU planning on discussing the potential approval of any raises 
that were rescinded? That's because the raises were rescinded because they were deemed 
illegal because they were conduct -- the discussion was conducted in an executive session. 
Are there any plans now to hold that discussion in an open session, and then reinstate those 
raises? 

Mr. Duenas: Senator. I don't think the CCU has any plans right now. But I would state to 
you that I, and I believe the other commissioners would state that the action we took, was 
a good action. The process was where we went wrong. As the Chairman I take full 
responsibility, I should have chaired the meeting better, and should have known the law 
and I didn't. I'm learning. So, I think in the future we might go back. I can't speak for the 
rest of the commissioners. I would tell you that I still value the top management and would 
go forward and say yeah. Now, there are a lot of different things that we take into account 
and all the things that we took into account, haven't changed. The fact that we are on our 
way to improving the system. Let me tell you, the way let me be blunt. With GP A 
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specifically, GPA has cut the number of employees that it needs by using technology. 
Everybody always says you should use technology and be more efficient be more 
productive. GPA, when I started in 2009 and today, is sixty employees less than when I 
came in 2009. There are sixty employees less, and that's why we're able to make these 
moves without any increase. The last in base rate increase we had was in 2010. The LEAC 
is a different matter, which john will explain to you later. But the base rate has not increased 
since 2013. So, it's been going on six years since we've increased any base rate. But we are 
actually cutting the -- a good example is the smart grid that we put in, the smart meters. 
We had a section that was meter readers and I think there are nine or eleven. More than 
that meter readers, who would go out and read all the meters. That doesn't exist anymore 
and I'm here to tell you can actually reduce your staff and actually lay somebody off. What 
John did, as a manager, is he tried to offer those people he said there are other openings, in 
GP A, which you have to go, and you can compete for. If you want to keep working for 
GPA. We don't have that job anymore of meter readers so you have to see if you can fit in 
somewhere else. You have to compete for it. We had one employee who chose not to apply 
for anything, just thought he should just be given a job, and that employee no longer works 
for the Guam Power Authority. That's an example of the government can reduce its 
employees, the government of Guam can terminate people, not for cause but because there's 
no job for that anymore. That's what we do. 

Chairman Ridgell: Since you brought up the smart meters. I know the smart meters for 
GWA have been defective, a number of them, so they've required replacement. Are there 
any defective smart meters in the Power Authority system? 

Mr. Benavente: Yes, there are, and we've been working with the manufacturer to address 
that under warranty. Secondly, smart meters, is new technology. With any new technology, 
there's an evolution that occurs in cleaning it out making it better, getting all the kinks out. 
Case in point, another new technology is energy storage batteries. It's going take a few 
years before all of the kinks are taking out of it. So, with the smart meters we receive, they 
have a capacitor there that really under direct heat caused the capacitor to leak, causing 
some issues. Meaning, the issue is that it doesn't record what your consumption, your 
consuming but it's not recording it. We've been in the process of identifying those and 
changing them out as they occur. 

Chairman Ridgell: For the power system. 

Mr. Benavente: For the power system. 

Chairman Ridgell: Power meters. 

Mr. Benavente: Yup. So again, that's what's--. 

Chairman Ridgell: About how many, what's the percentage you think of power smart 
meters that are defective? 
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Mr. Benavente: It's about twelve thousand out of the fifty thousand. 

Chairman Ridgell: Twelve thousand!? 

Mr. Benavente: Yep. 

Chairman Ridgell: Almost half?! 

Mr. Benavente: Yes, so again they have identified those --

Chairman Ridgell: Sorry not half. Twelve thousand out of fifty, you said? 

Mr. Benavente: Fifty, five zero. 

Chairman Ridgell: Five zero okay. 

Mr. Benavente: Yeah so again, that's been identified, and it's being changed. They're 
replacing it we take it out they send it to them, and they replace it. 
Chairman Ridgell: Almost a fourth. 

Mr. Benavente: That's right. 

Chairman Ridgell: Almost a quarter, almost twenty-five percent of the power meters are 
defective, correct? 

Mr. Benavente: They failed. 

Chairman Ridgell: The smart meters. 

Mr. Benavente: Yeah. Failed at a certain point because of heat or whatever. Then we're 
replacing them. 

Chairman Ridgell: Do you think that's acceptable percentage of failure? 

Mr. Benavente: Well Senator, usually for proven or long-term technology the expectation 
is about three percent. So, yes. Three percent failure. But again, smart meters like I said --

Chairman Ridgell: This is 25 percent failure. 

Mr. Benavente: But again, Senator like I said, smart meters are new and evolving. 

Chairman Ridgell: Sure. 

Mr. Benavente: So that is not unreasonable to in my mind -
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Chairman Ridgell: Sure, but if I was to buy a product and twenty-five percent of the 
product I purchased, was defective, I think that's a pretty bad rate of defective product. 

Mr. Benavente: But Senator, you won't know that, you may buy a new product like an 
iPhone now right. 

Chairman Ridgell: Sure. 

Mr. Benavente: But then -

Chairman Ridgell: None of my iPhones were defective. 

Mr. Benavente: No, no, but you don't know whether it's defective but then three years 
later you find out all those batteries were exploding or whatever right. 

Chairman Ridgell: None of my iPhone batteries exploded. 

Mr. Benavente: No, no, but again, I'm giving and trying to give similar analogy. 
Therefore, what they have to do they replace the batteries. But that's still technology that 
moves forward. So, similarly nai, in meters in storage batteries the energy storage batteries 
experiencing fires. Throughout the world. So, now they're changing the design the standard 
to make it better. Does that mean energy storage is not going to continue? No. It just 
continues on and it's going to get better and get more proven. But it takes time to do all 
that. So, unfortunately for us, that's what happened to this meter. But the manufactures 
saying and replacing it under warranty, and we continued to address it to minimize any 
impact on the customer. 

Chairman Ridgell: Sure. So, you've replaced human workers, employees, with new 
technology that has been twenty-five percent defective. 

Mr. Benavente: Well Senator, I mean if you put it that way. 

Chairman Ridgell: It's an accurate statement though, correct? 

Mr. Benavente: You know I mean you put it that way without trying to understand what 
I was trying to say, I cannot help. 

Chairman Ridgell: I understand what you're saying. There are new technologies that are 
defective. 

Mr. Benavente: If I knew, if I knew. Senator. 

Chairman Ridgell: But you did say that the acceptable rate is around twenty percent. 
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Mr. Benavente: Senator can I roll you back a minute and say, if I knew today that these 
meters were twenty-five percent, going to be twenty-five percent defected. Do we think we 
would have bought it? The answer is no. Now we're having a product for energy storage 
batteries though, do you think I know whether they're going to have a failure to? We don't. 

Chairman Ridgell: Sure. 

Mr. Benavente: But the system continues to improve. 

Chairman Ridgell: The reason why I brought it up is because Chairman --

Mr. Benavente: So that's all I'm saying. Hindsight is better than foresight no? 

Chairman Ridgell: Sure. The reason why I brought it up is because Chairman Duenas 
used this specifically as an example of a good decision that you've made they resulted in 
lessening the work force and replacement with, replacing the work force with some good 
technology. But you are now admitting that the technology is twenty-five percent, it has a 
twenty-five percent rate of defection. Whatever the word I'm looking for. 

Mr. Duenas: Mr. Chairman. I'm going to give this to the CCU and then we will forward 
it to you. 

Chairman Ridgell: Sure. 

Mr. Benavente: Because again, the issue is about performance and all of that. I believe if 
you just, we try to itemize all the major accomplishment if you will, over the last four years 
that are not what you call it aware. What has been accomplished because that's say that's 
one component of it. Because even with the smart meters, it brought a lot of technology 
that still currently being used about your consumption. You can easily go on there, we can 
easily tum it on and tum it off. There's still a lot of benefits that are good besides that. So, 
again, I have a listing of what that is. Again, it's based on performance and I can send it to, 
first I would like the courtesy to send it to our CCU. Then I will forward to yourself. Again, 
there's so many things mobile workforce management, developing renewables. Case in 
point, just going to Saipan and doing the restoration. Guess what? That save us about three 
million dollars of manpower costs. The refinancing of the bonds. The saving so much 
money a year. There's various things that happen throughout the year other than just 
keeping the power on. I'd like to share that with you please, and if you can take a look at 
it, because that really starts to summarize the performance. Not more importantly of myself 
but of my team. Because I do have an executive management team that work very hard to 
get this thing done. That's what I would like to share. Thanks. 

Mr. Duenas: Mr. Chairman could I further clarify? 

Chairman Ridgell: Sure. 



Guam Power Authority Oversight Hearing Transcript 
May 23, 2019 
Pa e 19 

Mr. Duenas: I used that as an example and it's a good example but let me explain. When 
we had meter readers, there was a lot of human error, also. The smart meters helped us 
correct some of those. We also had, sometimes we were delayed in reading the meters and 
those meters that we had out there, also failed. They also failed every once in a while. They 
are mechanical meters and they have a life and after a certain life they failed. Any new 
technology you implement, is going to go through a process and one of the things that 
people, you have to understand is when you have new technology, it doesn't it's not the 
same in every location. Guam's environment is different than it is in say Arizona, which 
dry. It's hot but it's dry. We have humidity, we have salt air a lot more salt air in our air. 
So, there are all these things that we go through. You have to move forward though because 
the smart meters are required in order to work with renewable energy. If you don't have the 
smart meters you can't track. For example; a rooftop, solar person you can't track the energy 
he brings in and the energy he puts out, something has to track that. The mechanical meters 
were only one way. It just spins and it moves a dial and that all it says is this is what went 
in. If something goes out, it should turn it back, maybe, maybe not. That's why we went to 
a smart meter system. There are a lot of reasons that we do this, it wasn't just to cut people. 
But. I was using that as an example where when we make an improvement and we realized 
that we no longer need a specific group of people, we try to give them every opportunity 
to stay within the system, as we said. Because we find if there's a vacancy that's created, 
we try and see if we can fit them in. But, they have to apply, they have to try, they have to 
qualify like everybody else. If they make a choice not to do that, then they will be out of a 
job, that's all. 

Chairman Ridgell: Sure. I'm all for technology. I support using new technology and smart 
technology. Provided that the failure rate is not as high, as what you guys have just said. I 
mean. He said twenty-five percent. Ifl buy new technology and twenty-five percent of the 
new technology that I buy doesn't work. That's not a good rate. 

Mr. Duenas: Senator, I think what we'll do is let us try and see. Because, this is not unique 
to Guam. Smart meters have failed everywhere else to. This rollout of technology, you're 
having all these little bumps and those little things. We are not unique. You can't say Guam 
power, wow twenty-five percent. Some other areas are even worse. Because as they rolled 
out the technology, they had to do certain things and their systems weren't quite compatible. 
There's a lot of different moving parts that go into new technology. It's not a simple thing 
you just plug it in. Using iPhones for example -- saying oh I got a new iPhone, that's fine. 
But that's not the same as what we're doing because, there's a lot of different moving parts. 

Mr. Benavente: The failure was over a period of seven years. The life is about fifteen to 
twenty. So, you are going to expect that the meters are going to have to be replaced in 
fifteen to twenty years. So, in half the time twenty-five percent which is you know higher 
than what really should be. But it's still, the expectation is about three percent per year. 
That's why even though it's twelve, I forgot, I was just assisted here in saying that this is 
really a failure over the seven years. 
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Chairman Ridgell: Okay, so with regards to the smart grid and the smart meter system. I 
remember in the beginning and forgive me, I may not I mean I may not be aware of this, 
but I remember in the beginning it was touted as a way so that residents could be able to 
track their power usage in real time. Is that currently available? 

Mr. Benavente: Yes. Yes, that's correct. It's real-time, so that they can again, manage their 
consumption you know to control their cost if possible. Again, the other thing is. All the 
other functions, turning on turning off and getting historical data of your consumption for 
years, all of that. You can go online and watch your bills. That's all available. 

Chairman Ridgell: So, if you sign up for the if you sign up, you have to fill out something 
right? You sign up for it the program and then you're able to track your consumption in 
real time? 

Mr. Benavente: Yes. My energy dot come. Just get on the line and your number and your 
password. 

Chairman Ridgell: Thank you. If my colleagues have any other questions with regards to 
raises. 

Senator Jose "Pedo" Terlaje: Just a couple of items. Joey and John. I would like you to 
pass this on to the members of the board and the employees. Because for the most part, the 
general public is in agreement with the services that you do. I just want to thank you all for 
giving us that service. Like I said the general public is an agreement with the services, the 
outstanding jobs that you guys are doing. One thing that I wanted to bring up is, several 
months ago we had this layoff of some of the employees, and I was thinking. Did we take 
care of those employees? 

Mr. Benavente -Yes Senator. We went, this is the process we went to first we transferred 
some employees so that they can relearn certain skills. Then unfortunately after two or 
three years, there was some concern by them, and they filed with the Civil Service 
Commission. Civil Service Commission said, we should go through this process of layoff, 
to be able to effectuate that. So, then we did follow the process that process that 
recommended by civil service and we did set up where we set up new position descriptions 
of various types. Then open positions in various areas and allow them to apply for that 
position. Two of them did apply. One was slotted into one position, second one actually 
was be working towards the second position, but eventually we negotiated, and he moved 
on to another part of the government. Then the third the third one actually never took any 
initiative to apply for any of the other. Therefore, the process that we followed, basically 
ended up without him having a job. Which is now again, he they continue to work with 
civil service so that case is not finished yet. That's the process. 

Senator Terlaje: John I understand that the reason for those, layoff, it was decided that 
the modernization of technology is a result of that. You don't really need those service 
anymore. However, with the modernization of these technologies, that GPA is venturing 
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in -- Is there any plans in the future that we can maybe reduce the power rate for our 
residents on Guam? 

Mr. Benavente: Yes Senator. In fact, part of my presentation will show some of the 
initiatives that are work that are in on the way being implemented that will reduce, most 
especially the LEAC portion of the bill. The hundred and twenty megawatts of contract for 
solar PV which we just sign, utility scale, is going to generate, sell to us about two hundred 
eighty million kilowatt hours a year at eight and a half cents. If you take the fifteen point 
four cents that we're paying today, for fuel, minus the eight and a half. That difference, that 
energy translates to nineteen million dollars a year on fuel cost savings. If that was already 
on the line. That's going to be on the line in 2021, they'll be groundbreaking soon. Again, 
there are many initiatives that we're working on to reduce the rates, most especially on the 
fuel component site. 

Chairman Ridgell: Thank You John what about the --

Mr. Duenas: Senator, could I just add a clarification? I love John but, it's not to reduce the 
rates. It's to reduce the bill. In other words, what we're trying to reduce is the LEAC portion. 

Senator Terlaje: Okay. 

Mr. Duenas: In other words, when you have solar power coming in. What are you 
reducing? You're reducing the need to bum oil and that will translate to lower bill for our 
customers. Not necessarily a lower rate. The base rate that John needs for transmission, 
distribution, for office staff for everything else. That one we're not going to reduce but 
we're not increasing either. We have no plans to increase that. 

Senator Terlaje: Joey, I would think that with the solar system that is happening today. 
Don't you think that GP A is losing money out of that? 

Mr. Duenas: No. No Senator actually, John, let me - no. What we're embarking on is, 
utility-scale solar. Which is what is being embarked on in Kauai, for example. They are, if 
we do this, we can cut the cost and thus cut the bill to our ratepayers. Solar is not, let me 
give you an example; the first solar project that was completed was down in Layon. That's 
about twenty-five megawatts. That's currently nineteen cents a kilowatt hour that's what 
we're paying those people. The hundred and twenty megawatts that we are bringing in, is 
already a contract we signed, eight and a half cents per kilowatt hour. Therefore, when you 
take a look at that and as we drop the price as we get these better contracts and drop the 
price. Then we'll be able to spend less money buying oil. If we spend less money buying 
oil, then the costs go down, and the bill will go down. Not the rate. The bill will go down. 
Okay. That's what I just need to clarify that. There's not the intention of lowering the rate, 
but there's the intention of lowering the bill people get. 

Chairman Ridgell: Technically, does that lower the fuel recovery surcharge rate? 
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Mr. Duenas: Senator, what it does is it doesn't lower the fuel recovery surcharge rate, it 
lowers the amount we buy. The price of the barrel of oil, we don't control. The price of the 
oil could go up to eighty dollars. Could go up a hundred dollars. Could come down to fifty. 
What it does, what we're talking about is the volume of oil that we will buy. If we can lower 
the volume of the oil that we buy, then that lowers the amount of money that we spend. 
That would then be a relief. Let me give you an example. John has a good slide on this, but 
if you he looked back several years. I think it's 2016 John, where you have the lowest 
amount for oil purchase? The one fifty-one? In 2016, for example, the amount of oil we 
bought in FY 2016 was around a hundred and fifty million dollars. That's what we paid for 
the whole year's oil. That contrasts with the oil that was before that, where it was like two 
hundred and fifty, two hundred and twenty. Because the price of oil went down, it was 
stupid it went crazy, went down real low. I think it was down to about thirty, forty dollars 
a barrel and when that happens, when we buy oil, we buy it based on the current price of 
oil. There's a week ahead and a week behind they average the price and that's what we have 
to pay. That price for that year was one hundred and fifty-one. If we cut down the volume 
of oil and everybody was very happy in 2016. People were coming up to me and saying 
thank you. Thank you. I had one businessperson for example. Payless supermarkets. They 
came up to me and said, "this year our electricity bill was down by a million and a half!". 
Imagine what they could do with a million and a half. If we get to the point where we buy 
less oil the price is high, but we buy less oil. We'll be able to give our customers a lower 
bill. That's the game plan. These are, see these are all the initiatives that John and his people 
are coming up with. How do we get to that point? There's a lot of things. One. I'm stealing 
some of his thunder but, John is talking about improving the system. He's going to tell you. 
There's so many things he's improving, to improve customer service and it takes money 
but we're not asking for any rate increase even the new power plants. We're not asking for 
any rate increase. We're trying to cut the cost on the bill. The rate we can't cut but, we're 
going to try to live within that rate. Anyway, thank you very much Senator. 

Senator Terlaje: The only reason I ask that, with this solar system that's going on. I figured 
that the power rates on individual residence, would go down. Because that's what it does. 
I figured that maybe if that thing really goes into a whole lot of people that want solar 
system at their residence. I think that GPA would probably, in the long run, would continue 
to maybe lose money. 

Mr. Duenas: No Senator, wait let me explain. The system that we looked a lot at is the 
system on Kauai. The system on Oahu is a lot bigger. The system in Kauai is a smaller 
isolated system also. Now they're smaller than ours. Where they're really smaller. Their 
peak load is about seventy megawatts. In Kauai, they have limited rooftop solar to one 
percent of their peak load. In other words, when they when enough people put solar in their 
roof and they had point seven megawatts. They stopped. No more rooftop solar. What they 
are doing, is what we're trying to do. Which is the big utility scale solar and this is what 
everybody in the country is going to. Utility scale solar. Because then, everybody benefits. 
If you put your solar on your roof as a customer, you get a benefit. But your neighbor 
doesn't. If you build utility scale solar and we're able to save on the fuel, all the customers 
get to benefit. That's the difference, that's why the emphasis on us. Now, we're going to we 
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have a bid out right now that hopefully is going to (inaudible) for another forty megawatts 
of utility scale solar. That will bring us up to about a hundred and eighty megawatts of 
utility scale solar, okay. We support the legislation that Senator Shelton and I think some 
of you good people are also signed on to, of going to fifty percent by 2035. We're going to 
do that. To do that is going to take more improvements to the transmission and distribution 
system, to be able to handle that. 

Chairman Ridgell: I want to I want to kind of roll it back a little bit. We'll be talking 
about solar, later on in the agenda. 

Mr. Duenas: I'm sorry, it just came up. 

Chairman Ridgell: No problem, understood. I just want to clarify. We'll get to solar a 
little later on in the agenda. I wanted to allow -- did you have any more questions? Senator 
Lee? 

Senator Lee: Thank you Mr. Chair, and thank you Chairman Duenas. I know that you had 
mentioned earlier in the hearing that you are unaware of the law, in terms of going to 
executive session. "Jgnorantia juris non excusat" is a legal principle, holding that a person 
who is unaware of the law may not escape liability for violating that law merely because, 
this person was unaware of its content. I'm just going - I say this, with the caveat that as 
hard as I try, I'm not a legal expert. I'm constantly reading and rereading and going back 
for legal interpretation. So, my question to you gentlemen. Was legal counsel present at 
this executive session? 

Mr. Duenas: Yes ma'am. 

Senator Lee: The discussion surrounding the pay raises, included a raise for that individual 
as well. 

Mr. Duenas: Okay let me clarify. When the discussion revolved around the pay raise for 
the legal counsels, they weren't in the room. They were out of the room. 

Senator Lee: But pay raises for all the other individuals, legal counsel was present? 

Mr. Duenas: Okay. When we were discussing evaluations and we made the mistake of 
also discussing the money, they were in the room. But. I'd like to comment that you are 
right. Ignorance of the law is no excuse, but it goes back to intent. 

Senator Lee: Right. 

Mr. Duenas: In other words, if you have knowledge of the law and you break the law --

Senator Lee: and you purposely intend. 
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Mr. Duenas: Then there is more liability because you knew, and you broke it. If you didn't 
know, and again, if nobody ever brought it up. What I'm saying is not only did the CCU 
not know about it but, we've been in existence now since 2003. No legislative oversight 
hearing ever said anything to us about it. the Attorney General never questioned us and 
said, "by the way how are you doing this?". Nobody ever brought this up. Nobody. So, I 
could State for the record. Nobody ever told me. I didn't know, now that I know, it's a 
whole different ballgame and that's why the CCU has asked for a court interpretation. 

Senator Lee: I see. 

Mr. Duenas: You know that's why it's important to go. Because you folks write the law, 
the attorneys all have opinions on what that says. Every attorney will have an opinion on 
that, even the Attorney General, but they're all attorneys. As commissioner Sanchez loves 
to say. But the court is the one that will interpret that law. So, when they interpret the law, 
then that that's clear that's it. There's no there's no disagreement while our attorney said this 
your attorney said that no. That's why it, the CCU took three actions recently in the meeting 
that we held. It was a special meeting and was recessed and resumed and recess and resume 
and we posted a notice on the board, on the door and we took three actions. We rescinded 
the pay raise and required that the money be paid back. They voted to release the record. 
And we voted to seek clarification and interpretation from the court. Which, I believe is 
the if you're looking at how do you what liability do we have, as a commissioner. Then you 
have to say, well what did you do prudently? What did you do once you found out? Well 
if you move to correct the action that's okay that goes to your favor. If you say we need 
further clarification, and you move to go and get legal clarification from the court, the 
interpretation. The final say. Then that's prudent. In other words, it's a proof that you didn't 
know and yes you should have known but you didn't know, and nobody ever told you. But 
once you found out, you're immediately taking action to correct it. 

Senator Lee: Thank you Mr. Chairman. I think yeah it goes back to intent. I agree with 
you and I think this is also a really great opportunity for all the boards and commissions 
and for all elected officials as well. To just look at what has happened here. Also, the 
subsequent actions. I understand where you're going with this. In terms of the movement 
to correct and the prudent steps that were taken after the fact. We often have issues on our 
side in terms of open government law and really making sure that we have strict adherence 
to that five-day and the forty-eight-hour notice. Sometimes that forces us to postpone 
certain hearings and business because we want to ensure that we are transparent, every step 
of the process. That's because we know better and that's because somebody -- you know, 
there was an issue in the past and we all ended up learning. I hope that that's what the result 
of this situation, will be for everyone. 

Mr. Duenas: That is the position at the Commission. That's where we would like to go and 
that's why I'm repeating myself. That's why we are also asking for a judicial interpretation 
and you're right. What we get from the judge, what we get from the court and the 
interpretation, is going to be good for the rest of the government. Because now everybody 
else will say oh that's the way you do it. They don't even have to say Attorney General 
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what's your opinion. No, the court has interpreted the law. That's a good thing for the whole 
government, you're right. Thank you. But again, I reiterate. We're trying to correct and 
we're I think if you see. We're being prudent as possible in trying to address this. Nobody's 
trying to hide. 

Senator Lee: Thank you Mr. Chair. 

Chairman Ridgell: Thank you Senator Lee. Just to, sort of. Well let me backtrack a little 
bit. There was the discussion with regards to the meters the smart meters that have some 
have been found to be defective. Those smart meters that are failing, is that resulting in any 
back billing, or will it result in back billing? 

Mr. Benavente: Yes correct. They'll be resulting in back billing, as per the law, but no 
more than four months. Secondly, there is an estimated billing that goes on the bill, at least 
for the three-month-period, to minimize the back billing. Because, take an example where 
if a customer normally pays two fifty a month and then we just made that zero for three 
months and then back bill them. It's very hard to recover from a seven hundred fifty-dollar, 
billing. Therefore, what it does is it looks at your prior history and for three months, 
estimates so that you're right there around the two fifty. Then when the bill when the 
consumption comes up, the actual consumption, then they make the adjustment on that so 
that it minimizes any impact on the customer. 

Chairman Ridgell: So, the back billing is four months, right? That's what you're allowed 
to back bill up to four months. 

Mr. Benavente: No more than four months yes. 

Chairman Ridgell: The back billing though, how is the rate. I'm sorry. How is it back 
billed? Is it, you mentioned it's based on three months, worth of consumption? Is it an. 
average of your three most recent months of consumption? Prior to the failure of the -

Mr. Benavente: The back billing is based on two actual --

Chairman Ridgell: after the failure and the replacement, I'm sorry. 

Mr. Benavente: from the replacement of the meter. Two months of consumption. 

Chairman Ridgell: Okay. So, when the meters replaced, then you track usage for 

Mr. Benavente: Two months. 

Chairman Ridgell: Two months. 

Mr. Benavente: Take the average daily amount. 
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Chairman Ridgell: The average daily amount of those two months. 

Mr. Benavente: You compare with what you bill them and make adjustment as the -

Chairman Ridgell: What happens though if those two months happen to be in the summer 
months where it's hotter and so usage is typically higher? Then you might be back billed 
for cooler months. 

Mr. Benavente: Yeah. It's not stated in the law or anything like that oh that's all that we 
follow. But you are correct. There could be some there could be some difference. 

Chairman Ridgell: Depending on the time of year. 

Mr. Benavente: So, you try- yeah. Again, that's just the way it's set up. 

Mr. Duenas: The law is currently written -- says you do the two months average and then 
you back bill for that portion. If the law were going to be amended and say you have to 
take a twelve-month average going backwards, maybe that might address some of the 
things. But we follow the law right now and that's what it says. but that's something that 
you folks --

Chairman Ridgell: Okay. 

Mr. Duenas: Could take a look at. 

Chairman Ridgell: Interesting point, thank you. Just to wrap up this section on the pay 
raises to be clear. Of course, it's understood now what the law is with regards to discussing 
it in the public session. But you've maintained that you weren't aware of that and we 
understand that. But I just wanted to be clear also that you stand by the decision for the 
raises. Meaning not necessarily the mechanism by which the raises were discussed, but 
rather that the raises were warranted. 

Mr. Duenas: Madam, I mean Mr. Chairman. Yes. The amount of pay that we want to pay 
our people, is warranted. I stand by that. I can't speak for the other commissioners, but I 
will tell you I stand by that. I will tell you that in the next four years you will not believe 
the evolution of GP A and the benefits to the ratepayers. That's the goal. You're going to 
hear a lot from John, if you want, or if you just want to look at his. We are going to continue 
to improve the system where we are looping the island, with an underground transmission 
grid system, to further protect. He's trying to put more systems in underground in a hybrid. 
He's come up with all these different plans. He's done pilot projects. He's done a pilot 
project, he's trying to do a pilot project with the mayor's in terms of vegetation, because 
that's a real problem for us, and we've tried different things. You know based on the totality 
of where we're going, I would tell you. I believe in the raise. Let me be clear, for full clarity 
though we were also informed that we're not allowed to give out bonuses. Therefore, we 
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gave John a bonus. That has to be repaid. If we go forward, we may increase his pay, 
because we can't give him a bonus. 

Chairman Ridgell: So, you may even give a larger raise than what was approved, 
previously? 

Mr. Duenas: Yes. Let me go back to what I said earlier. I believe that for the pay for the 
general managers of GPA and GWA. It's in the neighborhood of two twenty-five to two 
fifty. We said if you're at two twenty-five, that's a good. After three years or four years, I 
think after four years we said we will give you a bonus. We won't increase your pay, but 
we'll give you a bonus for your period. To recognize your performance. Okay. If we don't 
have that mechanism, which I now have learned we don't have, then the only way we can 
recognize that is to actually increase his pay again. That, I don't know what else to tell you 
Senator. I want to be very clear and that's why I brought it up. We cannot give out bonuses 
but if you're going to recognize somebody who is at where he should be, where the job 
should be. Then you have to increase his pay. 

Chairman Ridgell: Okay. All right I want to move on now to the second item on the 
agenda. Which is the Cabras explosion update. The very first question I have is. What has 
been determined to be the cause of the Cabras explosion? 

Mr. Benavente: We hired the independent consultant to determine the root cause of that 
proje - thing, and of course that's even and the result of that study was that the cause was 
inconclusive. They were saying it was part of the governor system area, controlling the 
fuel. But there's too much damage to determine what actually happened. And again, even 
the governor was taken by the insurance company. Was sent back so that they can do 
analysis further in it. They didn't, we didn't know but they say I don't think they came out 
with anything further. So again, that's the status of that thing. 

Chairman Ridgell: So, the cause of the explosion hasn't been determined. 

Mr. Duenas: That's correct Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Benavente: It's inconclusive, yeah. 

Mr. Duenas: It's inconclusive and when we settled the claim, then that made the 
determination of the cause moot for us. In other words, we were claiming, and we were 
trying to say this is-

Chairman Ridgell: Sure, sure. I mean that actually that I don't understand. I mean 
determination of the cause may be moot to you in your mind. But I don't think in the 
people's mind that the cause is a moot issue. 

Mr. Duenas: Mr. Chairman. --



Guam Power Authority Oversight Hearing Transcript 
May 23, 2019 
Pa e 28 

Chairman Ridgell: The reason for determining a cause is to prevent --

Mr. Duenas: Yes, except. Except that when --

Chairman Ridgell: Prevent it from happening again. 

Mr. Duenas: Except that when we settled the claim, we had to sign a nondisclosure 
statement. We negotiated in the settlement of the claim, when you reach a point where you 
say this is the amount of money and in our evaluation, we say that is a sufficient amount. 
Then what happens is, you settle the claim you sign a nondisclosure. What we were able 
what GP A and the CCU were able to negotiate, was a negotiation with the claimant, with 
the insurance company, that the settlement agreement could be released to the oversight 
Chairman at the legislature, the Speaker, the governor, and the PUC, in other words the 
people who regulate us. We were able to negotiate that clause into the contract into the 
settlement agreement and when we settled, we did provide the oversight chairman at that 
time, the speaker at that time, the governor and the Public Utilities Commission with the 
settlement agreement. That's when we look when somebody asks us, we say, it's all in the 
settlement agreement. That's all we can talk about. 

Chairman Ridgell: Could you provide that to me? 

Mr. Duenas: Sure. John, do you have it? I think he brought it with him, for you. 

Chairman Ridgell: Okay. Since it has not been determined exactly what the cause was or 
became inconclusive. Was anyone found to be at fault for it? 

Mr. Duenas: 

Mr. Benavente: No, Senator. 

Chairman Ridgell: So, there's no findings of any human error or anything along those 
lines. 

Mr. Benavente: No. 

Mr. Duenas: None. 

Mr. Benavente: It could be speculation here and there but again that's why we hired an 
independent consultant to determine. We have to rely on the independent, who is the expert 
in the field, for that type of machine so that's inconclusive. 

Chairman Ridgell: Senator Lee. 

Senator Lee: Thank You Mr. Chair. Mr. Benavente, we hired this consultant. How much 
was the consultant paid to come up with this determination. 
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Mr. Benavente: I'm not quite sure. Around a hundred thousand or something, but I can 
give you the number. 

Senator Lee: And GP A 1s satisfied with the outcome, were satisfied with it being 
inconclusive? 

Mr. Benavente: Let me, first of all again. Even ourselves when we look at it. There was 
no way that we conclude, again we could make some assumptions as to why things may 
have happened this way. Maybe there were some speculation by others that said maybe the 
operator should have done this and done that. But again --

Senator Lee: Was there a report? Was there a report given by this consultant? 

Mr. Benavente: Yes. Yes. 

Senator Lee: That kind of outlines all of those things. And are there steps --

Mr. Benavente: Yes, there was a report provided. 

Senator Lee: Okay. And is GPA taking a look at all of those different potential causes and 
mediating those and making sure that those are all addressed going forward? 

Mr. Benavente: Yeah. The other reason is this. The only machines that are like that is 
Cabras three. Therefore, it's really for us. If we were going to bring back Cabras three and 
restore it, it was very important for us to understand what that root cause is. Even if it was 
inconclusive, we would look and make changes in the system to make sure that we took 
care, because again for the for the safety of everyone. However, because we have decided 
to decommission Cabras three and four, therefore, the issue of whether we knew or so is 
really not important to us at this point in time. More important, because we have settled 
also with the insurance company and there's no issue of back and forth on whether we 
should get paid or not. All of those were settled out. 

Senator Lee: The insurance company was satisfied with, GP A, hiring this consultant with 
the conclusion that it was inconclusive, and the insurance company was satisfied? 

Mr. Duenas: Senator the insurance company agreed to settle with us for an amount of 
money, that John will provide to you, and once they made that agreement we have no 
further interest in what they want what they want to do. They can do whatever they want 
to do after. 

Senator Lee: Is our insurance coverage more costly today, because of this initial incident? 

Mr. Benavente: The first year after the explosion, while we were going through the 
process of claims and everything, it did go up about two million dollars. Then last year we 
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went out and bid for a policy and actually the cost went down two million dollars. Which 
is about where we, it's a little less than where we were before the explosion. That kind of 
indicates that the insurance, industry had faith enough in Guam Power Authority to give 
us a reasonable rate despite the having that claim. We're very fortunate that it happened 
that way. It went up two for the first year and then dropped right down and we have a five
year insurance policy right about the rate, little below the rate it was before, prior to the 
explosion. 

Chairman Ridgell: Thank You Senator Lee. How much money in total insurance was paid 
out for the explosions? 

Mr. Benavente: One twenty-five point eight. 

Chairman Ridgell: What will that money be used for? 

Mr. Benavente: One moment Senator, please. I just ah -

Chairman Ridgell: Sure. 

Mr. Benavente: There's the settlement, Senator, one twenty-five point eight and these are 
the uses of the funds and including again the repairs that have to be made or ongoing to 
keep, to protect the system. Aggreko unit, bringing on the temporary power. Buying land 
for the new power plant. All of it ended up to be, at the end a NetCast of about seventy
three million that we have today. Which we are using for the new power plants. In effect 
really the total here is almost a hundred million of this is really being used for production. 
About sixteen million for the new for the temporary, forty-megawatt, up in Yigo. Which 
we are going to own at the end. Then the seventy-three million, the eighty-three million for 
the land and the balance in the bank is all going towards the new power plant. The original 
cost of the plant was one twenty-five, we used it for twenty years and all of that. We 
basically got a hundred twenty-five back at the end. 

Chairman Ridgell: Okay. That sounds like a good settlement. 

Mr. Benavente: Yeah. It worked out well, I think. Because if you recall, I'm sorry not if 
you recall. We were under US EPA, where we have to convert that plan to make it comply. 

Chairman Ridgell: Right. 

Mr. Benavente: It would have cost us money and then it really would not have run well. 
So, we were thinking maybe we should decommission it. It's kind of a gift, if you will, that 
we were able to tum that around and use that money. Because if you take that hundred 
million dollars over the next twenty-five years. It's pays it like almost a seven million 
dollars a year debt service, times twenty-five years, that's a hundred and sixty-eight
million-dollar benefit for the rate payer. 



Guam Power Authority Oversight Hearing Transcript 
May 23, 2019 
Pa e 31 

Chairman Ridgell: Okay all right so speaking of, actually the next item is the Harmon 
power plant status power plant in the Harmon cliff line. I'm sorry. Senator Lee has one 
more question. 

Senator Lee: Thank You Mr. Chair. Mr. Benavente, on the insurance summary, it's page 
9, under claims. So, the for the property claim it's a hundred and twenty-five million and 
then for the environmental claim it's eight hundred and eighty-four thousand three hundred 
and forty-two dollars correct? 

Mr. Benavente: Correct. 

Senator Lee: Then if you, what follows are the expenditures. We're finding expenditure 
for environmental cleanup at one point one six three. Could you just detail, give us an 
additional detail on the environmental claim and then additional detail on the 
environmental cleanup. Was the cost, was the amount of this environmental claim -

Mr. Benavente: Yeah. This -

Senator Lee: supposed to cover all of the environmental cleanup --

Mr. Benavente: Yeah -

Senator Lee: because it looks like we went over here? 

Mr. Benavente: There's a part of the insurance for the facility and then we had another 
insurance for environmental cleanup. That's what the settlement is on. That 800. And so, 
then this cost is the environmental cleanup around the plant was a part of the main 125 
million. 

Mr. Duenas: I think ifl could help you, Senator. Basically, when we looked at this, at the 
total settlement of $125,884, 342 and we said, "That's a good number." How they actually 
paid us is they said, "Well, we're giving you so much for the environmental or we're giving 
you so much for your basic claim." That's not really material to us. It's the bottom-line 
number and then we spread it out. When we got to the bottom-line number and they said 
that's the number and we said, "Okay." I said in the very beginning, when this happened, 
that it would probably take us two-and-a-half years to settle the claim. And it took us two
and-a-half years, we actually got there. That's the benefit of management and I like to 
acknowledge Commissioner Francis Santos was the one that took the lead for the board 
because the board stayed out, just had one commissioner and his background is insurance. 
So, he was very crucial in providing the lead and helping management. 

Chairman Ridgell: Okay, thanks. Thank you, Senator Lee. So, with the Harmon power 
plant, where are we at in the procurement process? 
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Mr. Benavente: The technical submittals from the proponents were revealed and three 
were passed to go forward to the bid pricing. So, from this schedule, you see that those 
three will have until May 31 to submit their prices and there'll be a public opening the 
following Monday. And then we will evaluate it so that we are targeting somewhere in 
September to bring to the CCU and the PUC and a contract in place before the end of the 
year for the 180 megawatts. 

Chairman Ridgell: And how much is the total estimated cost for that plant? 

Mr. Benavente: It's estimated to be three to four-hundred million. That includes the power 
plant, the pipelines, the 15-mile pipeline for natural gas and ultra-low sulfur diesel all the 
way down to Cabras Island. 

Chairman Ridgell: With the pipelines, is it correct there's going to have to be two new 
pipelines constructed? 
Mr. Benavente: That's correct. One for ultra-low sulfur diesel and one for natural gas. 

Chairman Ridgell: Where will those pipelines run? You said it's about 50 miles. 

Mr. Benavente: Yes, we have an existing easement where we were sending heavy oil from 
Cabras all the way up to Tanguisson power plant and it's going through Navy property and 
then, again, it goes through Mongmong, Ordot, CHa'ot river area, all the way up to Tiyan, 
then down route 16, all the way across, toward the power plant area. So, there's an existing 
pipeline where even the Air Force line that goes all the way up to Andersen. It's all in the 
same (inaudible) easement. 

Chairman Ridgell: So that $300 to $400 million cost 1s inclusive of that pipeline 
construction. 

Mr. Benavente: That's correct. 

Mr. Duenas: Mr. Chairman, could I further clarify? 

Chairman Ridgell: Yes. 

Mr. Duenas: That's the estimate for construction cost. We really don't know what the 
construction cost is going to be because this is a purchase agreement with what we call a 
public/private property partner. So, what we're going to be paying them is we're going to 
be buying kilowatts from them similar to what we're doing with the utility scale solar. So, 
really, that's why we said we don't anticipate a rate-increase when we put this new power 
plant in because we will be buying power from them. And with what we're saving by taking 
out the older power plants. The cost will balance for us. 

Chairman Ridgell: What is the power purchase agreement going to be? 
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Mr. Duenas: It's a 25-year power purchase agreement and that's the bid that will be open. 
That's the pricing that they're doing right now. By May 31 5

\ I believe, is the date they will 
submit a price and say this is what we want to get paid per kilowatt hour delivered. 

Chairman Ridgell: Is there a range that you guys are looking at per kilowatt hour? 

Mr. Duenas: We won't know until they submit their bid. The three currently bidding 
people who have met all the technical specifications, they'll be submitting a bid. We don't 
have a range in that. We just want to see-

Chairman Ridgell: Is there a ceiling at which where it wouldn't be economical? 

Chairman Benavente: Not at this point, Mr. Chair. I believe there was an estimate made 
by our engineering consultant before the project that we thought is conservative so the 300 
to 400 million is, again, something that estimate is. But, again -

Chairman Ridgell: I'm talking specifically with regards to what the per kilowatt hour 
purchase agreement would be. 

Mr. Benavente: Again, let me clarify, the (inaudible) is an IPP projects that gives you a 
capacity fee you pay and then (inaudible) and it also gives you the efficiency of the power 
plant. So, although three components have to be looked at over the 20/25-year period to 
determine which of those type of power plant - which power plant gives you the least cost 
net percent value. That's why even though we can itemize maybe a kilowatt hour, per se, 
but because there's three major components to this over a period of time, it's hard to say 
what. But we know that the new power plants is going to be much more efficient so that 
we can reduce the amount of oil that we bum today. The fuel is going to cost more because 
it's clean fuel - ultra-low sulfur diesel versus the dirty oil - the cheap oil that we burnt today 
but we can't bum anymore because US EPA. So, there's going to be a balancing act. 

Chairman Ridgell: Will that result in an increase to the LEAC? 

Mr. Benavente: We believe it'll be a balancing act together with the 180 megawatts of 
renewables that are actually 160 megawatts ofrenewables coming on the line. We see that 
there'll be a decrease of the LEAC. I think the presentation shows that by 2021, the price 
of energy for the consumer is going to go down based on burning out low-sulfur diesel and 
the renewables. And then it will go even further down if we added natural gas but we're 
not at the point yet where we're saying let's go for natural gas because we still need the 
power plant and everything else before we can bring in natural gas. So, we have time to 
evaluate that more. 

Chairman Ridgell: For liquid natural gas, will it also require some sort of facility to 
receive it at the port? 



Guam Power Authority Oversight Hearing Transcript 
May 23, 2019 
Pa e 34 

Mr. Benavente: That's correct. You need what you call floating storage and gasification 
facility. That's about another $200 million investment. 

Chairman Ridgell: So that's not included in the $300 million to $400 million -

Mr. Benavente: That's not included. However, the savings from just a few differences 
between natural gas and heavy and oil, it's going to more than pay for that. I'm thinking 
my estimate is that we can put in natural gas in the equivalent price per barrel, there will 
be somewhere around $55-$57 a barrel. So long as oil is below, above that, natural gas is 
saving us money. That's where right now the oil price is 73. If we had natural gas, we will 
be saving that much more money. 

Chairman Ridgell: You would still have to do another RFP or something for that 
gasification facility? Storage and gasification facility? 

Mr. Benavente: I need the CCU and PUC approval. Once I get that approval, then we'll 
go out for an independent power producer. Private partner. That's not our expertise: gas. 
First time, here. We need a team that will do similar to the power plant for the first 20 
years, operate, maintain, make sure it operates. Then after that we can decide what type of 
operations will you take. But, basically maintain ownership of that until the first 20 years, 
private-public partnership. 

Chairman Ridgell: But in the meantime you are putting out to bid a combined cycle plant 
that would be - in other words, the specs that are corning back would be to bum both but 
you're not sure, yet, what the deal would be for the LNG section as far as receiving it at 
the port and building another facility to receive and store it at the port. 

Mr. Benavente: That's correct. But if you just put in the machine for ultra-low sulfur 
diesel, doesn't mean that that machine could bum natural gas. That's why you have to 
specify it ahead of time. That's why we ask for (inaudible) because I don't think it's a 
matter of whether we will but it's a matter of when we will. 

Chairman Ridgell: So, you believe that you will eventually get liquid natural gas on 
Guam? 

Mr. Benavente: I think the economic number are going to come right back and say that 
will be the best deal. 

Chairman Ridgell: My concern is just that if you're going to build a combined-cycle unit, 
you have to be sure you're able to bring in the liquid natural gas. Otherwise, what's the 
purpose of building a combined cycle unit? You just build a US low sulfur diesel. 

Mr. Benavente: That's correct. And the way it's set-up (inaudible) you can always switch 
between ultra-low sulfur or natural gas. Whichever gives you the best price. The plan really 
is because you have more renewables, you have ultra-low sulfur diesel which complies 
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with EPA regulation, so you're not subjected to that anymore. And then the fact that you're 
working with natural gas, now, we have for the first time, ever, really. Guam has an 
opportunity to control its energy costs on the LEAC side a little more. Whereas, today -

Chairman Ridgell: You're looking at natural gas as a way to hedge against low-sulfur 
diesel. 

Mr. Duenas: Mr. Chairman, that's why further clarification: The plants that we're bidding 
on right now are dual fired. They're set up for natural gas. That's why John said that there 
will be a pipeline when we do the pipeline for the ultra-low sulfur diesel. In that will also 
be the natural gas pipeline so we won't have to bear those costs, again. The tanking that 
we need are the siting for tanks up at the Harmon site will already be in. The only piece 
that we'll need when we go to natural gas, when we go out and look for a private/public 
partner will be the piece down at the port. And the initial storage at the port. But we're 
trying to put in all the pieces so that if we go to natural gas or, rather, when we go to natural 
gas, we won't have to redo pipelines. We won't have to do anything with the plant. It's all 
set up. 

Chairman Ridgell: Where would the storage and gasification facility be? At the port? But 
where, exactly, at the port? 

Mr. Benavente: We had an initial assessment done for that area. There was actually three 
locations looked at. One, really, identified of interest to us is the one furthest out just 
towards the entrance of the breakwater. The entrance to Apra harbor. But that's something 
that we're going to go back now, and have it reevaluated to make sure, which may give us 
the better option, today. We did make a preliminary assessment, there was a study done we 
can provide to yourself, too, and now we're just going to need to update that because that 
study was done about five-six years ago. · 

Chairman Ridgell: I am concerned about safety issues with regards to liquid natural gas, 
just natural gas, in general. Do you guys have any concerns? I've looked up, there have 
been explosions in the past with natural gas and liquid natural gas. Explosions along 
pipelines, explosions at the storage and gasification facilities that have been documented 
in other places and with GPA'strack record with explosions, on LNG being more volatile 
than oil, it brings up concerns. 

Mr. Duenas: And that's why, Mr. Chairman, this is going to be a partner we're bringing 
in and the partners will be the one who has the most experience. It's not GPA. We're not 
running this facility. And the partner is the one that will, ultimately, pick whatever site they 
believe to be the best site with the best situation for whatever it is they need. We won't do 
it until the partner can make us certain warranties and guarantees and they have to be 
responsible for -

Chairman Ridgell: Sure, but the Cabras facility that exploded, that was being operated by 
a partner, correct? 
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Mr. Duenas: Yes, but they are different things. 

Mr. Benavente: (inaudible) But in this case, again, natural gas or gas, is all over the United 
States and everywhere. Even to the homes, now, which is again, other opportunities down 
the road for us, here. The homes to the hotels. To reduce their cost from diesel to natural 
gas. But, again, there have been explosions but not many and those are issues that will 
really be addressed, Senator, because I can understand there is concern about whether 
natural gas is. But, again, if there's pros and cons, natural gas versus diesel fuel but we just 
have to make sure that everything is designed and the operators and everyone know what 
to do with it. 

Chairman Ridgell: I found an article just from May of this year. A blast at a US LNG site 
in Washington. An unexplained blast at a liquefied natural gas facility in rural Washington 
state injured workers, forced an evacuation and raised alarm about a potentially large 
second explosion. That's just an example of something I just found from a quick Google 
search. That's what brings up some of my concerns. 

Mr. Benavente: We will make sure that we will bring that up, we look at it, really do 
another study, make sure that we have time to get to that point. 

Chairman Ridgell: Senator Lee? 

Senator Lee: Thank you, Mr. Chair. In terms of the update on the new power plant but, I 
wanted to know what the anticipated generation of this new plant would be. In terms of the 
percentage of our total generation, once this plant is constructed up and running, what 
would be the anticipated generation of this plant? 

Mr. Benavente: The plant when you first come on the line, I think is going to generate 60 
percent or more of our total energy. 

Senator Lee: 60 percent? 

Mr. Benavente: The other part is going to be about 25 percent from renewables. 60 percent 
from this plant and the balance from MEC 8 and 9 and the other generators in the system. 
So, it'll be a combination. I think in one of the presentations, you'll see the curve. There's 
a curve of the percentage that shows what the production is going to be like in 2021. The 
green: that's what the new power plant is going to generate -

Senator Lee: Which page is that? I apologize I just want to be able to follow along with -

Mr. Benavente: This yellow is renewables. That is renewables. This is the other power 
plant, MEC 8 and 9. You can see the new power plant. Most efficient is going to generate 
most of the power. 
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Senator Lee: Sorry, Mr. Benavente, what page is that? I just want to make sure I can follow 
along. 

Mr. Benavente: 31. The yellow and brown is about 26 percent of the energy> from 
renewables. Daytime renewables and then renewables that are put into batteries and then 
released in the evening. And that's the brown component. 

Senator Lee: And you also mentioned, Mr. Benavente, that this plant will be much more 
efficient so can you give us some data on that, in terms of compared to what we have now? 

Mr. Benavente: Right now, the Cabras power plant produces at about 13.8 kilowatt-hours 
per every gallon fuel. This new power plant is going to produce about 20 kilowatt-hours 
per every gallon of fuel. Now the other part is that the fuel are different, the Cabras plant, 
the fuel is cheaper than the fuel of this plant so at the end the new plant will still be a little 
cheaper than what it is to produce Cabras, today, otherwise there would have been a 
substantial impact on the community had we just gotten rid of dirty fuel and just go right 
to ultra-low sulfur diesel with a very inefficient plan. So that's the -

Senator Lee: In the terms of the cost for generation, we're still needing to bring in or 
import the fuel for this plant, correct? 

Mr. Benavente: That's correct. But what's going to happen in 2026 is today we consume 
about 2.7 million barrels a day. In 2021. I'm sorry, 2020. 

Senator Lee: Sorry, 2.7 million gallons? 

Mr. Benavente: Barrels. 

Senator Lee: Barrels a day. 

Mr. Benavente: Multiply that times 42. That's 84 plus million gallons of fuel a year that 
we consume. When the new power plant and the renewables come on, we'll move it down 
to about 1700. I'm sorry. 1.7 million barrels. We're going to save about 84 million gallons 
a year in fuel. We're going to reduce our import by 84 million gallons a year. Then as we 
have more renewables and other things. 

Senator Lee: One of my concerns, Mr. Benavente, is just our positioning in terms of 
geopolitics and there's a lot of things going on that are outside of our control. Not just the 
cost of fuel but ensuring that we have this to fuel this power plant and make sure that we 
can continue to have that operating and generating. And you're saying that at peak 
generation or once it's up and running, we can anticipate 60 percent of our portfolio to be 
generated from this plant. I'm just very concerned about putting 60 percent of our eggs in 
this basket that's so dependent upon an outside source that we can't -
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Mr. Benavente: Let me put it this way: That's only for that plant. But there will be enough 
reserves in the other area to back up this plant so when this plant goes to zero, we can still 
serve the island power. That's why you have (inaudible) Yigo combustion, Dededo, MEC 
8 and 9. Those will still be a part of the grid. It's just that when you run, what machines do 
you run? You run the most efficient all the time. That's the reduced cost. But as far as 
serving the island, there's enough backup reserve so that if something happens at that 
power plant, we can still serve the island. The good thing about this plan being there, now, 
is that we're moving it away from Cabras because you've already heard that the 
weatherman said in the next 3 0-40 years, there might be a big earthquake in Japan that will 
bring a tsunami here. Well, our capacity, our base-load capacity is down at Cabras, now, 
so this plant being up there, including the fact that we are going to store one-month supply 
of oil up at the north. So that if anything happened in the south or Cabras we can still run 
for one month. Our capacity needs in the north. 

Chairman Ridgell: So, you're concerned about the safety of a power plant at Cabras 
because of things like tsunamis, etc. But shouldn't you also be concerned, then, about 
putting a LNG gasification and storage facility in the same area that would be susceptible 
to tsunamis. 

Mr. Benavente: That's correct, Senator, but again, there's two different. That's why we're 
going to have ultra-low sulfur diesel and natural gas so if you're having a problem with 
natural gas, you can just continue the island economy with ultra-low sulfur diesel. If there's 
a typhoon, putting it on a barge, you're probably going to have to take it out of here and 
then bum ultra-low sulfur diesel while there's a typhoon. And then, when not, you bring it 
down back and you start saving money. That's the flexibility. 

Chairman Ridgell: Can you explain what you're talking about? Putting on a barge -

Mr. Benavente: The gasification facility. 
Chairman Ridgell: So, it will be a floating facility? 

Mr. Benavente: That's what we're looking at at this point and the reason for -

Chairman Ridgell: You're looking at a floating gasification and storage facility. 

Mr. Benavente: And the reason for that is that right now we don't really know what's the 
right volume that we should keep. If you're going to construct storage for natural gas, you 
need to know how much you store because you cannot really just expand it. You're going 
to have to rebuild another tank. That's the thing for the first 20 years or so using a floating 
storage and then having enough experience to determine what your longer-term plan is 
from there. That's kind of the plan, right now. 

Chairman Ridgell: Are you concerned about the safety of a floating storage facility and 
susceptibility to things like a barge sinking? 
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Mr. Benavente: It's not uncommon, now, and of course we'll make sure that all of those 
are taken care of. And then, secondly, whoever the proponent that we bring in, the partner 
really still owns the plant until its turnover and, therefore, if they're not able to supply then 
we won't pay. That's the independent power producer model is that they have to have the 
insurance. They have to handle operation maintenance. You own the power plant and as 
long as it's not the end of the term, then that's their responsibility. We kind of protect 
ourselves, similarly, and then at the end, we take ownership so that we don't get charged. 
We can reduce the cost at that point. 

Chairman Ridgell: And then with the combined-cycle plant. Currently, you're anticipating 
that you'll save on the amount of oil or low ultra-low sulfur diesel that's being purchased 
because it's a more efficient plant, correct? But you're not sure what the power purchase 
agreement's going to be, yet, so while the plant may be more efficient and saving more 
money because the construction and maintenance and operation the plant is being folded 
into the overall cost, you actually don't know, yet, what the cost will be for producing 
power from that new plant. 

Mr. Benavente: Well, first of all, we supply all the fuel, so we know that variable. So, the 
power plant has been bid out. Each unit is going to have its cost to construct and its 
operating efficiency. So, the one that gives us the best efficiency and the lowest kind of 
plant capacity, it's going to be the winner in the bid. So that will reduce our cost, 
substantially, we have a minimum requirement of 45 percent thermal efficiency. Therefore, 
we're not just buying anything, and our plan today is only a little less than 40 percent or 
more sufficient plant today. We're hoping this thing comes in between 45 and 50 percent 
thermal efficiency which is very efficient. That's all. We're controlling it. 

Chairman Ridgell: I understand the efficiency. My concern is what power purchase 
agreement you'll be locked into and what the rate will be in cents per kilowatt hour because 
that ultimately does affect rates. 

Mr. Benavente: That's correct, and I expect that the type of capacity that is being brought 
in is cheaper than MEC 8 and 9 that we have now. The efficiency of the unit that's been 
brought in. It's much more efficient than MEC 8 and 9. So we could say that the cost per 
energy coming in will be less than MEC 8 and 9 total cost. And the other thing is it does 
work well with renewable. And then the other thing is the other part is needed for is really 
to comply with the US EPA because right now we're still under the umbrella of potential 
penalties and this plan will get us out of that umbrella and we'll get out of that because the 
oil we're going to bum and everything is going to be clean and not subjected to any -

Chairman Ridgell: Sure, I understand. Speaker? Madam Speaker has a question. 

Speaker Muiia Barnes: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I would like to ask the panel, if I may, as 
we look at the 180-megawatt power plant, the additional power that we're going to need 
for the next years coming. Have we looked at alternatives besides LNG and fuel power 
plants like -- I'm just going to throw it out there -- like wave power plants? 
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Mr. Benavente: They're not big enough or proven enough to provide us so we need, when 
we go up for bid on renewables, no one really comes in and bids on any of those like ocean 
thermal wave energy. When we go up for bid on renewables, anyone can come in and bid 
on anything, including one of the last bids was included geothermal. Like Hawaii. They 
take the heat from - that came in at 24 cents a kilowatt-hour - again, all of this are allowed 
but, so, in terms of alternatives we really need, we still need conventional energy and what 
it is. What this bid invitation did ask for did open it up to different types of energies. 

Speaker Mufia Barnes: Mr. B, I just want you to know that just recently there was a 
constituent who came in saying that there's opportunity to work closely with Guam in 
reference to the wave power plants and then, of course, the beginnings of what this power 
plant could provide for Guam and I guess the waters that would be used and then the 
amount that would be referred to the consumer would be at a very low rate. So, I'm just 
bringing it up as someone who doesn't know generation very well. It's come to play with 
me and earlier when I asked about the wave power plant and you said it's not big enough. 
Maybe you can expound on that and tell me why because the presentation that was given 
to me last week was like, "Give us the opportunity to work closely with the govei:nment," 
and that was the first thing I asked was, "Did you have an audience with the experts?" 
which is Guam Power Authority. 

Mr. Benavente: And, again, we'll be having future renewable bids and they can bid. Also, 
we actually could also talk to them but I'm not aware of anything big enough like that that 
will provide the conventional energy that's needed to maintain electricity on this island 
solidly for us. So, we're always open to new technologies but I haven't heard that one. 

Speaker Mufia Barnes: You have not heard of that one? I will definitely make it a point, 
Mr. Chair, to bring this opportunity to GP A. 

Mr. Benavente: Because we're open to renewables and, again, if you recall, there's a bill 
in the CCU it supported which is to go from 25. percent to 50 percent renewable so we're 
in the process of getting ready. And once the CCU approves our recommended plan, other 
bids will be coming out for renewables but the new power plant's got to come in place and 
then these renewables will be coming in right after the power plant comes in place because 
if it's also solar PV, we cannot handle any more of this until the new power plant comes on 
the line. 

Mr. Duenas: And I just like to add to that, Madam Speaker, Mr. Chairman, we are not 
aware of any proven technology in wave action anywhere in the world. The one I heard 
that had the best potential was in North Scotland. They were testing a new facility. One of 
the biggest problems with wave technology is how do you account for the biological and 
the ocean, for example, so the one that I thought was promising and it's still not economical 
is one that was like a top. And if you remember as little kids -- maybe you're too young -
but you used to play with this thing where you would push and then the top would spin and 
you would push it up and down and the top would spin it just to amuse yourself. And so 
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what that thought was this: Well, then, when the ocean waves come in, it would raise the 
top which would spin around and produce power as it spun around and when it went out it 
would spin around because all the other ones where they try and trap the wave going in. 
They have problems of the biologicals with fish and everything else. There's a lot of 
problems in the row so there's no wave action that - I'd be interested in meeting these 
people, Senator, because I'm not aware anywhere in the world where somebody's jumping 
forward and saying hey we're going to do this. 

Speaker Mufi.a Barnes: (inaudible) a success. They've said they have proven technology 
working in -

Mr. Duenas: Where in the world? 

Speaker Mufi.a Barnes: In New York and in Korea and they have several plants in South 
Korea and it's a ten-year compiled data of what they have that's safe and it doesn't have any 
side effects to the ocean so -

Mr. Duenas: We have not seen it. Have them come see us! 

Speaker Mufi.a Barnes: I will definitely bring this up and I want to thank the Chair - Mr. 
Chair - for at least giving me the opportunity to share it with you because they just came 
to me last week. 

Chairman Ridgell: At this time, I'd like to take a 15-minute break so that people may use 
certain facilities, including myself. Thank you. 

(Recess) 

Chairman Ridgell: We are back from a short recess. Again, this is an oversight hearing 
on the Guam Power Authority. Where we last left off, we were discussing the Harmon cliff 
line area power plant that GP A is working on procuring at this time. Just to recap some of 
the things we spoke about with regards to that power plant is that it's looking at a 180 
megawatts of power production. It will be a combined cycle unit that includes burning of 
ultra-low sulfur diesel as well as the potential to bum liquid natural gas. It will, however, 
require another facility for the storage and gasification ofliquid natural gas as being looked 
at to be placed somewhere down at the port area. That facility's cost is somewhere around 
potentially $200 million which is not inclusive of the $300 to $400 million cost of the 
power plant in the Harmon cliff line area. In addition to that, the Harmon cliff line power 
plant will be done through a power-purchase agreement type of partnership and GP A is not 
yet sure what the power-purchase agreement will be. In other words, you're not sure exactly 
how much you'll be purchasing power from this power plant. At what rate per kilowatt 
hour, that's uncertain at this time, correct? 

Mr. Duenas: That's correct, Mr. Chairman because we haven't opened the bids but once 
we have the bids, we'll know exactly what the numbers are. 
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Chairman Ridgell: Sure, but do you have - there wasn't any range put into the bid spec 
saying like you guys need to come within a certain range to make it economically feasible? 

Mr. Duenas: No, we don't put a range in because what you want is, you want the bidders 
to compete against one another and so, therefore, you want them to look for being the 
lowest bidder in town. And so, they will really sharpen their pencils. If you put a range in, 
they'll say, "Okay, well, let's go in between here." If you don't put a range - and this is what 
happened with our renewable energy, we never put ranges in and we're now down to eight 
and a half cents. We anticipate that that will be coming down. We think it will only come 
down because the panels are cheaper. That's the problem of the proposer - the partner. We 
want to encourage the partner to try and shave every penny to give us the best deal. So, we 
don't have a range. 

Chairman Ridgell: Sure. But at least a ceiling at which point it's no longer economically 
feasible. 

Mr. Duenas: You know I would tell you that -

Chairman Ridgell: Or at least a ceiling? Because you guys have mentioned that you don't 
foresee this to increase cost, an increase in rates, correct? 

Mr. Duenas: Yes, and that was based on a lot of our initial studies on what it currently 
costs us to produce power and so what it costs us is an "X" and I don't we don't have all 
the data. But it's this and we believe that with "this", it's going to be lower than "this". We 
were confident it'll be lower. How much lower? We don't know. 

Chairman Ridgell: Should it not come in lower, what will GP A do? 

Mr. Duenas: Well, GP A has lots of options. I mean we could say - I don't know. I don't 
want to speculate, Mr. Chairman, but we believe - Let me put it this way: There were a lot 
of people who stepped forward and wanted to bid. We narrowed the field down to seven 
and it's further narrowing down to three. Those people who we thought, okay, they're not -
We're looking at the three best proponents to give us a price. 

Chairman Ridgell: Who are those three? 

Mr. Benavente: There was four that entered the final phase which is providing the 
technical proposals. That was Osaka Gas; Hanwha and KEPCO are out of Korea; Osaka, 
Japan; and then the last one is Wartsila, out of Finland. Three of those four proponents 
have passed the technical proposal. Haven't announced, yet, which of the four but, again, 
I'm not at liberty to do that, yet, until I -

Chairman Ridgell: You said Hanwha and - excuse me if I'm pronouncing it correctly [sic] 
- and KEPCO. It was the same two that were awarded the solar projects. 
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Mr. Benavente: That's correct. 

Chairman Ridgell: So, they also do combined-cycle power plant in addition to solar 
generation? 

Mr. Benavente: KEPCO is the GP A of South Korea. Hanwha also a major player in South 
Korea. And then the last one, I'm sorry, Osaka Gas of course is the owner of MEC eight 
and nine. Or, not owner anymore because we own the plant, now, as of January. And that 
last one is Finland. Wartsila Diesel. They've been all over the world. Most recent was 50 
megawatts in Hawaii. 

Mr. Duenas: To further clarify. This is a three-step bid. We had a pre-qualification bid, 
first, so we had certain requirements that they had to be worldwide, have experience and 
they had to list down all the experience that they had to have the financial capabilities to 
do this. These companies that we had - the seven that we had, that now is four - are very 
big companies. KEPCO and Hanwha, for example, you'll find them around the world, in 
the Middle East, everywhere. They're in every country. That's why we feel confident that 
they really are hungry. They want to do this job and we believe we'll get a good bid. 

Chairman Ridgell: Unless Madam Speaker has any further questions, I'd like to move on 
to the next item on the agenda which is waste-oil disposal plans. I know there's been some 
discussion about this in the past and, of course, with the other public hearings. Just to kind 
of go over it again, because there was confusion in a prior public hearing over the definition 
and the difference between waste oil and used oil. Could you, for the record, explain the 
difference between waste oil and used oil? 

Mr. Benavente: From what I understand with Guam EPA, when they say waste oil, that's 
almost like a hazardous oil. Used oil is from the cars or in power plants, oil that spilled 
over, you recover, those become used oil. That's the two difference. That's why we changed 
our wording to used oil because we're really not burning hazardous waste oil at the plant. 

Chairman Ridgell: Okay, GPA is currently - what do you currently do with used oil? 

Mr. Benavente: Currently, we gather all the used oil, not only for GPA but for the whole 
island, and we bum it in our steam turbine - steam boilers at the Cabras power plant: Cabras 
one and two. Now the plants are forty-four years old and will be retired once the new power 
plant is commissioned so we're looking at around 2022/2023, Cabras steam will be 
decommissioned and therefore we have no other - We don't have any other steam boilers 
after that. Therefore, there has to be a different alternative and that's what we're looking 
for. 

Chairman Ridgell: Once those two are retired you won't have any place to bum the used 
oil, is that correct? 
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Mr. Benavente: That's correct. Used oil that is in the form that it is today where.they Just 
pick it up, we test it for PCB, make sure"tha! there's no'liazardous waste in it, like hazardous 
material. The important part is making sure it's not - there's no PCB there and then we burh 
it at the plant. Used oil could be processed and if it's proces$ed and.acceptable, it can be 
burned in other type of machines; another 1ike combustion tlirbine, a. di~sel engine. As long 
as it complies to the US EPA emission controls and Guam EPA then: that's another option 
could be done going beyond that, '" · 

"'.~. ··~ .,_ .·. '""·, _.;·. 

Chairman Ridgell: What are GP A ?s'9~rrent plans for disposal of used oil in the future. I 
believe you guys have something out for bid, cO.rrect? 

Mr. Benavente: That's correct, Senator, we do R~\re a bid out. Actually, was going to open 
and then we extended the deadline and that's in the last week. I extended it again to August 
5th just to make sure there's clari.ty within all of us as to what we need to do. It's just that 
it's a process that we started in September last year to try and find a solution from the 
market because if anyone's going to solve this problem is really the commercial, the private 
sector. And so that's why we're here· today. There were two proponents' that have been 
coming asking questions and we'te going through the process. It's just that I didn't want.to 
open any bids until, at least, for some clarity and tell me I can move on this. We do have 
to figure out what to do and so that's targeted for August 5th, now. · · 

Chairman Ridgell: Okay, in the meap.time you are members of that - there's a used oil 
task force, correct? 

Mr. Benavente: That's correct. I have a question, Senator, was that the resolution passed 
and is that task force in effect, now? Because I didn't see anything beyond the public 
hearing so I'm unaware -

Chairman Ridgell: I don't believe, yet, I don't recall -

Mr. Benavente: You might have to take a look atthat but that's kind of where I kind of 
extended it because I'm not sure what's going on.·· 

. Chairman Ridgell: Okay, I want to go ahead and move on now to the LEAC: Levelized 
Energy Adjustment Clause. I know that's been des·cribed in the media many times over the 
past several years, but I think it's still something that's confusing for the general public to 
·understand. Can you explainjust briefly what is the LEAC? · .,. 

Mr. Benavente: LEA C's anything related and associated with fuel costs: the.fuel itself, ihe 
handling of the fuel, the storage, any rental storage, pipelines, everything that's associated 
goes in all that cost of the LEAC. In addition: Renewables, the NRG, Dandan project. All 
that energy goes into to - all that cost goes into, the LEAC. The future power plant, the 
future solar PV plants with the savings - that's all going to the LEAC. There's really none 
of that savings will come over to the base-rate side of the equation, It's all going to be for 
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the benefit of the of the consumers to reduce the fuel source with a fuel cost, whether it's 
from oil or from alternative energy. 

Chairman Ridgell: But alternative energy can help to reduce the LEAC rate? 

Mr. Benavente: That's right. That's the whole hundred and twenty megawatts that we have 
from contract, now. And we have a bid out for 40-megawatt and this 40-megawatt that we 
have on Navy land that we're leasing from the Navy will actually catch all the energy in 
the daytime and will shave the peak energy. Right now, there's a big differential in cost of 
production in the daytime when the base loads are running. It could be as small as eleven 
or twelve cents a kilowatt hour in the evening at peak time, it goes up to seventeen/nineteen 
cents because we're using the less efficient units. By catching it here and shaving it here, 
we're actuaHy reducing course all of that again will go into the LEACs or whatever savings 
that are there will go back again to the ratepayers. 

Chairman Ridgell: What is the current early LEAC rate? 

Mr. Benav-ente: It's 15.4 cents and that's been that way since May last year. 

Chairman :Ridgell: It's up for renewal again, correct? 

Mr. Benavente: We have to file with the PUC by June 15. I'll be discussing that later today 
with the Commission. I'll be showing them all the different things that happened and 
worked hours. A recommendation as to what to do with the LEAC going forward. And as 
we're all a~are, oil recently, again, has been on the rise and a big fluctuation. The gas 
station priQ.es are an indicator for that. It's been going up and staying up so we'll be 
presenting that tonight to the Commission and they may make a decision on it next week. 

Mr. Duenas: Let me clarify. We have a work session this evening that I believe you're 
aware of. At the work session, they will fill us in. We won't make a decision until Tuesday's 
meeting. We have a meeting for the CCU every fourth Tuesday of the month. The work 
sessions are so that we can go through the data and think about it and ask questions. And 
then we get to the meeting. We still have the opportunity to ask further questions but it's a 
chance for us to get better educated. The other thing is I'd like to add on to the LEAC 
concept is because I was at the PUC when we brought this up as chairman of the PUC. The 
LEAC stands for levelized energy. It's an effort to average what you think the costs will 
be for six months so that you can put a fixed cost in for the ratepayer. And that way, the 
ratepayers, businesses will know what they're going to pay for the next six months. They 
have some certainty in other jurisdictions, for example, Honolulu they don't have a LEAC. 
Every month, whatever they pay is billed to the customer, so they pay the full price every 
month. Goes up, goes down and we do have one customer like that on Guam who pays not 
on a six-month basis, but it pays every month. That would be the federal government: The 
Department of Defense. They - every month whatever they -
Chairman Ridgell: Why is that? 
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Mr. Duenas: It's part of a customer service agreement because the federal government is 
a different kind of customer. They don't fit into any of our other customer class so when 
we negotiate with them, we negotiate an amount, we negotiate everything, and we told 
them they have to pay the full rate every time. They don't get a break. If the price is high, 
they pay that price. That the price goes down, they pay that price. Sort of like when you go 
to the gas station. You never know so there are -

Mr. Benavente: The twenty percent of our total sales. They make a significant impact on 
our fuel costs. If prices went up all the way and we were levelizing it for six months and 
can recover it. We have to carry all that. There's no cost per so now they really just pay on 
a monthly basis just like consumers or ratepayers used to do a while back. And then we 
decide that there was a move to make sure it's levelized so that we can at least have some 
clarity as to what your rate may be at least for the next six months. 

Chairman Ridgell: It sets the rate at a specific level for six months as opposed to if you're 
going pay a monthly it changes every - oil prices change daily. 

Mr. Duenas: And therefore, it depends on the shipment. Every month, whatever we pay, 
that's what they have to pay. And it's a benefit to the rest of the ratepayers because they 
don't have this flow. In other words, right now we're having an under-recovery for the 
LEAC. In other words, we're not fully recovering the cost that we need to so that's when 
you make the adjustment up or down. 

Chairman Ridgell: Were there some years where you had over-recovery? 

Mr. Duenas: Yes, back in 2016, again, when I said that the price of oil drops so much as 
we were going down, it was dropping. But the over recovery has never exceeded a million 
dollars or more and the threshold for the PUC is if there's a change - 2 million - then you 
should come in and seek help but it's the over-recovery has never gone that high. The under
recovery has gone as high as $13-14 million for that period. 

Chairman Ridgell: Which is made up for the next time you go back to adjust the LEAC. 

Mr. Duenas: It's supposed to be made up, but I want to point out that the CCU and the 
PUC have been working very hard because we're trying to help the ratepayer. We haven't 
been doing full recovery on the rates. We've been recovering at 50%. It's a lower amount. 
The 15.4 cents was not designed when we started it in February. It was not designed to 
recover fully so we anticipate that there will still be an under-recovery at the end of this 
period when we start the next period in August first. And the goal is, someday in the future, 
when we get the benefits of the renewable energy and then we can do a better job of 
recovering because we can. We won't hit the ratepayers so hard. We'll be able to lower the 
bill even ifthe LEAC goes up so that's the whole -

Mr. Benavente: Yes, Senator, on the under-recovery. Usually, we give it right back at the 
next LEAC period when the over-recovery, like the Chairman is saying. They've been 
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trying to mitigate that impact to the customer as much as possible and this started a little 
over a year ago. And so, our under-recovery was only that much but it grew up, here, all 
the way up to almost 13 million. And now, again, you know it's been coming down a little 
bit here so we're still not fully under-recovered. But the price of fuel have been going up 
so that's kind of been the scenario. We're actually using working capital to try to balance 
this at this point. 

Chairman Ridgell: When was - when did you begin using the LEAC model? 

Mr. Benavente: Several years ago. I have it somewhere, I can't remember. At least ten 
years. Beyond at least ten years. 

Chairman Ridgell: Sure, okay. 

Mr. Benavente: 1999. 

Chairman Ridgell: '99. Do you have any data with regards to the total amount of over
recovery versus the total amount of under-recovery since the LEAC's inception? 

Mr. Benavente: This is the where it is, today. And, John, what's the next curve that shows 
the - no but we can provide that (inaudible) is always balancing it and then that's the reason 

Chairman Ridgell: If you could provide me that or point me to where to find that 
information? 

Mr. Duenas: And I'd like to point out, Senator, that when we had the Cabras three and 
four explosion, some of the proceeds that we got from the 125 million. It says fuel there on 
that line. What we did is we took some of the money and subsidized the LEAC with that 
money. We considered a business interruption. We had a business interruption policy. We 
took some of that money to subsidize the LEAC because we no longer were burning the 
RFO. We were burning the ultra-low sulfur diesel, that more expensive plants, until John 
could put in the other Greco plants that were a little more efficient and did a little bit better. 
There was a lot of gyrations, but I'd like to point out that wherever we can, we are always 
trying to help the ratepayer because I think the ratepayer doesn't know this and you know 
they think that we don't care, and we really do. 

Mr. Benavente: That's five million from the insurance proceeds went actually to offset 
LEAC. 

Chairman Ridgell: With the next LEAC petition, you have by June, I believe you said, to 
file a petition. If you're going to look to increase it. Are you looking at requesting an 
increase in the LEAC? 
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Mr. Benavente: Really making a recommendation and after some discussion with the 
CCU tonight so I think by after tonight or by Tuesday we will know that. 

Mr. Duenas: I think Senator -

Mr. Benavente: We're trying our best not to do that Senator. 

Mr. Duenas: I think, in John's defense, what we are trying to tell you is he'll discuss it with 
us, first, before saying it out in public with the Commission. We'll get his recommendation, 
tonight, when we have our working session and then it's a decision that the CCU will have 
to make and then it goes to the PUC. 

Chairman Ridgell: Do you foresee the LEAC rates increasing over the next 10-20 years? 

Mr. Benavente: We see the LEAC rate decreasing beginning 2021 when the renewables 
come on the line. 

Chairman Ridgell: Because of renewables. 

Mr. Benavente: Right and the new power plant and the opportunity to bring in more and 
more renewables. The other important part of it is it's not only going to decrease but it's 
going to stabilize. Because, for example, 25 percent of energy, that of renewables, that's an 
escalator or for one percent. What is going to happen is even the eight and a half won't in 
20/25 years, you only go up to like 10 cents so you're not going have this type - It's just a 
small gradual increase and that's the that's one thing that we did make sure that we required 
in the bid - in our renewable bids. 

Chairman Ridgell: For the most recent one you're talking about, right, you said 8.5 cents 
per kilowatt hours. Only one percent over 20 years. It'll stay at that rate. 

Mr. Benavente: One percent. 

Chairman Ridgell: It'll go up one percent. That's what you meant. You said it would go 
up to about 10 cents, right, at the max? 

Mr. Benavente: And that compared to the fluctuating -

Chairman Ridgell: That's where you believe it's going to help you keep the LEAC down. 
Although oil will likely increase in the cost of -

Mr. Duenas: I'm going to tell you that nobody knows what oil is going to do throughout 
the whole wide world. It's just there's so many factors. I've read so much about oil. When 
the price dropped in 2016, nobody ever thought it would drop like that. It was about 120 
because -
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Chairman Ridgell: Except OPEC. 

Mr. Duenas: No! Even OPEC! And you know there's a lot of different things. If you look 
at Saudi Arabia, they're actually trying to get out of oil, and I think they realize they've got 
all this oil. They're trying to dump it. They're trying to sell it, now, because in the future 
nobody might be buying. If automobiles go to electric vehicles and other things happen, 
more nuclear power, more renewable energy, all the new technologies that they see coming 
down the road, I think they see the handwriting on the wall. That's why you have these 
gyrations in oil. 

Chairman Ridgell: Okay, the US Energy Information Administration forecasts that by 
2025 the average price of a barrel of Brent crude will rise to $81. 73 and these figures are 
in 2018 dollars, so they did that to remove the effect of inflation. And then by 2030, world 
demand, they believe - this is the US EIA - believes it will drive oil prices to $92.98 per 
barrel; by 2040, $105.16 per barrel and by 2050, possibly, $100.94 per barrel and that's just 
some of their forecasts. The highest forecast and the worst-case scenario, the EIA forecasts 
oil reaching over $200 a barrel by 2050. Are you aware of those estimates? 

Mr. Duenas: Yes, Mr. Chairman, we are. And I will repeat my statement: I don't think 
anybody knows what's going to happen to oil, as they were projecting that considered back 
when they were looking at 2016, for example, they were projecting a $120 and it dropped 
around $30-$40 and so it's a very hard thing to project. When they price oil futures, they 
don't price them out for that long period of time. I would just add that we're looking at more 
and more renewable and in the future, something's going to come along that technology, 
again. And technology that is disruptive will be good. Right now, we are positioning 
ourselves to best serve our ratepayers based on the knowledge we have. 

Mr. Benavente: This goes back to what we're talking earlier - where at least 25 percent of 
the energy by 2020, 21-25 percent of the energy away from oil renewables. That's not going 
to be impacted by that and then there's the move towards 50 percent so that will not be 
impacted like that. Then we take the oil. The only would be the 50 percent impact and then 
we're talking about natural gas that would be the other one that will reduce the impact of 
that oil. As we look further into the early to mid-20s, then we're going to see our energy 
costs being under our control. And they may go to $200 a barrel but it won't impact Guam, 
substantially, at all. That's the plan. 

Mr. Duenas: I mean, I would worry if we weren't doing anything. If we weren't doing all 
the things that we're doing because John and his team are doing a lot of things. Ifwe weren't 
doing anything, at all, then right now I would be very worried. Because if it did go to $200 
a barrel, it would be a heavy burden. But that's why I'm saying that the people at GP A, the 
management and staff, and all the people GP A do such a great job because we do this plan, 
because we're looking forward, because we continue to make moves to address a lot of 
different things. 
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Mr. Benavente: When oil went to $110-120 a barrel, our energy went to 29 cents a kilowatt 
hour. That gives us a relative idea to you know look the -

Chairman Ridgell: Yes, I absolutely commend some of the projects you guys have 
recently awarded for solar energy because, in particular, because the cost is so much 
cheaper for fuel for the solar energy at 8.5 cents. That's a very good rate compared to the 
LEAC, you said, is at 15 cents, right now. I would continue to encourage, that especially 
in light of these reports that show that although oil is volatile and it goes up and down, it 
seems like it's going to continue to go up, especially as oil reserves are depleted or just as 
supply begins to dwindle, of course, there are many other factors that affect the cost of oil. 
I understand it is volatile and that's why I do commend you for the solar projects because 
solar is not volatile. It's not affected by world-events, per se, whereas oil can go up just 
because President Trump says he wants to fight Iran. I'd like to move on, now, to net 
metering. I know you currently have a petition with the PUC to lower the rate of 
compensation for the net metering program. What's the status of that petition? 

Mr. Benavente: With other public hearings on that and I think it's on the agenda for the 
PUC for next week's meeting. It's really the ball's in their part for a decision on that. Our 
petition is really to phase out net metering and to phase out the base rate, the one-to-one 
credit net metering. Therefore, our petition's to phase that out over five-years. The impact 
to non-solar customers, in our opinion, is that is about $3.5 million, today, unchecked. That 
could continue to rise and cost the non-net-meter customers that much more money every 
year. In the interests, we're also looking at the new power plant corning on and we're trying 
not to increase rates. We're looking at all the different ways to make sure we have adequate 
money in our base rate to fund that. This is an issue, really, that needs to be looked at 
because I can show you, really, here, this gives you an idea if nothing happens in ten years, 
that's $30 million of subsidy from non-net metering customers to the net metering 
customers. 

Chairman Ridgell: How are you determining that cost? 

Mr. Benavente: Okay, let me go to - This is based on the amount of megawatts that are 
there, the amount of energy that they generate, an amount that they use when estimate. 
Each of those will generate about 20 percent of their capacity over the whole year and that's 
the amount of energy that they will do and that's the impact. And they're all net metering 
customers are using the grid. They're using the grid for storage, meaning they'll put the 
energy into the system in the daytime and then use it at night. They use the grid for 
stabilizing the system because solar PV is very intermittent. It's up and down so there's -
GP A have to put generators on in the daytime to catch and try to stabilize that. That's 
costing more fuel costs to everybody. That's why we're trying to get this new battery system 
on the line, right now, it's looking like October. That we can use that to stabilize the 
frequency and the quality of power and reduce cost by not having to run all those 
combustion turbines in the daytime. Because, as shown before, it's really like this: we could 
go from 25 megawatts, just drop down to three or four and something else has to react. 
Now, this is where when we talk about what is the difference between the two, here's what 
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- on the left side is a non-net-metering customer. For annual consumption of about average 
12,000-kilowatt hours per year, they pay a fixed monthly fee of about $15 a month or $180 
a year. They pay a basic charge of about 9 .46 cents for every kilowatt they use for about 
1,135 and then they paid a LEAC fifteen. Therefore, when you add this up, they paid a grid 
$3,166 per year. Non-net-metering customers, they pay the $15 or the $108 total for twelve 
months, they pay nothing for the base and the base rate is used to operate and maintain the 
grid and everything else in the system: labor cost; production cost for the people at the 
power plant; all of that. They pay none of that. They don't pay any LEAC cost and so 
they're really offsetting all their energy, not paying any of this grid cost and at the end of 
the year, if they have a unit that's producing 15-thousand kilowatt-hour, which is not 
unreasonable, there's a 3,000 kilowatt hours that they did not use. Then we also pay them 
another $746 for that 3,000 of kilowatt hours but that the difficult part about this is that to 
produce that 3,000-kilowatt hours, it only costs GPA about $486. Again, it's increasing the 
total cost by 260. Again, we're giving them one-one and everything, even beyond their 
needs but really to generate that amount of energy beyond their needs, it costs us half the 
money. But we're paying more. And when I say paying more, all the non-net-metering 
customers. This is one customer. We are 2,000. That's where - when you add that all up the 
differential between all of them, is $3.5 million a year impact, now our proposal is that we 
can do a voided cost which means the 15 cents that will go to about 16 or 17 cents. They 
still could recover their money; it just takes a little longer. 

Chairman Ridgell: Currently the one-to-one rate you're talking about. How much is it 
you're giving net metering customers for their power that they're producing for the grid? 

Mr. Benavente: We're losing about $3.5 billion a year. 

Chairman Ridgell: No, I was asking what is the rate you pay? You said it's a one-to-one 

Mr. Benavente: We paid in full value of25//26 cents. 

Chairman Ridgell: 26 cents per kilowatt-hour? And you're recommending that that be 
reduced to 15 cents per kilowatt-hour. 

Mr. Benavente: We're recommending the base-rate, that 9.4 cents. We're saying they 
really should pay that much and that would take care of paying the grid and paying their 
fair share like everybody. There's 52,000 customers - the 2,000 are not paying their share, 
right, and that's what we're -

Chairman Ridgell: Sure, they are being charged for usage of the grid. 

Mr. Benavente: No, they're using the grid for free and then we're paying them 25 cents. 
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Chairman Ridgell: No, it's being offset so they have a billing of how much they use and 
whatever they use is charged at that rate, the full usage of the - so why can't they pay you 
back at the same rate that they're being charged? 

Mr. Benavente: We have a proposal which is a "buy-all sell-all" meaning you buy the 
power in the left and we sell you for what their voided cost is. Right now, when we do what 
we're doing, today, they're not paying the 9.46 cents which is their share of the system cost 
the for example, DEP. 

Chairman Ridgell: Sure, but you see what I'm saying that they are being billed at the 
regular cost every time they do use the grid and use the power they are being billed at the 
full rate as any other power used. 

Mr. Benavente: It's zeroed out, the kilowatt hour. 

Chairman Ridgell: Sure, but that's how you zeroed out. You figure out how much they're 
using. What I'm saying, for that amount that you're figuring out, that they're using during 
night-time, for example -
Mr. Benavente: But they cannot use if they don't have the grid. 

Senator Ridgell: They're being billed at that rate that is inclusive of the grid cost and then 
they're being offset based on what they're feeding back into the system. 

Mr. Benavente: That's right. But, again, what they're doing is they're using the grid at no 
cost if the one way to do it is that they separated, completely, they would have to put it in 

Chairman Ridgell: That's where I'm having trouble understanding. I get what you're 
saying because they're being offset, correct? 

Mr. Benavente: Offset, I'm sorry. 

Chairman Ridgell: I'm meaning the amount of power that they're putting into the grid is 
being used to offset their power consumption from the grid. 

Mr. Benavente: That's correct. 

Chairman Ridgell: Right, so the amount of power they're putting into the grid is currently 
being paid at the retail which you said was 28 but you said, what was it? 20? 

Mr. Benavente: About 25. 

Chairman Ridgell: I'm sorry. 25 cents per kilowatt-hour. Now, when they're using power 
from the grid, say, at nighttime they're paying that same rate for the power. 25 cents. That's 
the rate being factored into when it's their bills being offset. 
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Mr. Benavente: When they're using, we're buying their power for 25 cents and they're not 
paying us for anything because we don't charge them because they're reusing their own 
power and, but in effect, they should be at least the 9. 9 cents charge there to account for 
them using the system. 

Chairman Ridgell: What I'm getting at is, say, they use a $100 worth of power in a month 
let's just use a simple figure, right? $100 worth of power through the month that they're 
using from the system at night-time. They're not using solar. They're using GPA's power 
that's being produced in the generators at night-time. Let's say there's a $100 a month, right 
now, what the net metering customers are doing is they're offsetting that $100 because they 
are feeding a $100 worth of solar power back into the system during the daytime so my 
point is that $100 figure is based off of a rate that's that 26 cents per kilowatt hour but now 
you don't want to buy the power back from them at the same rate, correct? 

Mr. Benavente: That's correct because our cost to produce that energy of really what 
they're offsetting in the system. 

Chairman Ridgell: That's why my argument is they are paying for it. They're paying when 
factoring in their cost, factoring in the offset to their bill. 
Mr. Benavente: No, they pay on the net. The end of the month, they reproduce. If they use 
a thousand-kilowatt hours and they produce a thousand, there's no charge. There's no zero 
charge, right? Therefore, they use the system but didn't pay anything. Now if that was a 
thousand-kilowatt hour non- solar customer, they would have paid a thousand times nine
cents - $90 - for that month, right? But they didn't pay a single penny for use of the system. 

Chairman Ridgell: That's where I don't understand because they are in the billing I mean 
if they're being billed at -

Mr. Benavente: This is the billing right there, see. They use this thousand-kilowatt hour, 
here, annually. 12,000- 1,000 per month when in they didn't pay anything except that $180 
which the other customers paid to. That's a fixed fee so there's no money exchanging to 
GPA. 

Chairman Ridgell: What is that fixed fee for? 

Mr. Benavente: That's the customer monthly fixed fee. $15 a month. Everybody pays that. 

Chairman Ridgell: What does that pay for? Usage of the grid? 

Mr. Benavente: It's not only the grid but customer service all the different components of 

Chairman Ridgell: So, for example, if I was a customer of GP A and so I'm signed up for 
GPA I have a meter placed in there, right? I have to pay that minimum $15 a month to be 
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a customer. But let's say I don't use any power. Let's say I shut off all my appliances and I 
decided to use candlelight, I use a gas stove, I use zero power. I should still only be paying 
that $15 a month, right? It's the same as metering. 

Mr. Duenas: Mr. Chairman, no. Let me explain. First the $15, first off, all rates at GPA 
are based on what it's called 'costs of service': what it costs to provide the service the PUC 
agreed to, what they call a $15 base charge and that includes the fact that you are a 
customer, we have to send you a bill every month, whether you pay. There are certain fixed 
charges that are part of that. That's what makes up that $15. Now you also have these people 
who are net metering customers. They produce power. The value of the power they 
produce, it helps us in offsetting the oil. In other words, when they produce power that 
means we don't have to bum as much oil. It also means that we can give them a credit on 
the generation piece because they help us with the generation piece. But they still have a 
transformer, lines, they have the transmission and distribution system that they use, and 
there is a little bit of a fallacy that goes on with what's out there because I've heard this so 
many times on advertisements: If you have solar on your roof and batteries, you will never 
be without power. And that is not true. If that were true, then I would welcome anybody to 
leave the system. Nobody is going to leave the system. I have talked to people who are 
really good at this and they said to me, "Joey, I have solar photovoltaics on my roof, I have 
a battery system and I have a diesel generator." And I said, "So, why don't you leave the 
system?" Says, "Oh no, I will never leave the system." They need the grid because without 
the grid, they would have to run their diesel generator. So that's the idea. There's a 
component there that they need and that's the system. That's what they have to. That's what 
they have to pay for. 
Chairman Ridgell: Understood. But are you aware of a value of solar study conducted by 
clean power Research LLC in March of 2018 that shows solar is worth anywhere from 21 
cents per kilowatt hour to 28 cents per kilowatt hour depending on the scenario? 

Mr. Duenas: Yes and you know if you look at that study, Senator, they put into that certain 
other things that are like the value of clean air, the value of the cleaner environment, they 
put all those different things into it and that's not something you can quantify. 

Mr. Benavente: I did an analysis that showed that and one of my presentations, I don't 
have it here, Senator, but there's two components of that study. Basically, on the same page 
except two components of that study and the one component is that they say it costs us 
about five cents a kilowatt hour to hedge against fuel. Well, GP A does not hedge with fuel 
so therefore there's no course. So, you take that to be zero. The other component there is 
that they're saying it costs GP A five cents a kilowatt hour for putting in solar PV s. Well, 
as I was saying earlier, it don't cost us for solar PVs. We're cheaper. The eight and a half 
cents that are coming in that, again, if you take that away our numbers are about the same. 
There's two components there that does not apply to GP A. And so, when you look 
compared and you take that all away, we're basically right there in agreeing on what the 
value of solar as they perceive is really the voided cost of GP A. 
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Chairman Ridgell: Sorry, let's take a five-minute break so they can reset in our AV room. 
It's an issue with recording and uploading it to the Internet. So that we can make sure we're 
streaming this over the internet. So, we'll just take a five-minute break. 

The public hearing was reconvened. 

Chairman Ridgell: Okay, thank you very much. We are back now. We just had to take a 
quick moment, a few minutes recess in order to reset the stream to Y ouTube. That is 
because the Y ouTube Stream is only done in three-hour intervals. We will continue this 
hearing, again this is the oversight hearing on the Guam Power Authority. Just to recap 
briefly where we last left off at we were talking about net metering and the Guam Power 
Authority's current petition to the PUC to lower the rate of compensation to the net 
metering program. That is to lower the amount they will pay to net metering homeowners 
for the solar energy they are feeding back into the system. Where we last left off was 
discussion about the value of solar. Currently, GPA is looking to lower its credits to net 
metering customers from the full retail rate of 26 cents per kilowatt hour down to 15 cents 
per kilowatt hour which is about the LEAC rate. When we last left off I was mentioning 
about a solar study that was done by Clean Power Research, LLC. That said that Solar 
should be worth anywhere from 21 cents per kilowatt hour to 28 cents per kilowatt hour 
depending on the scenario. Chairman Duenas, you were citing some reasons why you don't 
agree with that value of solar study. 

Mr. Duenas: That is correct. I would say that when they produce power, the benefit to the 
system is that we don't have to produce that kilowatt. I don't have a problem with that, but 
they don't pay for the transmission and the distribution, most importantly the distribution 
system. Outside of their house is a transformer, wires, poles, and there's a substation 
somewhere there. All of those costs benefit them. If they disconnected from the system, I 
wouldn't have a problem because then they can keep all the power that they produce, but 
they don't. They produce power and then they give it to us and then they take it back. I'm 
willing to give them a credit for the power they produce up to the 15 cents. That replaces 
what we need to bum, a little bit of the generation costs, those things I think is an acceptable 
thing, but they still use the grid. There has to be a charge for using the grid. It's not that 
GP A is getting short changed, it's the other customers of GP A that are being short changed. 
If we don't recover the cost from the grid, then we have to increase their costs. The non
net metering people have to pay more. There's no magic money pot for GPA, and 
remember, these are all based on what is called cost of service. What does it cost to provide 
the service based on transmission costs, administrative costs, distribution costs, generation 
costs? Wherever they provide the power is in the generation and the oil part, and that's not 
a problem, but they have to pay for the other parts of the system that they do use. If they 
aren't going to do that, then you are going to require that the non-net metering customer 
pay more for his power. That difference that the general manager was showing you that is 
currently at around 3 and a half million or 4 million dollars a year, that cost now has to be 
made up by somebody. It's going to be all the other customers of GPA. 
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Chairman Ridgell: Sir, I understand that is the argument that you guys are presenting 
before the PUC, but again I am having a hard time agreeing with that .. 

Mr. Duenas: Okay, we can disagree. 

Chairman Ridgell: For a net metering customer, they are being credited, right? 

Mr. Duenas: That is correct. 

Chairman Ridgell: They are being credited at a rate that is offsetting what they would 
normally be billed had they not fed that back into the system. 

Mr. Duenas: No, they are given a I to 1 credit. That was set by the PUC with no study of 
what the costs were. It was a one-to-one credit, no study at all. 

Chairman Ridgell: You mean one kilowatt hour, to one kilowatt hour? 

Mr. Duenas: No, one dollar to one dollar. They in other words said, "you will only pay 
the customer service charge at fifteen dollars. You will not pay for anything else as an 
incentive." 

Chairman Ridgell: So, if a net metering customer doesn't produce enough solar energy 
back into the grid, are they paid anything? Say it's cloudy for a whole month and that net 
metering customer is not feeding very much solar energy back into the grid, you're saying 
they are still only charged fifteen dollars? 

Mr. Duenas: For most of them, they will pay a bill. 

Chairman Ridgell: Correct, because they are still being billed, and their bill is being offset 
by how much power they're feeding back into the grid at a one to one ratio. That's what 
the one to one is. 

Mr. Duenas: Yes, but the one to one credit is something that the PUC set up without any 
study. They just said we are going to do this because everybody else was doing it. Now 
everybody else is looking at it. 

Chairman Ridgell: Sure, speaking of study, are you aware of a Daymark Energy 
Advisors' recommendation to the PUC? Their recommendation was to "continue to support 
the Legislature's policy-based decision to encourage the growth of renewables at the 
Customer level and to reject GPA's proposal." Do you agree with that assessment? 

Mr. Duenas: No, I disagree with that and I believe management disagrees with that also. 
That is where it is going to be really up to the PUC. 
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Chairman Ridgell: Daymark also cites, "most of the tats of the U.S. are crediting 
customers at or near the retail rate?" 

Mr. Duenas: Yes, that is at or near. It doesn't mean that they continue to solely do it at 
that rate. They are beginning to back off. 

Mr. Benavente: The trend has been to get away from net metering, Senator. In addition, 
back to the Daymark report, they really did not address the core of our petition, and our 
petition is the cost. If you look at the report, nowhere did they talk about the cost. They 
talk about many customers are still like this, they talk about delayed until the next rate case, 
and all of that. Not one point in that report addressed whether our costs and our numbers 
or anything are really flawed or in fact, should, you know? Are in fact wrong and make a 
recommendation in that, so really we had that report, but they really didn't bring in the 
substance to help address that issue. One question back, here is our cost. We were talking · 
about that research company's study. If you look here, there is a debt service cost of 3.5 
cents. The 3.5 cents is what everyone's paying to pay off the debts that we have. Net 
metering customers don't even pay that. 

Chairman Ridgell: Again, because they aren't being billed. You just admitted that they 
don't produce enough solar energy they do get a bill. That bill is at the rate that includes 
everything you have there. It's the rate everyone pays. 

Mr. Benavente: They're getting credit on kilowatt hours. At the end of the year, it's true, 
if they use a little less than they pay that for the little that they didn't produce. They produce 
more, we still pay them at the twenty-five cents, which is what I was showing earlier. For 
example, if a system produces fifteen thousand kilowatt hours and they only use twelve, 
the 3000 kilowatt hours we buy back from them, at twenty six, twenty five cents but yet, 
to produce the same amount of energy, 3000 kilowatt hours, it only costs us four hundred 
eighty dollars versus the seven hundred forty six. Not only do we lose out for not paying 
anything for the system, we also have to pay them more for just generating without any 
value. 
Chairman Ridgell: We have already established that if a net metering customer doesn't 
produce enough solar energy to offset their power bill they do get a power bill depending 
on how much they produce. If a net metering customer produces more than what they're 
using from the system, are they credited for that as well? In other words, do you pay them 
for the solar that they put into the system over what they use. 

Mr. Benavente: It's almost like the LEAC. They get credited over and under recovery, 
GPA does not make any money out of that. Let's go back to renewables, to the solar PV. 

Chairman Ridgell: Well just answer that. It's a yes or no. 

Mr. Benavente: No, let me finish this part. They usually have a credit ahead of time. That 
particular month where you saying that they didn't generate enough then they use their 
credit, they still didn't get- for that period of month where they didn't generate enough to 
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cover their needs, it's because of the credit before that they used to offset that they still 
don't pay anything to GP A. 

Chairman Ridgell: So, you're saying the credits rollover to the next month? 

Mr. Benavente: They keep rolling over unless at the end of the year, you have to decide 
as a customer, whether you want us to pay you for all the overage. Otherwise, the credit 
rolls over from month to month to month, so if you have a big bank of the credits if you 
over produce, you don't pay anything more than your fifteen dollars. That's why if we had 
a buy all sell all law, that would address some of the things you are talking about. If you 
buy power from us, you pay just like anything else. You have a separate meter for what · 
you sell to us. On the one to one credit right now, they get the full twenty-five cents. What 
we're saying, and maybe down the road we can agree to a certain number, whether its 
seventeen or sixteen cents, that's what we'll pay you back. That way you don't mix the two 
together. That's why I'm hoping something will come out of this petition to begin to 
address that and to begin to, we're asking for a phase out approach. We're asking for a 
five-year phase out approach so that they can at least pay the base rate and we will give 
them benefit for line losses, any other variable cost that we are offsetting and all those 
different things. Right now, their credits keep on passing over. 

Chairman Ridgell: How would that affect customers who signed on to a net metering 
customer at the current rate? 

Mr. Benavente: In the future? We are also asking the PUC that beyond the existing 
customers we get paid at the new rate, the avoided cost rate. Otherwise, we are still 
compounding. Why is that a big concern? The big concern is that the non-net metering 
customers are going to be paying for this. Secondly, take it from a manager's concern. Here 
it is. I have a budget revenue coming in every year and expenditures. When it comes in, 
there is one component, one variable that I am not in control of or aware of. I don't know 
what it may be. That component is the three and a half million dollars that is going out 
every year for solar net metering. That's coming out of the base rate, the revenues that we 
receive for running this system. They continue to do that, 2000 customers is three and a 
half million. You add another thousand customers over the next month, so where does that 
go? That goes to four and a half, almost five million. Now I have to take another million 
and a half from the main budget, keep on doing that scenario. When does it impact the 
customers? When we have to file a rate case because we cannot meet obligations. Then the 
rates are going to go up for everybody else because all of these non-paid expenditures are 
there. That's the key here, that's the concern as to why we are bringing it up to make sure 
there is parity in the system. 

Chairman Ridgell: But that power they are feeding back into the system, you can tum 
around and sell to other customers. 

Mr. Benavente: Again, the other part of this is that they're generating power in the 
daytime. 
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Chairman Ridgell: So, if you lower their rate for crediting, then you should lower the 
other customer's rate because you're paying a lower rate from the net metering. 
Mr. Benavente: I won't mix the two yet ifl may go back to the daytime production. If you 
want to go apple to apple, right? Daytime production? That's the cheapest time of the day 
to generate power for GPA, because we have base load capacity, the load is not that high. 
In the evening and that rate could be twelve or thirteen cents? In the evening, when we 
used the peakers that goes up to seventeen to nineteen. Here they are, they are putting in 
this rate where they are selling us power that we don't need really and then it's costing us 
more in the evening for more fuel. That's an additional impact to non-net metering 
customers with this type of scenario. 

Chairman Ridgell: You said that daytime power production is cheaper? 

Mr. Benavente: That's right because the base load are running and as you go higher and 
higher, you have to run peakers to generate the energy. 

Chairman Ridgell: So, you don't charge customers different rates for daytime or night 
time? 

Mr. Benavente: No. 

Mr. Duenas: That's called time of use rates and we don't do that. We don't do that because 
the peak for Guam is in the evening when people leave their work and go home and start 
to do laundry, start to cook, start to do all the other things that they do. Therefore, that's 
the highest cost of the day in terms of the power because John has to tum on all of these 
other units. When you do that, what happens is- if we went to time of use rates where 
they're trying to encourage people to change their patterns and save. Don't do your laundry 
at night, do it in the middle of the night. That would be very difficult for our population, 
so we have resisted the urge to go to time of use rates. Time of use rates works well if 
people can control their time and they can schedule their work and all the other things they 
do. I guess, Senator, I think we probably are not doing good enough job at trying to explain 
this to you and I don't know if we can. The way this is resolved is really the PUC is the 
one who has the ultimate decision, and so, we put forth a case and we tried to explain the 
case to you that we put forth to the PUC. It's up now to the PUC to decide what to do. They 
are the ones who have to evaluate. They are the ones who were given the Daymark study. 
They have to read it. It is not for us to come up and say, "PUC don't do this, do this." 

Chairman Ridgell: Well it is, you are the petitioning entity. 
Mr. Duenas: Yes, and so we have done the petition based on our data. We aren't doing a 
good enough job of helping you understand why we have taken the position we have taken 
but what I am trying to tell you is the way that this is structured, having once upon a time 
being on the PUC. We, then give them our petition, and their job is to evaluate our petition 
and they set the rates. We don't set the rates, we petition. They set the rates, therefore, what 
I'm trying to say is it's really up to the PUC and we're going to wait for their position and 
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that's what we're going to do. Unless you're trying to tell us to change our position. That's 
what we can't do, because based on our knowledge, our position that we're taking is 
correct. 

Chairman Ridgell: I'm trying to understand the logic behind the petition. 

Mr. Duenas: We're not doing a very good job. 

Chairman Ridgell: I think you're done a good job at explaining. I just disagree with the 
logic. 

Mr. Duenas: We can appreciate that. We can agree to disagree. What I'm trying to say is 
that the final arbiter is the PUC. 

Chairman Ridgell: Are you aware the Daymark report says, "Distributed solar is a good 
resource for the island that adds to the resource diversity and has the potential to provide 
distribution locational benefits, discouraging it is not ideal." 

Mr. Benavente: Our answer to that is that in Guam, we designed the system really quite 
reliability [sic]. So, every circuit basically, except for one that I know, has the backfeeding 
capability. Therefore, if something happens at the end of the customer's line we can feed 
from the other end. Distributed solar, as they will note, is really ... for example in San 
Diego, you have this one city way out in the mountain and all of that. They are saying 
instead of transmitting all of that power and when the transmission line goes out, they're 
without power. Distributed generation has locational value. It doesn't have locational value 
for Guam. The way that our system is set up because we had to set it up to make sure that 
it's reliable for everyone. I disagree with that statement. The one value that it does which 
we agree and we have stated already is that because they are generating power there, and 
distributing it right to that area, you get a credit for line losses because you don't have to 
distribute power such a long way and lose energy. There is that saving to the system and 
that saving is about five and a half percent. When you take the total fuel cost of the LEAC 
divided by .95 that's the number that they could get which we agree with. As far as thtk: 
physical help or assistance, maybe one out of the 52,000 customers or none at all. 

Chairman Ridgell: Senator Perez. Do you have a question? Sorry, I forgot to recognize 
that Senator Sabina Perez has joined us. Forgive me, I was caught up in the line of 
questioning and forgot to recognize your presence. 

Senator Sabina F. Perez: As chairperson of the committee on environment, my concern 
is greenhouse gases and basically compliance with clean air act. I understand one of the 
big reasons for the new power plant as part of the state implementation plan is to address 
the nonattainment for Cabras and Piti. My concern or my interest is looking forward or 
looking ahead when they do possibly impose requirements regarding nitrous oxide as well 
as greenhouse gases and other criteria for contaminants and pollutants. I would like, I 
guess, as part of the environment to increase, obviously there was a law that was introduced 
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to increase the renewable portfolio to 50 percent. I guess it tagged along to what you were 
saying about distributed generation and the positives of that. The positives of that is you 
reduce the amount ofline loss you have to transmit over long distances. I would like to see 
a co-existence occur. One hundred percent renewable would be a great thing for Guam. It 
would be great to work towards that. I understand the drawbacks of having solar because 
it only happens during the daytime, but I know there is more advances coming online as 
far as the smart grid is concerned. The batteries are becoming more advanced where we 
can store that energy in a battery pack. Potentially, some other renewable energy besides 
solar can subsidize that lost at night. I am interested to hear about the flexibility of the grid 
as it occurs on Guam. I know there is some financial things we have to consider for GP A. 
I am just interested to see what is the maximum that we can achieve as far as distributed 
solar power generation pertaining to the grid. 

Mr. Duenas: I would like to give you the big overview first. We are very supportive of 
going to fifty percent renewable. We believe we can achieve that. We believe 2035 is a 
good target because that gives us the time to make all the other component changes to the 
transmission and distribution system to get there. We also believe that by 2035 something 
else may come along. We'll be able to get better at it. In all of our knowledge and all of 
our research and going out to look at different areas. The best places that have a chance at 
getting a hundred percent renewable right now are states like Washington State that have 
huge hydroelectric power. Therefore, that is a renewable energy. Most states don't have 
that ability. The mainland is looking at a big grid system where when you are producing 
solar in this area it is still nighttime on the west coast. As the Sun moves across it continues 
to put solar not the system and you are going to be moving, shifting back and forth because 
then you can run power plants here, shut down power plants here. Guam as a small little 
island doesn't really benefit from those things. The best place may be to indicate that you 
will be able to use distributed would really be the Southern end of the island. When you 
have to push power to the southern end of the island, you have very low load factors, then 
it might make sense to say well if you put more some part of renewable energy in that area. 
Then again, you have the problem of if it produces too much power, where does that power 
go? Guam as a whole is a very small grid. Those things don't really benefit us yet, but by 
203 5, who knows? There's going to be something else that will come along that will benefit 
us. All I am saying is we are working on our plan and our plan is going down the road and 
the 180 megawatt plant we are putting up up north is going to give us the ability to work 
with the renewables that go up and down and to work with all the other things that allow 
us to put more renewable in the system. Really, looking beyond that I am going to tell you 
I do not know anybody who can tell me with certainty where they are going to go. I asked 
the small grid system in Kauai for example. We visited that place and they have a little bit 
of hydropower in Kauai. I asked them, I said, "you guys are mandated to go to a hundred 
percent renewable. What does that mean to you?" You know what their answer to me was? 
"We don't know." I said, "what do you mean?" They said, "we don't know if they are 
asking us to do a hundred percent of our current generation and renewable, half that amount 
available in renewable. We don't know if they're saying we need to produce a hundred 
percent of our peak power in renewable, we don't know ifthat means you have to produce 
a hundred percent of your average load in renewable power. Nowhere, believe me, you can 
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look at all the statutes, you can look at Hawaii, which I like because they are small islands. 
Nowhere do they identify what they mean by a hundred percent renewable. There is 
nowhere that I have ever read where they say a hundred percent renewable means this and 
so we believe that where we are headed to is going to benefit the island, it's clean, it's also 
going to cut or cost. It's going to help our ratepayers, and we are still going to have the 
reliability of the power plants we need to have, and they work well with the renewable 
energy that we have today. 

Mr. Benavente: Ifwe, I'm sorry thank you sir. Ifwe look at just the next ten years of how 
renewables will place in our generation capacity, the contracts that we have in place and 
working to have in place including this forty megawatts on navy leased land, saying that 
26 percent of our energy by 2021 will come from renewables. You add the 20 megawatts 
out there of net metering, you're talking about 200 megawatts. The new power plant will 
be coming on the line around 2022. In the meantime, again that new power plant is 
definitely needed, otherwise we can't add anymore renewables to the system. The type of 
units cannot take the renewable intermittency. Therefore, when the new power plant comes 
on the line we can add another 200 megawatts with some upgrades in the transmission 
system because we have to transmit this energy from all different directions with our 
redundancy so that if one line fails the system continues to operate. Therefore, you can get 
towards the fifty percent by the goal of the 2035 if not earlier. Of course, we're going to 
try to overpromise and under deliver, but we need a new power plant. We need some 
transmission upgrade, different things. We can achieve toward the fifty percent renewables. 
Right now, the most that we can put into the system will be what's being planned right now 
until that new power plant comes on the line. That will give you fifty percent. Beyond that 
you continue to again to take the next step. There might be other opportunities. The taboo 
word waste to energy gives you three percent of the energy. Other type ofrenewables that 
come out. Every time we go out for a bid for renewables, we didn't say solar PV or wind 
energy or anything. It is open to everything. I mentioned earlier, we had one bidder the 
previous time bid on geothermal and that came in at 24 cents a kilowatt hour versus the 
eight and a half on solar PV. Again, every time we go out and ·bid for renewables, all the 
renewable systems are welcome to come to the table and bid a price. That will continue to 
add to our renewable portfolio. The next five years we will reach the 26 percent for three 
to five years. Beyond that, we can add another similar amount of energy and that will give 
us fifty percent. 

Senator Perez: Is it accurate to say that with more solar panels you would have to increase 
the amount that GPA is producing to offset the fluctuation? Is it a one to one ratio? what's 
the ratio? 

Mr. Benavente: The new power plant would actually help to reduce the intermittency 
because it reacts faster. Today, the machines can act fast enough so when the Solar PV 
goes down, the machine has to catch that variance in tenths of a second, actually even less 
than that. The battery system we are putting in in Agana and Talofofo, 40 megawatts. The 
new power plant, and then additional batteries that are coming in with the Solar PV s 
because all Solar PV system henceforth has to have batteries in it so that to prevent this 
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additional decaying of the system. All of that now will begin to stabilize the system and 
provide quality power. The way it is now, if we don't put in that new flexible generation 
that will allow you to react quickly, that will allow you to tum it on and shut it down 
because when renewables start generating power, there's nothing left for these machines 
to carry, therefore you have to shut it down. That's what the new power plant is going to 
be able to do. It's going to be able to do that. Tum on, tum off. Ramp up quickly, ramp 
down quickly. That will now make us really open up to more renewables and more 
importantly a more reliable and improved quality in the type of service that we provide. 

Senator Perez: Now you're requiring with distributed generation that they have a means 
to offset the fluctuation, so that would mean there is less of a need to have this flexible 
requirement. 

Mr. Benavente: That's a scenario that needs further discussion. There is a movement to 
go ahead and keep on putting batteries and solar PV s and net metering and all of that. They 
really need to evaluate the cost of that. My evaluation of it really says that it's better for 
the utility to put in the battery system because of the economies of scale. They just pay 
their share of that system then have all these individual batteries. Battery packs can be as 
much as six to ten thousand dollars. For the amount of energy they carry, one battery pack 
won't serve you for the whole day. I have analyzed for the battery pack how many battery 
packs you need for an average home; you are going to need three or four modules. When 
you take that and evaluate the amount of energy they use and the battery life of ten years, 
because typically they last ten years, it comes up to almost twenty-five cents a kilowatt 
hour just for the battery. I am saying that the battery that GP A is putting in, 40 megawatts 
for everybody to pay for it actually averages out to 0.2 cents per kilowatt hour. If customers 
just pay for the grid cost, unless they just prefer they have their battery, they prefer they 
want to get away from GP A. In terms of economics, make sure you analyze the economics 
of the battery system before you make that commitment or long-term commitment to 
purchase it. That is just a preference. That's the numbers that I have worked out. 

Senator Perez: We have folks here from the industry would you like to comment 
regarding ... 

Chairman Ridgell: I would like to invite up Mr. Voacolo. Please tum on the microphone 
and introduce yourself for the record. 

Thank you very much. I appreciate the opportunity to speak. I didn't expect to speak today. 
We just came in here to listen. 

Chairman Ridgell: We just see you sitting here. 

Jeffrey Voacolo, Vice President- Micronesia Renewable Energy, Inc.: I appreciate it. 
Thank you for the opportunity. One thing I can say in GPA's plan is that there is nothing 
in there about private energy. Nothing about distributed energy in that plan. I feel pretty 
disheartened with that. A lot of comments that were made by GP A we feel are not true. 
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Even two years ago when we met with GP A numerous times at plenty of public hearings, 
we told them, look. Batteries are coming. When we did the value of solar study we said 
that we do not disagree with you, we do not add capacity to your grid. Right now, in the 
last two years batteries have came down forty percent. Efficiencies have gone up sixty 
percent. That was in a two-year time period. What is going to be going on in five years, ten 
years? You have a public utility that is a monopoly on the island. In ten years do I feel that 
private energy is going to be able to sell energy cheaper than the utility? 150%. The 25-
cent comment that was made, we can deliver two batteries to a household, get a normal 
household through the night, Sun comes up in the morning charges the battery, that is 
twenty-one cents. Our industry is growing. It is getting legs. We are moving very quickly; 
technology is moving extremely fast now. To build a 180 MW power plant with an industry 
that is growing so quickly with technology, every year is just manifesting and becoming 
more and more efficient, less expensive. I think we are on a pathway we should not be 
going down right now. I got to meet a gentleman who was the grandfather of solar energy 
in West Germany, his name is Hermann Scheer. I met him twenty years ago. He said twenty 
years ago, "In two decades, if anybody is investing in fossil fuels power plants, you are 
going to be sitting on stranded assets. I can tell seriously, being in this industry as long as 
I have, these power plants are going to be stranded assets. Distributed generation through 
the island is the way to go. It spreads that power out. They are just asking to get minimum 
baseload generation, of course I think we need that. Distributed generation, we need it. I 
have never seen such a hard campaign that is going on right now with the utility against 
the private industry. The numbers that they are giving, three million dollars, we have 
debated those numbers. We do not believe in cost shifting anyways, it is a myth. 
Laboratories put a report out, they have proved that it is a myth. Even if you take the 
numbers that they stand on it is not even three and a half million. It is actually two and a 
half million dollars, but we do not even believe that is factual. That is data that is third 
party neutral data. That is what we go by. We did a value of solar study. The value of solar 
study stated that in distributed generation, this is what you have if we do not add capacity 
with batteries, this is what our energy is worth if we do add capacity. Right now, the solar 
systems that we are installing, we are installing with battery storage. I appreciate the 
opportunity, but distributed generation helps the island. Distributed generation is needed. 
If you have solar farms, if you take a look at a case study with Puerto Rico, solar farms did 
not fare well there. Puerto Rico is a lot bigger than Guam and the CNMI. Distributed 
generation in Puerto Rico did extremely well. We just rode out Typhoon Yutu. At that time, 
we had 418 systems installed. 80 percent of our systems, no problem at all. 20 percent we 
had back online at three and a half weeks. We were there waiting for the utility to hook up 
their power. Right now, we are installing the Tesla batteries in Saipan. Next typhoon that 
comes through, these customers would be able to have power go right in through the 
typhoon and after the typhoon. Distributed generation on small islands like Guam and the 
CNMI makes perfect sense. Thank you. 

Chairman Ridgell: Just to be clear for the audience that is listening, when we are talking 
about distributed generation, distributed solar specifically, that is referring to rooftop solar. 
What you are talking about with regards to the percentage of loss in Saipan, what was it 
again? Basically, you are saying the rooftop solar fared well after Yutu? 
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Mr. Voacolo: It did. We had four hundred and eighteen systems when Typhon Yutu went 
through. As everybody knows that was gusts up to 230 miles per hour. Approximately 82 
of our systems were damaged. We had two systems that were completely wiped out. The 
rest of the system were a couple panels here, a couple panels here and that was 80% of 
twenty percent. About 82 systems. If you had a solar farm there, it would have been totally 
destroyed. A solar farm on an island in typhoon alley, does that really make sense? Does it 
add energy security? Does it add resiliency to the grid? I honestly don't believe that. 

Chairman Ridgell: Do you believe that distributed solar generation is more reliable? 

Mr. Voacolo: For sure. Especially being out here in the Pacific. 
Chairman Ridgell: Senator Perez, do you have any questions? 

Senator Perez: Yes, I would like to further explore this topic with the parties here today. 
If there is a way we can implement more renewable energy, less greenhouse gas emissions. 
I don't know if this is something that we can work at this time. I would like to further 
explore this basically. 

Chairman Ridgell: Thank you. Your line of questioning has already led into the next issue 
on the agenda which is the renewable portfolio update which you sort of began discussing 
already. You mentioned that you believe you will be at twenty five percent portfolio of 
renewable by what day was it? 

Mr. Benavente: 2021 

Chairman Ridgell: And you believe that it is doable to get to 50% by ... 

Mr. Benavente: 2035 is a reasonable date. 

Chairman Ridgell: My question is, what do you think is the maximum percentage that 
this system can get to with renewables. 

Mr. Benavente: Again, we like to take a step at time. It may seem like when I talk about 
distributed generation, I tend to talk about any type. When we are looking at heading to 25 
to 50 and beyond there are some parts that distributed generation or smaller rooftop solars 
will have a part in, but the economies of scale are really on the larger utility scale and all 
of that. 

Chairman Ridgell: There's some other models- oh go ahead, I will let you continue. 

Mr. Benavente: From a scale for bases, to get to 100% on solar PV, you are talking about 
almost 4000 acres of either raw land, combination of rooftops and all of that. 

Chairman Ridgell: What if every rooftop was covered in solar? 
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Mr. Benavente: I think I estimated that every rooftop will give us 20-30 MWs. You need 
the raw land and all of this, not only the big parcels but the small parcels. It is going to start 
coming from economies of scale that we are running out of big land to bring the costs 
down, and maybe it is going to incrementally increase. Again, that's the process we are 
going through. We are putting in so much of the time. Again, costs are coming down, 
technologies are improving, and we are catching it that way. That is why we have the target 
of 25% of 2035, we are achieving it early. The target let's just change that 2035 date to 
50% and we are going to do our best to achieve it. I have myself a date, it is my date in my 
mind, but I believe that it is achievable by or before 2035. 

Chairman Ridgell: Again, what percentage do you think is the maximum percentage of 
renewables that the system could reach. 

Mr. Benavente: I don't have that number in my mind. 
Chairman Ridgell: So, if you believe 50% is doable by 2035 so I am wondering because 
I heard you make this statement before and I believe Chairman Duenas has made similar 
statements that base load generation is still required. You are going to need some form of 
baseload generation from a plant that burns oil, basically. Is that correct? 

Mr. Benavente: My recommendation is that you always have a backup conventional 
generation. That is why we believe that this is the last conventional plant that we build. 
Remember there is a huge paradigm shift between what we were generating before and 
what we were generating now. We need plans that work with renewables, hence the 180 
megawatts. We do have combustion turbines that are around it so that will provide the 
backbone for the system because again, the storm comes in, you're going to have to keep 
the water wells running, it's going to be hard if you just go on solar. Everything else will 
be more, beyond that will be what's available in renewables and what cost and how can we 
get there and how it could be done. I just don't know the number yet. 

Chairman Ridgell: That's what I was getting at. If you are saying that we are going to 
need some baseload generation from generators that burn fuel, what is the minimum 
amount of generators that burn fuel that this system can run on. In other words, what is the 
maximum number ofrenewables you think the system can achieve. Is it 75%? 80%? 90% 
renewables? You say 100% is not feasible so I am wondering what is feasible. 

Mr. Benavente: I don't have that number right now. I know it can be more than 50% but 
how much more? I don't know. Maybe we need to categorize this whether we can probably 
run renewables like some people do where you run renewables for a day and you serve 
everything, all that energy for a day, but is that 100% renewable going to be there for every 
day or every kind of day or weather or condition in the future? If you don't have it there, 
remember our economy is really based on having energy. That's why, again, you need that 
conventional energy. We need for sure this 180 MW, beyond that, we need to take a look 
at what else is going to come in. Other baseloads, again, I will go back to waste to energy. 
That is solid base load at 3%. Other things like that can give you baseload energy, but other 
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than the conventional burning of oil, the less we have the better it is. Remember we went 
from 2. 7 million barrels a year to 1. 7 million barrels. We continue to drive that down. 

Chairman Ridgell: You mentioned earlier about the distributed solar and you mentioned 
you thought that was mostly referencing the net metering, but have you heard of a solar 
host program? 

Mr. Benavente: Yes, I have heard of it and we will take a look at all these other programs. 
We are still studying all of that. Again, to get to 50% you look at all of this. Even us when 
we go out for utility scale, do we have another 120, 150 available? Maybe that's all. That 
is when you have to go to the other type of things. Solar hosting is basically utilizing the 
customers' rooftop and providing some incentive to that customer. In my opinion, we need 
to make it a win-win scenario. That is an opportunity that is not off the table. We aren't 
even saying no more net metering anymore. We are just saying no net metering 1 to 1 credit 
anymore. 

Chairman Ridgell: How about some other forms of energy, Mr. Voacolo it is up to you if 
you want to sit at the table, Senator Perez do you have any questions? 
Senator Perez: Yeah I do have a question. Let's say we are successful in making Guam 
renewable reliant, what would be effect of the cost of fuel? I imagine it would go up and 
at what point will it be really expensive for energy here on Guam to be burning fossil fuels? 
Is there a point? Have you guys calculated that number? 

Mr. Benavente: Can you repeat the question again, Senator, please? 

Senator Perez: The concept is that I want to transition Guam to be more renewable energy 
reliant which means we are going to have a mixture of fossil fuel energy production. What 
would that do to the cost of fuel if you are importing fuel to run the power plant? How do 
we get to that point when we become more energy independent? 

Mr. Benavente: The program as we have it today is by 2021 have 25% of our energy from 
renewables with solar PV. At that part, we just awarded a contract of 120 MWs of solar 
PV at eight and a half cents a kilowatt hour. Eight and a half cents per kilowatt hour versus 
the 15 cents per kilowatt hour that we are paying at the LEAC today. That in itself, if2021 
is like today, would be a nineteen-million-dollar savings so that would begin to bring down 
the total fuel costs. The new power plant is going to bum less fuel. It is going to bum ultra
low sulfur diesel which is clean and get away from the cheap fuel we are burning today 
which is dirty. That is going to come in at better efficiency and so that cost will be almost 
what is costing with the baseloads today. Ultra-low sulfur diesel, that is the plan. The third 
component of the plan is to natural gas. Natural gas and equivalent costs per barrel for 
natural gas to bring it in here, I estimate to be about 57, 58 dollars a barrel. Right now, our 
cost per oil per barrel is about 73 dollars. Again, natural gas can bring that down. If oil 
goes haywire like it was mentioned earlier in the hearing where some projections it will go 
to 200 dollars, 100 dollars a barrel. Now you have three components in the system to be 
able to control your costs and more importantly stabilize your costs into the future. In the 
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renewables, our escalated assumed cost is only 1 %. That eight and a half cents per kilowatt 
hour will only be about ten and a half cents in 20-25 years. Those three components are 
really going to reduce our total energy costs in the future, and more importantly, begin to 
sustain a reasonable energy cost future and not have to deal with oil this way. We go to 
50%, we have gotten rid of 50% and at the bottom 50% we have oil or natural gas to control 
that as you continue to move forward to other opportunities. Other things that come up. 

Senator Perez: I guess the other part of the equation is how much energy we are going to 
use. If we can conserve energy then we can probably meet that number quicker. As far as 
50% by 2035, if we can somehow use less energy, I mean, what is the status of that? Are 
we increasing and how fast are we increasing our demand? 

Mr. Benavente: Right now, there has been a slowdown in demand has started to tum on 
and part of it is weather wise. All of a sudden it is getting hot the past two months. You 
heard in radio, how come my bill went up? Basically, it is because of consumption, it's 
getting hot and all of that. Military buildup is going to bring some growth. The military is 
going to need 7 MW s. Yes, we are going to have some growth but the other side of the 
equation is we have been providing DSM rebates to try to encourage and I am sorry Senator 
I have to commend you because you have a bill trying to encourage the government to go 
to energy efficient air conditioning. You have 5000 split airs in Guam DOE schools. 
Imagine if they just get energy efficiency on those units, because that is your highest cost 
of energy for those schools. Again, that will help reduce the demand. By reducing the 
demand, we are using less oil on other things. I like your other bill looking at electric 
vehicles because part of our vision is encouraging more and more electric vehicles because 
it is cheaper to run electric vehicles than it is for gasoline. It is less fluctuating because if 
we get our energy costs more stable, it is not going to fluctuate much. Again, the OEM 
manufacturers if you read a lot of this stuff, in the next five years, they are coming out with 
more and more products of electric vehicles which I hope will bring the cost of vehicles. 
Just like it did for Solar PV, hopefully we can encourage more people here to use electric 
vehicles to keep our energy costs down. It will make our energy costs much better. 

Chairman Ridgell: On that note, you brought up electric vehicles, are you aware of some 
programs that they are currently working on now developing that would utilize the electric 
vehicles as a battery source to feed back into the system? 

Mr. Benavente: Yes, that is correct. That is other things that you could consider because 
that is something you have to have already with your car so how can we utilize it to be a 
win-win scenario for both parties. 

Chairman Ridgell: I was just wondering if you were aware of some of that technology. 

Mr. Benavente: Especially if you get them away from charging in the peak time because 
the peak is our highest cost energy. It just goes back to be careful on this time of day. If I 
may just say one thing, because you know who pays the most if you use on the peak time 
of day? Residential customers. They are the ones who are creating the peak. Not that I am 
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saying that you will not be a part of the system, but we have to see when is maybe the right 
time in the system to change behavior, no? 

Chairman Ridgell: Do you have some more questions? Go ahead. 

Senator Perez: What is the actual number? How much energy do we use on Guam and 
how has it increase in the past five years or decreased? I just want an actual number how 
much are we using in electricity and how much has it changed in the past five years. 

Mr. Benavente: We will provide you the numbers, but it has been very close. In 2012-
2013, it started to go down because of the oil prices were at 110 dollars a barrel. Then it 
went down until in 2016 when oil is low, it started to tum back upwards. Now again it is 
starting to tum. That is saying that we have a lot of elasticity here which means people are 
just at the borderline of their costs of energy. In terms of the total revenue, that fluctuation 
has not been very significant. It has been almost relatively flat, but we can provide that to 
you, Senator. Right now, we use or sell about 1.6 billion Kilowatt Hours a year and we use 
about 2. 7 million barrels of oil a year. 

Mr. Voacolo: If I could, thank you. Just going back and just say how powerful distributed 
generation solar energy is. If you just chunked it and took the Department of Education 
schools that we have. We could put 20 MWs on 37 schools that are currently here on Guam. 
With that, we could save the Department of Education about 4.2 million dollars a year 
annually going back to the DO E's budget. There is an opportunity cost. The utility is saying 
2021 we are going to be coming online with solar energy. We could deploy about 20 
megawatts in 8 months on the Department of Education schools. That is probably about 
half of their shortfall on their budget going back to the schools and that is just the schools 
that is just 20 MW s there. Thank you. 

Senator Perez: That's appropriate because schools operate during the daytime and you 
wouldn't necessarily see the fluctuation at night. That is appropriate, thank you. 

Mr. Voacolo: That is correct and now if you add the Tesla powerpacks with the school 
strategically placed. Now you have shelters that will never be without power, so that is 
another consideration. 

Chairman Ridgell: Also, those batteries would feedback into the system and could feed 
in during peaks. 

Mr. Voacolo: And help the utility out, thank you. 

Chairman Ridgell: Senator Perez, if you have any more questions, I would like to move 
on. Still with the renewable side, we have been talking about solar, but I wanted to talk 
about something else, particularly wind turbines. What happened with the wind turbine 
contract with Pacific Green Resources in Inarajan? Why did that contract fall through? 
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Mr. Benavente: They did not deliver. 

Chairman Ridgell: Was there any indication why they did not deliver? 

Mr. Benavente: I know we had a performance fund. We took the performance and 
eventually went back but they did not deliver. 

Chairman Ridgell: Were they the only bidder? 

Mr. Benavente: They were the only bidder on wind. Let me go off to the side of this, we 
do have one 270 KW wind turbine that we put up at Windward hills and that was a two
million-dollar kilowatt. If it was just us spending that money, I would not have gone with 
it, but now it is free and now that energy is free to the system. I could speculate but all I 
know is we contracted, and we supported it to get it done and they just did not get it done. 

Chairman Ridgell: Since they did not fulfill their contract are there any plans to rebid it 
out? 

Mr. Benavente: No. Any renewable bid, for example, the next one after this we put out 
for Phase IV, anyone can bid on it. 

Chairman Ridgell: Oh, it is open to any type of renewable not specific to a certain kind 
of renewable, I see. 
Mr. Benavente: That is correct. Any type. What was mentioned earlier about wave power? 
They can all bid. 

Chairman Ridgell: Also has GP A repaid the 1.24-million-dollar security deposit for 
Pacific Green Resources. 

Mr. Benavente: That is correct, it was arbitration. 

Chairman Ridgell: So, you guys did pay that back already. Back to that wind turbine 
along cross island road. That was a two million-dollar DOI grant, correct? I believe the 
purpose of that was to provide data about viability about larger wind projects on Guam. 
What data has that provided so far? 

Mr. Benavente: We have 24/7 data it is available when we go out for bid, people will ask 
for information and we will provide that information. You want that data? 

Chairman Ridgell: My understanding is that it is a grant so that GP A can gather data and 
see if it is viable enough to do a wind farm? My question is what has GPA determined as 
a result of that project? 

Mr. Benavente: We can say that wind is viable to Guam, but unless the commercial entity 
or the private entity comes in and gives a competitive bid it is really ... That information is 
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there, and that information will be provided if they are looking to research to provide. There 
are some indications now that some people will be interested in providing wind again. The 
next bid we are going to provide information to them. That is what you use it for, to 
determine whether you can generate enough energy to make the project worthwhile. I do 
not have that summary in my head, but I can get a summary. 

Chairman Ridgell: Has GP A done any analysis from the data from the turbine? Any type 
of study to determine whether wind is viable? 

Mr. Benavente: I believe our team has. 

Chairman Ridgell: If you do have a study or analysis of that I would be interested in 
seeing that if you can provide it to me, thank you. 

Mr. Benavente: Sure, we will get it to you. 

Chairman Ridgell: Alright, I would like to move on to the next item on the agenda which 
is future capital improvement projects and plans of the Power Authority as well as bond 
borrowing. My first question is what is some of GP A's major future capital improvement 
projects on the horizon? 

Mr. Benavente: The major one is of course the new power plant. The other ones that we 
are working on now we are working on the next five to ten-year ones, more specifically 
next five one is all the different transmission upgrades that are necessary for adding more 
renewables and to strengthening the grid and all of that. That we are preparing now but 
again, we are funding all the CIP needs today from just our cash flow from the debt service 
coverage. That is up to 25 million dollars a year that we are constantly putting into the 
system. For the bigger amounts, the 115 cable lines which may be ten or fifteen million 
dollars of the stuff, we are putting that all together now to see what is our next plan of 
action on that. The other capital improvement projects that we are doing right now is really 
still again funded from internally generated cash. We are changing out all the streetlights 
on the island to LED. We are receiving almost 4000 units at the end of this month. We are 
going to change that out. We have a bid out for another 8000 units. I think within the next 
twelve to eighteen months, the whole island will be under LED which has a savings that 
will translate to the Government of Guam, to DPW who is our customer. The neighborhood 
could fund maybe another 2-3000 lights at the same cost today. We are moving forward on 
that project. Those are the majors CIPs. First, we need to see what the new plan will cost 
us before we can afford to do much more and the only critical ones that we see right now 
to add savings is the one that we have to do for renewables. 

Chairman Ridgell: What I am wondering is if you are looking for any future bond 
borrowing that will be required for any capital improvement projects in the near future? 

Mr. Benavente: I don't know. I think in another two or three months I will know that 
answer. I will know because, of course I will have to get approvals, but we will be planning 
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towards that if they agree to it. Of course, we have to come to the Legislature for bond 
borrowing. 

Chairman Ridgell: Why is that two or three months? Is it because you will know more 
about the power plant, is that why? 

Mr. Benavente: Yes. Everything else, it all kind of drives us now. It is a major cost that is 
going to be there, so we have to manage our rates. 

Chairman Ridgell: Then we will move on, unless you have any questions on this topic? 
Go ahead. So now the last item on the agenda is the power generation for the military 
buildup? You guys touched on it a little bit earlier, but I want to go over it a little bit more. 
In essence, my first question is how much more power will GP A need to produce for the 
military buildup? 

Mr. Benavente: Their estimate is about 7 Megawatts. Our peak demand last year was 254 
MWs. 

Chairman Ridgell: Does GP A currently have the capacity to meet those needs? Or is that 
going to be covered by the new power plant? 

Mr. Benavente: Yes, because most of that load is going to be coming in 2021 or 2022. 
Yes, it will be covered by the new power plant. When the new power plant comes on, we 
have quite a bit of capacity available. From there we will be looking at potentially retiring 
some of the other units that are very costly to operate. The other thing on the buildup is 
that the infrastructure is already in construction for the underground transmission line from 
Harmon all the way to Andersen. That is a 17-million-dollar project. They also are working 
on the Finegayan substation that is a six-million-dollar project. The 23-million-dollar 
project is being funded by the military and the system will be turned over for operation and 
maintenance by GP A. 

Chairman Ridgell: I am sorry, what is that project again? 

Mr. Benavente: Underground project from Harmon all the way up to Andersen and the 
substation to feed the marine base. 

Chairman Ridgell: You kind of talked about a little bit earlier, DOD as a customer of 
GP A. What is their agreement with GP A? How is DOD billed? I understand that you 
mentioned earlier in their billing that they do not pay LEAC, they actually pay monthly 
whatever the oil is monthly. Can you explain overall how they are billed? 

Mr. Benavente: The Navy is a transmission level customer. We bring the power to their 
substation and they transmit it through their base. There is a rate for transmission level 
because it avoids losses on this side. There are less losses coming through transmission. 
The LEAC is really the total fuel cost. How much is there share based on their use and how 
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much is the civilian's share. Their share, they pay every month which is a benefit to us 
because they are such a big customer, it does not impact our cash flow as much. They 
basically pay their share of the system based on the total cost of the system and the amount 
of the energy they buy from the system. It is a ten-year contract. Renewable every ten years. 

Chairman Ridgell: If they paid the LEAC rate would that enable the rate to be lowered. 

Mr. Benavente: No, they pay their LEAC rate just like everybody else. The other thing 
about the Navy is that everyone has the right to petition to the PUC and participate in the 
rate setting. The navy in past rates have participated to make sure that their costs, they pay 
their costs and not more or what from there. It is still done through the Public Utilities 
Commission and they pay their share of the cost. 

Mr. Duenas: I think your question, Senator, was would it be beneficial if they pay the 
LEAC rate? No. It is beneficial the way they are doing it because that part of the fuel bill 
gets paid. There is no subsidy, there is no waiting and seeing whether you are 
underrecovered or overrecovered. We have fully recovered on them. They are 20% of the 
bill so they pay 20% of the bill. They pay. It benefits what we are doing now, is the benficial 
way to do it. The customer-supplier agreement is based on a cost that was arrived at based 
on a cost of service again. They pay their fair share. The military is a good customer. 20% 
of our revenue base. 

Mr. Benavente: Why do you think they opted out of the LEAC, then? 

Mr. Duenas: It is not a question of them opting out. I think that is how we negotiated. We 
wanted to negotiate and get the money from them and not say, "we'll give you six months" 
and maybe at the end of six months maybe they are short? 

Chairman Ridgell: I misunderstood. I thought earlier in the discussion you mentioned that 
it was something they opted out of but you are saying it is part of the negotiation. 

Mr. Duenas: It is a negotiation thing, so that is why they have a contract called a customer 
service agreement because they are unique. In that it is all negotiated. 

Chairman Ridgell: Now with the contract they have with GP A. It sounds like in Layman's 
terms, it sort of sounds like they are purchasing the power in bulk? 

Mr. Duenas: That is one way to look at it. The point that I am trying to emphasize is that 
they are paying their fair share. They do not get any breaks. 

Mr. Benavente: For example, if they are purchasing the power in bulk, they don't impact 
the distribution, transformers and all of that. They absorb that loss on their part of the 
system. Whatever is the line losses on the transmission system, that is what they pay for, 
just like everybody else. It is kind of divided again by the sales and by what the user is 
demanding from the system. 
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Chairman Ridgell: You basically determine how much power you feed to them like a 
single meter and thte amount of power you transmit to the one transmission station? 

Mr. Benavente: That is correct. We have nineteen meters throughout the island and that 
is their metering point. 

Chairman Ridgell: They basically pay off of one large meter. 

Mr. Benavente: Yes. 

Chairman Ridgell: What schedule do they pay on that meter? 

Mr. Duenas: That is the point, Senator. They don't have a schedule. They aren't part of a 
schedule, they just pay. 

Mr. Benavente: Schedule Letter N. 

Chairman Ridgell: N for Navy. 

Mr. Duenas: I guess what I am trying to stress in very simple terms is they pay their fair 
share. There is no subsidy from the civillian community to them. They are a good payer 
because their money comes in. Period. It is just an electronic transfer so we have cash from 
them. 

Chairman Ridgell: Okay. Thank you. They have their own schedule that they have unique 
to them. 

Mr. Duenas: Yes, they are a unique customer. 
Chairman Ridgell: Alright. I don't have any further questions, if anyone else has any 
further questions I will open it up to you. 

Senator Perez: Just going back to the rate for the Navy, that is based on consumption? 
What they pay is based on consumption? Basically, you made an agreement that they will 
purchase power at a certain rate? 

Mr. Benavente: That is correct. Consumption which includes also demand, what they 
demand from the system. Kilowatt demand determines how much they pay for generation 
capacity and all of that. Again, all of this went through the Public Utilities Commission. 
They actually were the ones that set the rate for the Navy. 

Senator Perez: It is not like they are agreeing to purchase 7 MW s and they pay that amount 
up or down, that doesn't exist, right? 
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Mr. Duenas: I think I need to expound a little bit. They place a demand on the system. 
Large customers of ours, there is a demand meter. In other words, if you have a customer 
and if he turns on everything, he requires this amount of power. For example, he decides 
to use less, his charge is at this amount of power that is the charge he is gonna pay because 
at anytime he wants that power, we have to be ready to deliever it. They pay for everything 
they want from us. They pay their full share. I am trying to struggle to how to explain this 
but they have a certain amount of usage. Let's say they decide to shut down a base or limit 
the use of a base for example and this is just a word example. They stop using that power, 
there is a demand factor that comes into play because we have to have that power ready for 
them. Whatever they want, we reflect in a cost to them, and that is set by the PUC with a 
big cost of service study. 

Senator Perez: What they pay, doesn't vary, it is the same cost? 

Mr. Duenas: The unit price may go up. For example, they bring in a military exercise and 
they have a lot more consumption, they pay more. Whatever it is they pay their fair share. 
I am not explaining it very well except that this is a big study with a lot of consultants, their 
side, our side and they all agree to certain cost factors and certain allocations and when 
they put it at the end of the day, they pay their fair share. They pay their fair share and they 
don't get any breaks and they want the reliable power. That is the flip side. We tell them 
we are going to be reliable to them. They also try to make improvements. For example, 
John mentioned the underground transmission line that they are building from harmon 
substation to Andersen? They are paying for that, but they have already paid for a 
transmission line back maybe a decade ago from Andersen down to our Dededo facilities 
next to prestige motors. They have already paid and that is already in. For us at GPA, one 
of the projects John is gonna be doing is an underground line from Dededo to Harmon from 
the Harmon Substation to the Dededo Substation and what that means is that whole 
northern end will be looped with an underground transmission line hooking up all those 
substations. It is a big benefit that they paid for on their own. They are looking for more 
and more reliability which we are willing to let them do. If they want to go ahead of us, 
they pay. 

Mr. Benavente: The large power customers and all of that, they have a demand charge 
and an energy charge. The navy themselves also has so when they add more load in the 
future they will be paying more based on different things. 

Mr. Duenas: I hope that answers that. 

Chairman Ridgell: One more question. The schedule and rate, how is that rate comparable 
to other rates. 

Mr. Duenas: There is no way to compare it because they are a whole different animal. 
They are not similar to anything else that we have in our system. 

Chairman Ridgell: Is it a higher rate or a lower rate, commercial? 
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Mr. Duenas: You cannot compare it with say commercial 1 or commercial 2 or 
commerical 3. You cannot compare it to them. It is a unique rate to them. It is unique. 

Chairman Ridgell: Why can't you compare it? 

Mr. Duenas: It doesn't factor in any distribution facilities. It doesn't factor in a lot of 
diferent stuff. It factors what they use. They get generation. They have transmission and 
then they have fuel oil. Everything that they use is reflected to them in that rate. They 
cannot compare to anybody else. They are unique. They are large and they are different 
from everybody else. That is why there is a separate agreement for them. Everybody else 
comes in to apply power, they fill out their application and they tell us what their 
consumption is, how big is the building. We know all of that. They put that all down and 
they sign off and they are a customer. With this one customer it is actually a contract 
between them and GP A and it is unique to them and GP A. 

Chairman Ridgell: I am trying to understand why. 

Mr. Duenas: Because they are so unique, Mr. Chairman. They have more needs in terms 
of demand. In other words, they need more power when they need more power and they 
pay for that. Whatever they use and whatever it costs to provide they pay for. 

Mr. Benavente: They pay it for everything except distribution costs to the system. 
Everyone else is a customer of GP A so they contribute to the distribution. They pay 
transmission, generation, fuel, everything else except for the distribution part. Taking it 
from their substation, to our indivdual customers and also related to only our customers. 

Chairman Ridgell: They do not pay distribution costs. 

Mr. Duenas: That is because the distribution cost is behind the fence. In other words, the 
housing area and all that stuff, they maintain the power poles, transformers, lines, 
insulators. They pay for all of that because they do that behind their fence. 

Mr. Benavente: We are hoping one that one daythat we maybe able to work something 
out there and, sorry thinking ahead. I think there is an opportunity for both parties to save 
money. GPA to make some revenue and the military to save some money. 

Chairman Ridgell: If GPA were to handle their distribution? 

Mr. Benavente: That is right. All we do is add a few more trucks and customers. We have 
all the inventory. Different things like that, so there is an opportunity to increase sales 
revenue which again, helps everyone. 

Chairman Ridgell: What has the Navy said about that? Has that been pitched to them 
before? 
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Mr. Benavente: It is an ongoing, passing through because every so many years they have 
their contract. Once they have the contract it is what they do, so we have to catch that in 
their bidding phase. 

Mr. Duenas: They basically want to control behind their fence, Senator. That is something 
we understand. 

Chairman Ridgell: Which is contrary to what they agreed to with the One Guam approach. 

Mr. Duenas: Not really. 

Chairman Ridgell: Sure, there is two diffemet Guams. Guam behind the fence and Guam 
on the other side. 

Mr. Duenas: No, because they actually pay for it. They paid for their costs so it is all there, 
and you know. 

Chairman Ridgell: To me, a one Guam approach would mean a fully integratred utility 
system which includes GP A handling distribution. 

Mr. Duenas: And we are open to that with them, but they are the military. They have 
certain security needs or whatever it is that they need and that is all I am saying. They are 
a unique customer. They control access, who is on their base, or whatever, so it is not one 
of those things where we can say, "we want to enter your base, we want to do this, we want 
to do that." We cannot do that. That is something that is a bigger question for the 
Department of Defense. We have told them that we can try to serve them, if they want to, 
we are available, but they have not indicated that they would like to do that. I do not 
consider that non-One Guam thing because they are a unique customer. They have certain 
needs for security, for whatever. Also, to control people from wandering into places where 
they have ammunition or whatever so that is a decision that they make and I can understand 
it but they pay their fair share that is the main point. In terms of One Guam, as long as they 
pay their fair share I think that is the one Guam that I see. This is just me. It would be 
different ifthere were two Guams if they were being subsidized by the civilian community. 
Then, I would say wait a minute, that is not the One Guam, but they are not being 
subsidized by the civillian community. They are paying their fair share and they have 
certain unique needs for the things that they do in terms of providing security for the 
country and the world and all these other bigger things. That is why I said I see it as One 
Guam still because they pay everything that they should pay. 

Chairman Ridgell: But you are open to looking into distribution? 

Mr. Duenas: Oh, we are open. John is always looking for more business. Again, that is 
something that they have to be open to because they have other considerations other than 
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just money. They have certain security considerations. I cannot just say to them, "No, don't 
worry." 

Chairman Ridgell: Okay. Is there any other questions? We have exhausted everything on 
the agenda. With that I want to thank you for your participation in this hearing and I 
appreciate all the information you have provided to the committee. With that we will end 
this hearing and thank you again for your participation. Thanks. 

The oversight hearing was adjourned at 1 :49 pm. 

III. FINDINGS & RECOMMENDATIONS 
PAY RAISES, BONUSES 
The Consolidated Commission on Utilities (CCU) maintains their position that these raises 
were merited, confirming for the Committee that the CCU might consider reinstating the 
raises at a future meeting with adjustments at an even higher rate to include bonuses that 
are otherwise not allowed to be awarded. Some employees in senior-level management 
positions rank in the 25th percentile of salaries, nationally, while the majority of other GPA 
employees rank at or below the 15th percentile. 

FAUL TY SMART METERS, BACK BILLING 
Roughly 25% of all smart meters have failed and require replacement which leads to back 
billing for affected customers. 

NEW POWER PLANT (HARMON CLIFFLINE) & LIQUIFIED NATURAL GAS 
(LNG) 
The proposed power plant at the Harmon cliff line area may cost ratepayers approximately 
$300-$400 million dollars, based on estimates provided by the Guam Power Authority. 
The proposed public-private partnership would require a private company to build and 
operate a power plant and then sell the power to GP A; however, GP A does not know how 
much the private company will charge GP A for this power and no ceiling has been set for 
the cost which means GP A could potentially be locked into an expensive power-purchase 
agreement. 

The proposed combined-cycle power plant which should be able to bum both ultra-low 
sulfur diesel and LNG will also require the construction of two new fuel pipelines that will 
run from the Port Authority of Guam to the Harmon cliff line area. The LNG pipeline will 
also require a storage and gasification facility at Guam's seaport, the cost of which has not 
been factored into the total cost of the proposed power plant. 

The Committee raised concerns about the safety and feasibility of LNG, citing incidences 
of explosions at LNG facilities, including one that occurred this year in Washington, 
injuring workers and forcing an evacuation. A 2009 report by the U.S. Congressional 
Research Service warned that LNG spills can unleash explosive vapor clouds. 
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The Guam Power Authority could not provide details of whether or not the implementation 
of LNG as a power source is feasible enough to pursue building a power plant that uses 
LNG. The current plans are to place this storage and gasification facility on a floating barge 
in the waters of the Port Authority of Guam. 

NET ENERGY METERING (NEM) 
The Committee will address the Public Utilities Commission to discuss rate-setting for 
NEM customers, based on findings from Daymark Energy Advisors and Clean Power 
Research LLC, recommending that GP A continue to credit NEM customers at the current 
rate. 

RENEWABLES PORTFOLIO 
The Guam Power Authority is working to achieve 50% renewables by the year 2035, with 
the potential to achieve greater solar use. Exact estimates of how much more could be 
achieved could not be provided at the time of the hearing. The Committee cited the U.S. 
Energy Information Agency's forecast for the cost of oil which will continue to rise; by 
year 2050, prices could reach $107 .94 per barrel and in the worst-case scenario as much as 
$200 per barrel or more. 



Clynton E. Ridgell 
Senator - 35th Guam Legislature 
Committee on Economic Development, Agriculture, Maritime Transportation, 
Power and Energy Utilities, and Emergency Response 

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE (May 16, 2019 - Hagatfia, Guam) - Today, Senator 
Clynton E. Ridgell announced that the Committee on Economic Development, 
Agriculture, Maritime Transportation, Power and Energy Utilities, and Emergency 
Response has scheduled an Oversight Hearing with the Guam Power Authority (GPA). 
"In light of recent concerns from within the community, surrounding various issues 
about the Guam Power Authority, the Committee has decided to call an Oversight 
Hearing with GP A," says the committee chairman. 

Items to be discussed at the Oversight Hearing include the salary adjustments and 
bonuses for GP A employees, the findings of the Cabras Explosion incident, and GP A's 
net-metering policy. 

The Oversight Hearing is scheduled for Thursday, May 23, 2019 from 9:00 am to 5:00 pm 
and will take place at the Public Hearing Room of the Guam Congress Building in 
Haga ma. 

The agenda is attached for reference. 

238 Archbishop Flores St · Suite 906 - DNA Building · Hagatfta GU 96910 
Phone: (671) 475-4983 ·Fax: (671) 475-4768 

sen.cridgell@teleguam.net 
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AGENDA 

I. Salary Adjustments and Bonuses of Individual Guam Power Authority 
Employees 

11. Cabras Explosion Findings 
Ill. 120-180MW New Generation Capacity Power Plant (Harmon Cliff-line Power 

Plant) 
IV. Disposal of GPA Waste Oil 
V. Levelized Energy Adjustment Clause (LEAC) Update and Overview 
VI. Net Energy Metering (NEM) Update 
VII. Renewables Portfolio Update 
VIII. Future Capital Improvement Project Plans/Bond-Borrowing 
IX. Power Generation for Military Buildup 



SALARY ADJUSTMENT AND BONUSES 
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GPA'S Human Resource Needs 

• The reliability and sustainability of the electric power system is vital for the economy an 
community and steps continue to be taken to insure GPA can attract and retain critical 
human resource needs 

• GPA Received Authorization by the Guam Legislature to establish its compensation structure in 
order to ATTRACT and RETAIN EMPLOYEES. 

• GPA Set a Pay-for-Performance Pay Structure with a migratory provision which surveys the market 
in order to maintain company-wide compensation competitiveness. 

• GPA continue towards the competitive benchmark of the 5Qth percentile curve of the market to 
achieve its objectives. 

• 60% of the existing workforce is eligible for retirement within the next 10 years 
• The government's retirement plans and other benefits are not incentive to attract certified, technical 

and professional individuals with critical skill sets and experience required for GPA to serve its 
m1ss1on. 

• Compensation is key to attracting and retaining these certified, technical and professional 
employees. 

• GPA requires a highly skilled and experienced workforce. Work is highly complex, hazardous, and 
dangerous. 

• GPA invests in training employees and these experienced employees are poached by the military or 
other companies for better wages and benefits. 

• GPA experienced difficulties hiring skilled employees when compensation level_s are low or below 
market. Case in point include: 

o Difficulty in hiring a Generation Manager to oversee the power plants and generating units. 
o Difficulty in hiring experienced System Dispatchers to operate the island wide power system. 
o Difficulty in hiring an Information Network Administrator (highly sought skill set, competing with the military or 

other companies for this position) 

.. 
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GPA's Personnel Staffing 

Guam Power Authority Full Time Equivalency (FTE) 
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Insurance Claim 

Event 

• On August 31, 2015 a fire occurred at 
Cabras Units 3 and 4 

•The fire caused substantial damage to the 
units and related infrastructure causing 
GPA to lose 78.6 MW of baseload capacity 

Policy 

• GPA maintained a $300 million insurance 
policy with Lloyd's of London on these units 

Consultants 

~ ~ 

• In 2016, GPA hired Greenspan Company I 
Adjusters International to file and assist 
with its claim 

Findings 

• Independent consultants found Ca bras 4 to be 
beyond repair 

• Cabras 3 has been deemed reparable but given 
amount of funds needed to repair, plant was 
decommissioned 

Payments 

• A final settlement amount of $126 million was 
negotiated; all received 

• Most of the funds are targeted to reduce costs 
of GPA's proposed generation additions 
(combined cycle units) 

~ $45 million has been spent to replace lost 
capacity and clean up the site 

~ $10 million spent to purchase land 

~ $73 million remaining in the bank 

GPA recently procured a new five-year insurance policy with enhanced coverage 
from Lloyd's of London; annual premium declined by $2 million/year. 

December 2018 Credit Rating Agencies Presentation 
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Capacity Recovery Plan 

GPA implemented an effective capacity recovery plan since the 2015 Cabras fire 

v"Established interrupted load 
program (29 MW) 

v" Greater utilization of smaller 
and older units 

v"lnstalled Aggreko temporary 
unit (40 MW) 

v"Utilization of Navy Orate Power Plant (18 MW) 

v"Overhauled Cabras 2 to increase capacity to 60 
MWfrom40MW 

v"lnstalled transformer on Cabras 1; increased 
capacity to 60 MW from 42 MW 

~-------------------------------------------------~ I I 
I I 
I •Install 180 MW combined cycle plan I 
I I 
I I 
I I 
I I 

•--------------------------------------------------· 
• GPA, although challenged, has sufficient capacity reserves for the next 3 years 

• New 180 MW Power Plant needed by 2022 in order to meet future increased demand and to work with 
renewables 

• GPA's interim and intermediate plan was funded with internal cash flow, self insurance fund, insurance 
proceeds from settlement (no impact to rates) 

December 2018 Credit Rating Agencies Presentation 
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Insurance Summary 

Claims: 

Property Claim 

Environmental Claim 

Total Settlement 

Expenditures: 

Temporary Generator-Aggreko 

Unit 4 Engine removal 

Decontamination 

Roof Demolition 

Fuel 

Insurance Adjuster 

Temporary Generator-Emission Control 

Environmental clean-up 

Legal Services 

Land Purchase 

Miscellaneous 

Total expenditures 

Interest Income 

Balance 

$ 125,000,000 

884,342 

125,884,342 

13,176,941 

5,877,909 

4,935,804 

4, 747,888 

4,600,000 

4,378,776 

3,000,000 

1,163,047 

239,905 

10,813,325 

1,986,135 

54,919,730 

2,061,774 

$ 73,026,386 

Approximately $16.lM for 40 MW Aggreko and $83.9M for New 180 MW Power Plant 

This translates to an annual debt service savings of approximately $6.75M; Total of $168.6M over 25 year plant IPP Contract; savings to ratepayers 

@) . . -
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New 180 MW Power Plant 

Needed to comply with US EPA regulations, replaced aged units and 
to work with and increase renewables penetration into system 

Combined Cycle Project 

• Proposed combined cycle generation of 180 MW 

• Dual fuel capabilities: ultra-low sulfur diesel 
(ULSD) and natural gas 

• GPA has purchased site in Harmon; close 
proximity to key transmission line, Harmon 
substation and GWA wastewater plant 

• $300-400 million estimated project cost (units, 
land, transmission) 

• Cabras 1 & 2 to be retired after new plant 
commissioning 

• All plants compliant with USEPA Regulations in 
2022 

Tim in 
Milestone 

GPUC Order Docket 15-05 filed 

GPUC Order Docket 15-05 approved 

GPA hires Stanley Consultants, Inc. to 
assist in creation and evaluation of RFP 

Land acquired & rezoned (PL 34-102) 

GPUC approved Specifications 

Bid award 

Construction 

Date 
Jan 2016 

Oct 2016 

2017 

2018 
2018 

Dec 2019 

2020 -2022 

Location : 

Fuel 

Wastewater 
Treatment 

Plant 

Transmission -.............. y 
Line ~ 

~ 
~-
~~ _;::., -
~V·· .~~~ 

f 
....... ;... .. 

.G<Jam 

( 
)__ 

GPA 

< 
~ 

"""· Headquarters 

December 2018 Credi{ Rating Agencies 
Presentation 

Proposed 
Combined 
Cycle Units 

Harmon 
Substation 

~ 
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Update on New Power Plant Bid 

• The technical proposals for the new power plant were reviewed and three bidders have 
been qualified to submit their pricing by May 31, 2019 

UPDATED SCHEDULE GPA-034-18 

May 31, 2019 Deadline to receive price proposals from qualified bidders 

June 3, 2019 Public opening of bid prices 

June 19, 2019 Complete initial evaluation of price submittals 

September 18, 2019 Target date for contract submission for approval by CCU & GPUC 

N LT December 20, 2019 CCU & GPUC Approvals 

2020-2022 Construction Period 



.... 

DISPOSAL OF GPA USED OIL 

@) . . -



• GUAf\11 
CCU 

Chronology of Used Oil Disposal Efforts 
GPA power plants produce used oil and must be disposed of properly: 
• GPA-118-18 Multi-Step Request for Proposal for Hauling and Handling of GPA Used Oil and Supply of 

Reprocessed GPA Used Oil Meeting GPA's Specifications was issued on September 20, 2018 
• Amendment XVI issued extending the bid opening to August 5, 2019 
• GPA is soliciting a solution from the private sector for this need which impacts the utility 
• Solution must be cost effective and compliant with all USEPA and GEPA requirements 
• The current burning of used oil at GPA Cabras 1 & 2 will end in 2022-2023 

Updated Bid Schedule: 

Bid Process Milestones 
Bid Announcement 
Pre-Bid Conference 

Submit Questions 
Cut Off Date for Receipt of Questions 
GPA Review and Answer Questions 
Vendor Prepare Bids 
Cut Off Date for Receipt of Proposals Qualitative Technical and Price Proposals) 

EVALUATION 

Step Two: otification of Qualified Bidder 

From Date 

10/4/2018 9:00AM 

3/5/2019 4:00PM 

8/5/2019 4:00PM 

8/6/2019 

9/6/2019 2:00PM 

9/16/2019 

To Date 

1/22/2019 

12/21 2018 

3 19 2019 
8 5 2019 

8/20/2019 
8 23 2019 

9/30/2019 



LEVELIZED ENERGY ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE (LEAC) 
OVERVIEW AND UPDATE 
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LEAC Summary 

• The Public Utilities Commission approved at its January meeting 
for the LEAC rate to remain at $0.154242/kWh effective for the 
period from February 1, 2019 thru July 31, 2019. This rate has not 
changed since May 1, 2018, despite rising fuel prices. 

• The next LEAC filing to the GPUC is due June 15, 2019 for the 
period August 1, 2019 thru January 31, 2020. 

• GPA is presenting its recommendation to the CCU at the May 28th 
CCU Work Meeting 

.· 
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LEAC Under Recovery Balances 

LEAC Under Recovery Balances 

.. .. 
... ... 

... .... ········ ····· .... ············· . .. ... ... 

Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19 Jul-19 

- $'000 Actual - $'000 Projected ·· ·••·••· 3 per. Mov. Avg. ($ '000 Actual) 

Aug-18 7,313 

Sep-18 8,371 

Oct-18 11,411 

Nov-18 11,368 

Dec-18 12,375 

Jan-19 13,337 

Feb-19 13,052 

Mar-19 13,691 

Apr-19 11,754 

May-19 11,307 

Jun-19 9,881 

Jul-19 9,327 
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Net Metering (NEM) Program 

NEM 
Program 

Mandated 

CURRENT PROGRAM: 
./ N EM customers receive full retail rate 

Public Stakeholder 
Meetings conducted by 

GPA between August 2016 
-July 2018 

./ Excess credit carried over or paid out annually at full retail rate 

./ The base rate revenue impact is estimated at $3.46M annually 

./ Approximately 48,000 Non-NEM ratepayers subsidizes about 2,000 NEM ratepayers 

,, 
21 
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Net Energy Metering (NEM) Program Update 

• NEM customers receive services from the grid including: 
• Use the grid to sell power (get credit at full retail rate for excess production) 
• Use the grid to energize their homes at night, but credited back from their production (uses GPA 

Grid as storage) 
• Using Grid at night results in increased fuel cost to non-NEM Customers because costlier less 

efficient generation is used to generate their energy needs 
• Frequency regulation absorbed by grid for intermittencies 
• Reactive power supply 
• Voltage regulation 
• Stand-by power on overcast days when the sun does not shine 

• Current monthly fixed charge of $15 does not recover cost to serve from grid 
• Most of GPA fixed cost is recovered in the energy use (kWh) rate component which is 

typically zero for NEM customers 

• Three NEM public hearings were held by the Public Utilities Commission 
between March 26th to April 4th. regarding GPA's petition for modification of 
current Net Metering Rider (GPA Docket No. 19-04). Our petition is on the 
agenda for their May 30th meeting. 
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GPA Value of Solar from an Avoided Cost Perspective 

eneration + IPP Costs 
Other Production - Fixed O&M $ 17,783,917 $ 0.0110 
IPP Costs - Fixed O&M $ 16,958,770 $ 0.0105 
IPP Costs - Variable O&M $ 2,976,564 $ 0.0018 $ 

ransmission & Distribution $ 11,703,969 $ 0.0073 

dmin and General 
Payroll, benefits, retirement $ 12,862,412 $ 0.0080 
Insurance $ 7,252,504 $ 0.0045 
Contracts $ 4,024,943 $ 0.0025 
Utilities $ 1,817,009 $ 0.0011 
Office supplies & Others $ 844,349 $ 0.0005 

ustomer Accounting $ 4,756,213 $ 0.0030 
ebt Service $ 56,937,000 $ 0.0354 
IPs/Others $ 26,731,639 $ 0.0166 
otal ( Base Rate Revenues) $ 164,649,289 $ 0.1023 

$ 181,683,506 $ 0.1128 
Fuel Consumption, plus the under recovery·~ $ 165;6~2,714 $ 0.1029 $ 0.102 
Fuel Handling $ 7,128,512 $ 0.0044 
Renewables $ 8,862,280 $ 0.0055 

Total 346,332,795 $ 0.2151 

nergy losses at 3.5% $ 0.0054 $ 0.005 
nvironmental cost $ 0.000039 $ 0.00003 
otal Avoided Cost $ 0.110 
verage cost in 2017 per kWh $ 0.2151 $ 0.215 

redit Beyond Avoided Cost $ 0.104 

• 8 GUAM 
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Net Metering Petition Before the PUC to Migrate to Avoided Cost Over 5-Years 

GUAM 
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No Phase-out 5-Year Phase-out 
Calendar Estimated Estimated 

Year kWh Subsidy Cumulative *$/kWh 

CY 2019 33,921,230 $3,411,623 $3,411,623 $0.1006 

CY 2020 33,921,230 $3,411,623 $6,823,246 $0.0805 

CY 2021 33,921,230 $3,411,623 $10,234,869 $0.0603 

CY 2022 33,921,230 $3,411,623 $13,646,492 $0.0402 

CY 2023 33,921,230 $3,411,623 $17,058,115 $0.0201 

CY2024 33,921,230 $3,411,623 $20,469,738 $0.0000 

CY2025 33,921,230 $3,411,623 $23,881,361 

CY2026 33,921,230 $3,411,623 $27,292,984 

CY2027 33,921,230 $3,411,623 $30,704,607 
!Total 
~ubsidy: $30,704,607 

*Subsidy decreased evenly over 5-8 years 

*Avoided Cost Credit set annually by PUC in a similar protocol as LEAC 

All excess credits trued up at the end of year 

8-Year 
Phase out 

Estimated Estimated 
Subsidy *$/kWh Subsidy 

$3,411,623 $0.1006 $3,412,476 

$2,729,298 $0.0880 $2,985,916 

$2,046,974 $0.0755 $2,559,357 

$1,364,649 $0.0629 $2,132,797 

$682,325 $0.0503 $1,706,238 

$0 $0.0377 $1,279,678 

$0.0252 $853,119 

$0.0126 $426,559 

$0.0000 $0 

10,234,869 $15,356,141 

" 
25 
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Non-NEM Residential Customer NEM Residential Customer 
12,000 KWH Annual Consumption 12,000 KWH Annual Consumption 

Total Annual Production is 15,000 KWH 

Description $/Kwh KWH Consumption Amount Description $/Kwh KWH Consumption KWH Credits Amount 

$15 Monthly Fee x 12 Months $180.00 $15 Monthly Fee x 12 Months $180.00 

Base Rate Charge 0.0946 12,000 $1,135.20 Base Rate Charge 0.0946 0 $0.00 

LEAC Charge 0.15424 12,000 $1,850.88 LEAC Charge 0.15424 0 $0.00 

Total Payments $3,166.08 Total Payments $180.00 

Unused Credits 0.24884 3,000 $746.52 

Total Payment $3,166.08 $ {566.52) 

Purchased Credit Cost for 3,000 
KWH $746.52 

GPA Production Cost for 
3,000KWH $486.00 

Additional Cost to Non-
NEM $260.52 

,;, 
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Energy Plan - Utility-Scale Renewables Update 

Expanding its renewable portfolio is an integral component of GPA's generation plan 

r"-~----~~- ---~----~~-------- -~---~--~~-~-

1 ~,~er.::~-~---- ;/s:- :1-~ -=~77; 
~~~~-~~~~~~~~~~ 

• 25 MW Project with NRG Energy 

• Commissioned October 2015 

• GPA's obligation is take-and-pay 

• The project has performed as 
expected, producing approximately 
4,300 MWh of emission free energy 
each month 

• Phase II Bid for new solar 
PV and other renewables 

• Awarded 120 MW of solar 
PV in Fall 2018 

• Solar with integrated 
battery systems 

• Expected operational in 
2021 

• 30-year lease of 164 acres 
of Navy property for 40 
MW solar PV plant 

• ESS shifting 100% energy 
to evening 

• Expect bid award in 2019 

• Expected Operational by 
2022 

-, - -

-- - - - - - -- - ----- -- - --- -------

• GPA commissioned 275 kW 
wind project 

• Operational March 2016 

• Funded by $2 million USDOI 
Grant 

• Project providing valuable 
experience on potential of 
wind renewable projects 

December 2018 Credit Rating Agencies Presentation 
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Solar Photovoltaic (PV) Renewables Projects Underway 

Phase I 

• 25 MW 

• Dandan {NRG) 
•Commissioned October 

2015 

Phase 11 

• 120 MW 

• 60 MW w/ ESS 
KEPCO-LG Project 
(Sasayan) 

• 60 MW w/ ESS 
Hanwha Project 

• $0.085 I kWh {1% 
Escalator) 

• Over $43M Savings 
in first five years 

•Commissioning 2021 

v 

Phase 111 

• 40MW 

• 20 MW w/ ESS 

• {Big Navy) 

• 20 MW w/ ESS 
{South Finegayan) 

• Estimated award 
August 2019 

•Complete shifting of 
energy produced 
during day to meet 
nighttime loads. 

Phase IV 

• RENEWABLES 
INTEGRATION 
STUDY 

• Grid capacity 

• Additional 
integration 

• Could add 180 MW 
more 

• Upgrades of Grid 
necessary 

• New Power Plant is 
necessary 

2021: 26% Guam's energy needs provided by renewable energy (Net Metering Customers 
(18MW) + Phases I, II & Ill), exceeding mandate to produce 25% net electricity sales by 2035 PL-
29-62. GPA supports Bill No. 80-35 introduced by Senator Amanda Shelton relative to raising the 
Renewable Portfolio Standard (RPS) from 25% to 50% by 2035. 

40MW Battery 
Storage 

Online in 2019 

Renewable PPAs are included in LEAC. Low-cost renewables contracts below LEAC benefit all ratepayers & 
provide an excellent hedge against erratic fuel oil process. Latest PPAs are limited to 1% annual price 
escalations. 
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Renewable Portfolio Standards 

Renewable Portfolio Standards (RPS) Achieved By 2021 

35% 

30% 

25% 

20% . . 
15% 

10% 

5% 

5% +----.· 
0% +-~='~~:_·..--'"""-~="'-~--"-'ii'"'--r---1""""-~ 

Renewable Portfolio Standards (RPS) Tracking 
Projection thru 2035 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 

Net Metering Renewable Energy (MWH) -- NRG Renewable Energy (MWH) - GPA Wind Turbine (MWH) 

......,.,,,,. Phase II - Hanwha, 60MW (MWH) -ia<I\ Phase II - KEPCO, GOMW (MWH) 

-RPS %(By End of Year) • • • • • % Projected Renewable Production vs. Sales 
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Expected Future Power Supply 

New combined cycle units and expanded renewable portfolio will 
supply over 75% of GPA power supply. GPA is on track to achieve 
26o/o of energy from renewables by 2021 

300 
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50 

0 

Projected 2021 Daily Unit Dispatch 

(Megawatts) 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 

(Hour of Day) 

• Batteries 

Solar PV 

MEC (Piti #9) 

• MEC (Piti #8) 

• CCCT 180MW 

December 2018 Credit Rating Agencies Presentation 
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FUTURE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 
PLANS/BOND-BORROWING 
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Debt Overview 

GPA maintains a conservative debt profile; recent reduction in fixed costs will 
support financial margins and provide capacity for future capital projects 

Lien Structure ($mm) 

Series 
Final 

Par 
Maturity 

2012 $339.2 2034 

2014 $73.8 2044 
2017 $148.5 2040 

Total $561.6 

Debt Service Schedule ($mm) 

-------------------------------· 

Interest Rate Mode Composition 

~ 
~ 

No variable 
rate debt 

No interest 
rate swaps 

Outstanding Debt and Capital Leases ($mm) 

$800 

$60 $62 million $600 
2011-2015 average 

$40 
•· 

$20 Ii I •••• $0 
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$400 

$200 

$0 
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• Debt 
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GPA Operational/Business Risks 

Automatic Generation Control 

115 kV line clearing time, 5 cycles 

from both ends 

34.5 kV line clearing time, 6 cycles 

from both ends 

Transient Grid Support from ESS's at 

Agana, Talofofo, Orate, South 
Finegayan 

Transient Grid Support from ESS's at 

Hanwha, KEPCO/LG 

Flexible Generation Plant 

Flexible Generation Synchronous 

Condenser 

TEMES/Yigo/Macheche Synchronous 

Condenser 

Dandan - Agana 115 kV Line Addition 

TEMES/Yigo/Macheche Remote 

Start/Stop 

Uneconomical use of PV energy, large curtailments of PV, poor reliability, poor frequency control, 

poor transient recovery response 

Long clearing times create large frequency dips during line faults, result in excessive load shedding, 

puts system at risk for cascading outage and collapse, does not meet transmission planning reliability 

criteria 

Long clearing times create large frequency dips for line faults, result in excessive load shedding, does 

not meet GPA transmission planning criteria 

Without ESS transient support, excessive load shedding occurs, FIDVR effects are worse, does not 

meet GPA transmission planning criteria, cannot accept large amounts of renewable generation at 

peak solar production conditions 

Without additional ESS support, load shedding occurs for FIDVR events, alternately other units would 

need to be online creating renewable generation curtailments 

Without flexible units that can be decommitted, renewable generation would be forced to curtail 

during peak production times, less renewable energy would be used each day 

Without SC option, the inverter based sources would be at risk for inverter cessation during 

disturbances, resulting in more load shedding, and risk of inverters not resetting after a disturbance, 

leading to system collapse 

Without SC in southwest part of the system, the system remains at risk for inverter cessation during a 

disturbance, especially near Harmon, with more load shedding and possible system collapse 

Without this addition, the single outage of the Piti-Agana 115 kV line caused a large loss of 

generation, load shedding, and does not meet the transmission planning criteria 

Energy shortage to serve GPA load following severe system contingencies and ESS contingencies 
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T&D Investment and Strategies 

GPA continues to invest in system reliability projects to protect revenues and 
enhance system efficiency 

• Vital power transmission 
lines that connect system to 
key components of Guam's 
economy are underground 

• 60% of system load is served 
through new underground 
infrastructure 

• GPA continues to harden its 
overhead system by 
replacing wood poles with 
concrete (over 87% 
hardened to date) 

• GPA continues its village 
underground hybrid system 
which places secondary lines 
u n de rg round 

• CCU supports the 
continuation of underground 
projects in the Tuman area. 
Main line in red is already 
underground. This project is 
to underground the high load 
density laterals 

System Hardening 

~ ·-• Subolllllon 

••• Hllnnon.,T_...,..34.&l<VUG 

••• Macheoho la San V'*"- 3.Ui kV UG 

aaa H9m1on 10 T-34.5 W IJG 

ua T.....u.g IDT""'°" 34.11 kl/ UG 

aa• ~Ila ....._34.51NUG 
• ~ID GM 34.5 l<VUG 

Ypao 
Bea.ch 

Tamunlng 
TC ..... Substation 

Guam 
lntematfonal 

Airport 

76GAS 
STATION 

GAA--7 
GRAPHIC SCALE 

1"'""1'l ·-·JOOOft. 

GUAM POWER AUTitORn"Y 

ENGINEERJNG 
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T&D Investment and Strategies 

Tuman Bay Lateral $5.3M Contract 

SITE 11 """' 

$l1E 10 P-M! 

SllE ,._,., 

SITE 4 P-2f2 

SITE 3 P-1'1 

S1lE 2 P..'41 

e*"MLARGEOS:~~ 

'"""°"""" . 

EhlAAGED S!JE PiA~ 
>!E@Flll<l<E>IHST 

"'o@fOR<lfWO'tll. 
GENERAi. NOTE: 
1 ~ NOi Ml''i!MOii - RE"""L (

'Sml.lea. AND PICMDE Sflo+' ~ FOR l#'ROm 

;: ftfrol.'W ~NI.ME~ 5HttYS [1.t ollQ 

E' ·' f\lft l- <If !11t -/$000't OF --

Tuman Lateral -Job Order 100114 

Mobilization/Demobilization 

Permits 

Site 11 Fie~taHotel 

Site 2, Dail ch ii · · · ·· 

Site 3, Cushing Zoo 

Site 4, Behind Bank of Guam 

Site 5, Behind San Vitores church 

Site 6, Behind Acanta Mall 

Sitl!7, Be~ind Pacific Bay Hotel 

Site 8, Behind Tuman Sands 

Site 9, Behind Park Arcade Building 

Sit!! 10, Behind CFS 

si1ei1, Nikko > ..•. . 

Total: 

1. Award Site 1, 2, 7, 10 and 11 

Cost of the Five Sites 

Connected Load KVA Load Share 

Bid Cost 

$ 1,106,341.00 

$ 83,573.00 
·.·· .. 2,800 13.70% $ 403,149.oo 

1,000 . 4;89% $ 326,313;00. 

1,000 4.89% $ 553,748.00 

392 1.92% $ 672,179.00 

442 2.16% $ 501,161.00 

167 0.82% $ 201,055.00 
. 

1,850< • 
. 9,05% $. 341,szg:oo 

650 3.18% . $ 1,029,309.00 

734 3.59% $ 527,479.00 

4,400 .... ili53% s 1;s30,oi7.oo · .. 
.. .. . 

7;000 •·· .. ·34.25% $ i,488,811:00 · 

20,435 100.00% $ 8, 764,964.00 

Cost 
$ 5,280,033.00 

Core Tech 

Cost Share Load Share/Cost Share 

4.60% 2.98 

3.72% 
. 1.31 

6.32% 0.77 

7.67% 0.25 

5.72% 0.38 

2.29% 0.36 

3.90'/o ·. 2:32; 

11.74% 0.27 

6.02% 0.60 

17:46% .. 1.23 

16:99%· · tor 
100.00% 
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Military Projects Underway 

• 34.SKV Transmission Line from Harmon to Andersen ($17M) 
• North Finegayan Substation ($6M) 
• These $23M in projects to be turned over to GPA to serve U.S. Marines Relocation 

Record of Decision 

US Marines Relocation 

Dependents 

Population Increase 

Power Increase (directly attributable 
to Marine Relocation) 

Timeline 

2010 FEIS 

September 20, 2010 

8,600 

9,000 

33,000 

20MW 

5 - 7 years 
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Underground Transmission System (North) 

Guam Power Authority 
Existing 34.SkV Transmission Underground Lines 

GPA POWER PLANT 

.6. GPA SUBSTATION 

X226 X21 O TamuninQ to Tumon 

• X150-155 XlO Dededo to Anderse 

X133 X170 Macheche to GAA 

X1 30 X98 Macheche to Ha imon 

X97 X227 Harmon to Tumon 

X93 X103 Harmon to Tango 

,,. XB6 X101 Harmon to Tan90 

• XBO X260 Harmon to San Vitores 

- U/G Conversion "On-Goin • 

al'KI Sl.lbstatio~ C-.ed •r. H.at'U\ P. 0QO CM £.gl•ca1n9 / Q S SCUa'I 
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